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GROUP OVERVIEW
EBET

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”)

is the listed flagship in Hong Kong of

Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”), and is also one of
the first Red Chips listed in Hong Kong

BRZERERAR (1828 ) SERERBRAR (EHER)
EEBRE LHAR TAEHNEB LTNAER—

Since the implementation of the transformation strategy, the business layout
is clearly visible and well poised to take-off

BABRBEMR EHMEEMIR B2 %

Focused on the parking business and infrastructure and real estate fund
management business

The industry’s leading position in the parking business has been
established
EEHRRERFEHTEBRERKAEIDEESEEXES
FEHITEBNITEERE MU EHI

cused on two major business segments, the development

entered a stage of rapid growth
BEERE HREARRIERIER

Value investment, excellent
products, open and inclusive

BERE -BRER ARER

Be a trustworthy
superior asset

Our Mission investor and

= operator, make
1.Must uphold the principle of and Vision city life better

value investment ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ% o
EE R EERARA Pt
Our Value 2.Be committed to providing the A= iy

(B {EEH best products and services to HSEE R
= the society

RORAHERERFHERN
- BR%
a trustworthy, open and
investor

E BIMEBNG




1991

The Company is listed on the main board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
RABIRNERGH I ER T

2016

Commenced asset restructuring, and
sold Qinhuangdao business, including
steel manufacturing, mineral mining and
processing

MEEBEEEMR HEREEXEH B1EN
MRS BYR RN T X

2018

Insisted firmly on the transformation
strategy, developed the main

business, reduced the side of old |

business, divested relevant assets, and
introduced strategic shareholders for
coordinated development
REHUEE BRIEES BHE
BEBRE JBEEREE 5| ABRS
IR REI A% E

2020

The Company has officially changed its
name to Shoucheng Holdings Limited, the
new name reflects the Group's current
strategic and business development
direction and focused on the parking
business and infrastructure and real estate
fund management business.
RAEXELRERIERABRERE M4
BMRBRAERREEBRARETERS A
CHREERFELHTEBRERRE
FTEHEESTEEER

MILESTONES
EiEn

1992

Shougang Group and Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited (now known as CK Hutchison Holdings
Limited) successfully acquired the Company in
1992

BENEEHSRIEX (BH) ARARF (RB
RIMEBEBEBRLQB) 19924 g Th Ui &
N

2017

Completed business transformation, and
acquired parking asset operation and private
equity management business in China
TREFEL TEFHEEKSEEMMLE
EoTEER

2019

Completed business restructuring, enhanced
capital reserves, spread out business in China,
and formed a solid foundation for business
development

TREBERERAR BEAESHE WHESEE
B AEBERETRENER

2021

Pursuing more speedy development of parking
business and infrastructure and real estate fund
management business, and strive to become
China’s top tier service provider in the field of
parking and infrastructure and real estate fund
management business.
TEBRTERNERSIHIABEETEIRE
BMAKEBIRBRERERENER > B
FEEERITEARKHEASERNKREEIE
EBNELELE

BIEERARAT 2020FH
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GROUP STRUCTURE
EBEE

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is committed ZATDREMBAT ((HER)) BAORITE
to building China’s leading parking business and infrastructure BB EEHITESBMER R FELEE
HeEER-

and real estate fund management business.

As at 31 December 2020
7% 2020 F£12 B 31 H

Shoucheng Holdings Limited
BHREZERARARE
(697.HK)

Infrastructure and
real estate

Parking Business

FENITES

fund management
business

HERESwAsHERS
BIEER

Holding other

business assets

RAEEMEBEE

100% 100% 90% 28.98%
E Park Investment Jingji Tiancheng Beijing West Fund Shougang Fushan
Management (Beijing) Fund Management Resources Group
Co., Ltd. Management Co., Ltd. Ltd.
(formerly known Co., Ltd. (IEmm PRI (BEELER
as Shouzhong (REX (I6R) REESER EEERAT)
Investment EEEEARAT) BRAR) (639.HK)
Management
Co., Ltd)
BeE (bx)
KEBEBRAR
(ABRERRE
EEFRAT)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020




CONTINUING OPERATIONS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR E

For the year ended 31 December

HE12B31HILLEE
2020 2019

HKS$ Million HK$ Million Variance(%)

EEGET B EET EE(%)

Revenue =L 706 396 78.3

Gross profit margin EF=E 24.8% 51.1% -26.3
Profit attributable to owners of KRBEE A

the Company P& 1% F) 659 442 491

Earnings per share (HK cents)* R F GEAL) * 9.62 8.31 15.8

* Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in March 2020

W ZECEF= ARG EHIEHZ HE

As at 31 December

®12831H
2020 2019
HKS$ Million HK$ Million Variance(%)
BEHET B EET ZE)(%)
Total assets MEE 14,126 10,997 28.5
Net assets attributable to owners KABEB A
of the Company FEIFEE 11,772 9,684 21.6
Bank balances and cash IRITAEGRRIRE 3,739 3,057 223
Wealth management products and B ERKE
fixed income financial assets BEHMEE 887 527 68.3
Debt equity ratio* BEE AR 4% 5% -1
* Debt equity ratio = Total borrowings/Equity attributable to the EEERHET = 48152 K ATHEEN S

owners of the Company

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M FS R E

Revenue Total Assets
EXRE WEE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBEEIT BEEBIT
800 706 15,000
600
10,000
396
400 compared to
2019
- 2019 >,000
+78.3%
0 0
2019 2020

14,126

10,997 /

compared to
2019
20196 E

+28.5%

2019 2020

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company Bank Balances and Cash

EATER AELET IRITHEERRIRE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEE®RT BEE®RIT 3.739
800 4,000 :
659
3,057 /
600 3,000

442 compared to
2019
400 compared to 2,000 B2019FE
ﬁazzg?;iﬂ& j223%
200 A 1,000
+49.1%
0
2019 2020 2019 2020
Earnings Per Share* Debt equity Ratio
SREF* BEEARLEE
HK$ Million %
BEEETT Eralss
10.00 0.62 6% 59
250 o \ =
4%
9.00 compared to
3% 2019
850 531 compared to g 2019
2pO19 2% -1%
8.00 820196 E 1%
+15.8%
7.50 0%
2019 2020 2019 2020
@ Adjusted pursuant to the Share Consolidation in March 2020 * 20205345 17 & HFTIEH 2 %
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Dear shareholders, investors, clients, employees and
business partners:

This is my fourth report as the Chairman of the Company’s
board of directors, and my first report as the chairman since the
name change of Shougang Concord International Enterprises
Company Limited to Shoucheng Holdings Limited (“Shoucheng
Holdings”).

This report was finished during my time in quarantine in
Beijing, under the epidemic prevention and control regulations,
in an isolated environment which was beneficial for reflection
and writing, providing enough time to summarise the past year.
In 2020, the pandemic has caused major changes to the world,
which did not hinder us from moving forward with the difficult
external environment due to the great support from all the
employees and partners of the Company.

During the year, the Company generated HK$706 million in
revenue, representing a year-on-year increase of 78%; and
established a leading position of the Company's parking
business in the industry, revenue of which reached HK$481
million, with a year-on-year increase of 172%. There has been a
rapid growth and expansion in the scale of contracted parking
space, with additions of the Shanghai Pudong International
Airport, Qionghai Bo'ao Airport, Beijing Zoo and other iconic
parking lot projects. The infrastructure and real estate fund
management business is in a relatively leading position in the
industry, with a revenue reaching HK$213 million, which is
an increase of 18% from 2019. The Company has steadily
scaled up the fund management in infrastructure and real
estate sector. At the same time, we are welcoming China’s era
of infrastructure REITs, and the Company will also seize the
opportunity to enter this trillion-level market. Driven by the
parking and infrastructure and real estate fund management
business, the profit attributable to shareholders was HK$659
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 49%.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

EHNEEERORR - REA-ER BT
FMARFEF -

ERAEEIRDEFTTIFEMEOMKRE
TEaREAREEARADELRERER
ERAB(TERERNEBNE—MDERRS -

REEBHENER AREEHEIERIE
BEHIE AR HEAMNREANNBENS
B BRERENFEHBEN—FETR
MEo20205F  RIERZBNE THR > BFm
KRB EREWHE T REAINRIRIZR
BIEERMAENMYT -

FR ARBREXERAABIE7.06ET AL
BET8%; AEMEEHITEBNITEEETM
fil BRI Z AR AGZER B 14,8118
FILLIER172% o FEAEANRERARER
g EBRRBIREIBEES  BEEEK
HiEHEG I RBYEEESERREEER -
BRI EESERTTERENAEY
SECHIAL IR AGZE B2 136 T AR N
2019 R18% - AR EM KRB EE
HNWEEEEAERSIGEE  EILFEE > FM
EA R B BB SR FEREITSRF A > A B A M
ARBEANE—BEAT G TFEEHITE
BRERSHEAHERESERENEESHZ T
ERKREELREF B 59T B E
49% o

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K 9



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERES

Over the last four years, we have firmly focused on executing
the strategic reconfigurations of our core businesses. With the
full support of our shareholders and the unremitting efforts
of the employees, the Company divested the Qinhuangdao
steel business, sold the equity interest of Shougang Concord
Century Holdings Limited and ceased the iron ore trade by
selling the long-term hematite ore sale agreement, and decided
to divest the equity interest in Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited in 2021, resulting in completing the preliminary
reconfiguration of the Company’s core businesses. With the
divestiture and restructuring of assets, the Company’s asset
structure has overall improved, and the debt ratio has dropped
from 115% at its peak to the current at 16%. The business
structure of the Company has been fully transformed from a
typical periodic business cycle to spanning economic business
cycle, with good cashflow, health and a stable operation of the
parking and infrastructure and real estate fund management
business. Since the injection of the new core businesses in
2017, the Company’s huge losses lasting for five years has
come to its end, and we have achieved as promised, from 2018
to 2020, a compound annual growth rate of 45% in profit.

Over the past four years, the strategic focus of business has
allowed us to enter into a stage of rapid growth. At present,
the business structure of Shoucheng Holdings is in line with
the strategic direction, the product structure is focused
on the market demands, and the income structure reveals
the capabilities of the operations. We have discovered the
underlying logic of business development and profitable
growth. During the year, the parking and infrastructure and
real estate fund management revenue accounted for 98% of
the total revenue. Our next step is to continue to concentrate
on arming our strengths and advantages, and launching
aggressively.

10 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

MHER BEHNITFEEHREERE ZEMAO
BEE HH—FL - ERRNEAZIFMERK
BARMENT > AEIEBHEET &2 BHH
(B HETEREEERAGRATRKRE
HETHRERARGERILFELLEECGE S 2
B iR202MFARAEHEEHEUERER
BRABIRE TXEREEBELTYT T
HoBEEEENHBNELRA ATNEELS
BU2EHE AEXHESERN115%
THRESKN16% A NEREBI R
FBHAMTE2EEREABEMERE R
ERRT EEETRENEELTERR
BERREAHEESER - B2017F T AM
FTEEEBR NBAFEAFNEBEBEEU
#1F> 201820205 F) BN FHIESIERXE
H45% BERTHRE - BT REEUNHERNK

4

mER EHNERRE BRANZEREA
REBRMER BT BRERNEBGER
BERELIA ERGEBRETHBER WAL
BERTEKEED RMACKERIBERE
MBMNERRNEBREE FR FEHTE
BNERIZEABEESHRAGLEERE
F98% e T =T HFIREBETES N B
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In the past four years, our good business growth and dividend
income have won us more shareholders’ support and greater
market recognition. The market value of the Company has
grown from the lowest point of HK$1.8 billion to HK$14.4
billion (as of 26 March 2021); and the trust and support of
strategic shareholders have all contributed to the development
of the Company. During the past year, shareholders such as
Orix Group, NWS Holdings Limited, Matrix Partners China and
Greater Bay Area Homeland Development Fund LP continued
to increase their holdings, displaying their confidence in the
Company’s long-term growth. In March 2020, the Company’s
shares were included in the Hang Seng Composite Small Cap
Index and trade in Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, with
an average daily stock trading volume in the year reaching 6.61
million shares, representing a year-on-year increase of 70%.
In January 2021, the Company conducted a top-up placing,
which introduced financial investors for the first time, bringing
a better market operation. In order to repay the old and new
investors, the Company has paid dividends of HK$700 million
to shareholders in 2020, and in the last three years, we have
in total paid dividends of HK$2.1 billion to shareholders. In the
near future, with the increase of the Company’s income and
the improvement in operation quality, we continue to be firm
in implementing long-term and high dividend payout plans,
gradually increasing the dividend amounts.

We firmly believe in the strength of China, in the long-term
power, and in the power of persistence. Looking back on the
strategic restructuring in the past four years, we can see that
the strategic direction of the industry is completely correct,
and the market strategy and tactics are effective. Optimistic
judgement by the previous annual reports at the healthy
long term trend of China’s economy, China’s parking and
infrastructure and real estate fund management market has
a huge scale, coinciding in the time of changes happening in
the industry, in which the market is like an ocean where the
business is like a fish, and now the big fish is in big water, so
there are unprecedented opportunities for us to become an
enterprise of excellence.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERES

MR BRIFREBIERM DA  EHRM
HETESHWREZENMBEANMHZRA
NEHERRBENBEI1SETREE B
144275 (20213826 H) - HEREBENEE
M HRARANERIAA R TR
EE -FEREREBRAD KEQEMAE
BHEEREERESARGBERIFTEY
B BRTHABDRPZEENED 202043
B ABIRERMAEEGRESNLRIEH &
ARBRETRZ FRNHHURERZEE
Zl661E KR FLEIER70%2021FE18 AT
ETTHBRE BRIAMBREA B
EMRUENMHET AOEHELEA A
E2020FEERRENDEEBLIEIT - BE=
FOoRMBALRENDAIRE SE B2
BT BEBEADIWNENEREMERLE
mENREA BRMRBEERERTER 538
DA WETIRA DA SRR

HAHBERETENNE HERBHHE
BIEBFNIE LB FERVBBEIEERS
EXENBE TR CEIERRN > TIFAER
BMETZANN ENEEFREFEFE
RERARAENEZHE  PEREEHITN
ERZEIAHEESHHREER XI6E

FURBTKRARN BREMARSEBEE
R TEEMEHE-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IERES

CHAPTER ONE: BORN FOR CHANGE,
OUR MISSION AND

RESPONSIBILITY

There are always certain changes that are our mission endowed
by this era. In reviewing the journey of the last four years of
growth, we are fully confident that Shoucheng Holdings will
arise in becoming a strong leader in the industry. The question
is, what makes a strong industry leader, and how does one
become a strong industry leader?

Our Company endeavours to be China’s leading company in
parking, infrastructure and real estate fund management, and
technological services industries. Being a leader means doing
the things that bring benefits to the society, and doing the
long-term things, which brings long-term values beneficial
to the society and will definitely bring about fundamental
changes to the industry. Change, in fact, is the mission and
responsibility of the industry leader.

To become a strong leader, the core is to raise efficiency of the
whole industry through first-class products and services, and
actually creating value for the users and society. To be a strong
leader, we must have determination, stand firm with the belief
of "precise investment + lean operation”, have the courage to
invest sufficient resources, and have enough patience.

1. Product supply needs change,
value creation remains constant

Parking asset management is an “old” large-scaled
industry, but now this type of scale is in a scattered
status, and there are not many companies with a
nationwide scale. One of the important reasons is in the
stock interests game, there exists many stereotypes and
grey areas. Hence this market was once very strange,
on one hand, parking fees seem to make big profits, on
the other hand, almost all large and medium-sized cities
have a problem with parking difficulties.

12 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

AELEMAE > IRV E
mERE

BB L0 BB IS B B VAR T Fe BT (€ 5 o 2]
BEUYEE B8 R A2 » FE P15 00 o » B IE1EAR
RNEZTIEE > 75 BT R BY % E o BIE=E
18] 75 BIEBY R 5 » LIl 7 SRIE B & 7

ABAERATHEEFERTRERRE
EREREEEANKRBONBREE - F
m—ERAEEMHLIGEEEEENSE
WRANE EBAUSAIERMEENS
DR BITERRBREMENNE  NEERE
FEENEmEEE-

BEREZEREZVAAELNARE ZOEEB
—RMERMNRE  BABETENRE B
EHRBPMNLERIEEE BEMARLNA
E RAGARBE BR TBERE+Bx
REINERES BRNRARHNEIR
RITESHBIM O o

1~ EmftaFEERE

FHEEERER—EHENIRERN
TR EBRET BERER TBUNEL A
WS 2B AB -—ERBENEELF
Z HP-—EEEZRAMERFENT
B ZEZEXRERNRRE B MK
B -PAINERTHE —ERFZE —
HFEFFERECLFRER  5—H@E
BEXPEEHEFEHEFETFEHD

B o



To this regard, | have raised three questions to the
partners of the Company: firstly, whether our work
has, in reality, increased the supply of more parking
spaces, improved parking space usage efficiencies,
and effectively solved problems with parking difficulty,
which resulting in providing customers with more and
better options; secondly, whether our products are good
enough and have vitality to change people's lifestyle
that making us often think of and feel excited when
we are old; thirdly, will our children, years from now,
be proud of our hard work and perseverance in the
parking industry at Shoucheng Holdings? On the basis of
the discussion of these three questions, what we need
to achieve is to give customers the best products, to
provide the market with the best solutions, and not to
be trapped by the industry’'s outdated and conventional
ways, not to be caught up with immediate interests,
meanwhile insisting on creating more and better
incremental projects to solve the problem of difficulties
in parking and mobilizing the stock by the increments,
benefiting others whilst benefiting ourselves. We
have decided to persevere in working hard to improve
operational efficiency, by insisting on a people-oriented
concept and leveraging technological support to fully
improve the parking lots usage efficiency, in addition,
through a standardisation and scaled mode of operation,
by giving users an improved efficient comfortable
experience and introducing appropriately diversified
value-added services. We are dedicated to create a
parking lot with warmth, emotion and culture.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EERES

it A AR HMELE =@M
B —REMANIFFRSEEEMT
FEHE - EATEEUNANEX A
MBERTFEHNBE EMAER
RTUEZ BHVESZ, _ERMANE
mELENES ELEERESRE
Ean 1 SESNEAMEEZSN ER
MEEEERZRKELEREAERZ
HE=—RETERAMNTFULEDR
RFAREFELTERX TEREER
SHI - HBEFARIBH?ERE
—EmEENSR RPAEMNESE
FRERFHNER LHHRERERY
BERGE > FERIRTENRRR
BoAUERBRANNEER BES
HERIEEZ EHFNIEEIEE  BR
FHEENESE TREEWHFE T
thmA S - RFRESNHERAEE
MR ETHEIR UABRE > EEH
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Ko BERELC - HBRCHEZRAR
ERERESUTENRGRER B
ESIAZTEEERS  TEE R
E-BBER-BXIEHERES-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Such values and concepts are recognised by more and
more customers, and more and more companions are
joining us. During the year, in Nanjing, the Company
through various ways, such as franchise, PPP, setting up
guiding funds, at Nanjing city’s Qinhuai District, Jianye
District, and Gulou District, simultaneously implemented
laying out the urban nodes such as public parking lot
and implemented comprehensive traffic management of
the area, in which the public parking lot of PPP project
that we had partnered together with the Qinghuai
District was enlisted as a Jiangsu Province trial project.

Business model needs optimisation,
efficiency improvement remains constant

The Company stands firm with the concept of “precise
investment + lean operation”, whilst precise investment
is not easy and lean operation is even harder; combining
the two enables the building of a moat mechanism for
the Company’s long-term development.

Investment is not as easy as we think. Investment
comes from profound understandings, and is a process
of conversion from knowing to reality. In the past
few years, in the area of equity investment alone,
tens of thousands of fund management companies
have emerged, although unsure of how many are
still operating, | believe that the majority of them
are struggling, and many institutions will even
become in the end for ultimate investors a baptism.
Along with accumulation of capital, resources and
talents, investment must be capitalised to the leading
companies, and if not being the dominant company,
the chances of survival and growth will be very low. We
know deep down that the Company’s resources base
and capability circle require us to stay focused on our
individual lanes. We must use the Tianji's horse racing
strategy, we must give our hearts into research, be in-
depth and detailed in raising the efficiency of resource
allocations, and finally head towards being a leading
company.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Operation is not as simple as we think. Operation is
not simply choosing one or two professional managers
by matching with a market-oriented system that could
achieve business targets. Even more so today, is the
era that advanced production capabilities rapidly
overtakes outdated production capabilities. Whether
choosing a general in an army, or training an army in
an organisation, or whether technology, capital, etc.
in the type of armoury equipping, these all require
in-depth thinking, splitting every valuable piece of
work, in accordance with the right rhythm, into the
smallest units, into each individual’s work habits. In this
way there can be a continual increase in operational
efficiency, there can be opportunities to stand out
amongst the killings in the ruthless market.

“Precise investment + lean operation” is where our
biggest feature lies. Just like hunting and farming are
complementary, so are mutual support and mutual
promotion; and will create much greater long-term value
for investors when we persevere in it.

Investment environment needs change,
principles remains constant

There is nothing permanent except change, and we
react to unlimited changes by sticking to a fundamental
principle. Behind the “precise investment + lean
operation” business model is our “low frequency, large
amounts, no empowerment no investment” principle.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EERES

BPAERTIEKERBET KEF
EEHEEI—EMEBELEA K
EHGENEEIMEZENRER - 5X
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Investment is a job with very high challenge and puts
human nature to the test. Hidden with imaginative
predictions of future returns, filled with unlimited
possibilities, it is easy for people to be lost in it and
hence the investment reports usually only focus on
the potential opportunities, while indifferent or even
ignoring the risks involved, and after an investment is
made, it lets luck decide on the win or loss. In this way,
the chance of success is very low, and even if there is
a success, the sustainability is questionable. Only by
grabbing onto the inherent logic of industry evolution,
understanding the changes caused by innovative
technology, and increasing chances of catching hot
projects, the real opportunity will become visible. Only
when better industries and excellent enterprises are
found and the most amount of investment funds is
placed, making a large-scaled saturated investment,
will there be a greater chance of making profit. At
the same time, only together with the invested team
and with the strategic patience to stay planted in the
industry, to jointly lift the long-term production value of
the operation capability, there will be continuous profit
opportunities.

Those who are content and don't put up a fight, they
win well without fighting. Many opportunities may be
missed with this type of strategy, however, we fight
a dull battle, putting in honest hard work to build a
stronghold. We are not that clever, and many things
are not as far-sighted as fire or wind, but the long-term
accumulation of subdivisions of the industry allow us
to do enough thinking. Even if at the investment stage
in some areas we have not thought through clearly,
enhancements can be made after in the post investment
management phase. This is the investment and business
operations relationship of mutual internal correlation,
and we are simultaneously having two perspectives,
fulfilling two types of practices, equipped with two types
of abilities to properly invest in and empower good
businesses.
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During the year, the invested enterprises Beijing Bayi
Space LCD Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bayi Space”,
SH.688181), Li Auto Inc. (Li), etc. went to the capital
market, and the three equity investment funds managed
by the Company had total fund yields of 42%, 132%,
and 21%, with cash return rates of 45%, 442%, and
105% respectively. The Company equity investment
business is expected to bring excess returns. | would
like to sincerely thank the founders and teams of
the invested enterprises, as they are truly great value
creators!

We choose the toughest way, but we believe that this
is also the correct way. In response to competition, it
is of utmost importance to survive, surviving means
having a chance to be the strongest leader, and all the
work revolves around how to create value. The cohesion
and synergy of precise investment and lean operation is
the core competitiveness of the Company, just as Sun
Tzu's concept of using soldiers to fight together then
winning by innovation, those that are conventional and
unconventional will switch roles with one another in turn
in time and place, and will achieve outstanding growth
and outcome.
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CHAPTER TWO:

BORN FOR INNOVATION, OUR
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Products must win over customers. The positions of our

products shall face the future, hence continuous product

improvements are necessary and the speed to marketing and

promotion needs to accelerate.

18

Parking products evolve continuously

City level products are the point of entry in speedily
occupying the parking market in regional core cities and
surrounding satellite cities. The focus is placed on the
city’s concentrated core areas to create a network of
urban travel nodes.

Parking lots as city node links between cities, serving
online connects, and face the future. From a city point of
view, it is where dynamic and static traffic points meet,
information and data flows are generated and merged
into one another. From an online connect point of
view, it is where online virtualization with offline reality
meets, where online businesses are grounded and offline
business are upgraded to clouds. From a future point of
view, it is where the new changes to transport modes
meet old fixed modes of transport, where today’'s “one
dimensional and two-dimensional parking lot” will be
changed into “three-dimensional and four-dimensional
city node”, turning into the best place to carry out the
transport industry’s new services, new energy, new
technology, new consumptions, and new infrastructure.
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Since the Company entered into the parking industry,
it has always been acknowledging parking spaces as
an important node of urban city travel. We uphold the
principle of “key cities, core locations, quality parking
spaces”, and in key urban regions, we continue to
steadily dig deep and keep on promoting the municipal
parking products, bringing commercial parking
products and roadside parking products to the ground,
constructing a regional grade static all-in-one integrated
traffic combined service network.

The Company is not blindly planning in entering a new
city as we strongly believe that only in a centralised
area can the service density be strong, service locations
become more, and this is how we can truly create
a parking lot that can face the future. We insist on
investing in technology, and begin with improvements
in operational efficiency, we have the courage to be the
first with technological investments to lead the industry
in development.

Market expansion is in acceleration

The perfecting of the products and the maturing of
the team has brought about an increased efficiency in
expansion.

Some parts of this asset were greatly impacted by
the epidemic. However, the temporary difficulties did
not suspend our innovative footsteps, instead making
us improve operational efficiency, seek change and
innovate under pressure. Acquiring long-term operation
rights can ensure transportation hub project operations
will go through the tough times and silently wait for
flowers to bloom, while improving the operation team’s
ability will bring us more seasons of spring in our garden
of projects.
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In addition, we have obtained the parking spaces
management rights of Shanghai Pudong International
Airport P1 and P2 parking lots, Qionghai Bo'ao Airport
parking lots, echoing with Beijing Daxing International
Airport, Beijing Capital International Airport, forming
a chain type operation covering nationwide six-airport
parking facilities.

During the year, the Company further solidified the
leading position in the transport hub project, with a
total of 7,000 new transport hub parking spaces added.
Among them, the high-speed railway station parking
lot continued to exert its strength. On the basis of
having the right to operate the parking lot of Beijing
and Tangshan stations, we also obtained all the parking
space operation rights of the three high-speed railway
stations in Beijing and Chengdu during the year. The
high-speed railway stations are usually close to the
centre of the city, where population is dense and the
combined surrounding environment is complicated,
hence made immediate impacts on the surrounding
traffic. The Company is recognised by customers with
positive feedback on solving the issues related to parking
lot traffic flow and in bearing a high volume turnover
rate.

During the year, new BOT projects were fully
accelerated. After stepping on many trenches, and
accumulating a considerable amount of experience, we
have a better understanding of the new BOT projects. In
China’s large and medium size cities, there exists a great
shortage of car parking spaces, especially in the older
areas of the large cities, which aggravates the conditions
of traffic congestion of large cities, and through the
building of parking complexes.
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The Company helps to provide the cities additional
parking spaces, reforming structurally on the side,
providing the city's static traffic supply. Single
standalone parking building is at the same time an
open building, and the building is an important urban
node that can provide more than parking, including
convenient services for the local public, for example, at
the start of the design of our newly built BOT parking
building, we reserved space for different types of
parking scenario choices, such as suitable for providing a
solution to electric charging services, which can extend
easily with the parking management to make charging
service available for new energy vehicles.

During the year, we began construction projects in
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Area, the southeast region, and
Chengdu Chongging region. 3,000 parking spaces have
been put into operation with a building area of 151.7
thousand square meters, and a total of 10 construction
projects are in construction; and it is estimated that
in 2021, there will be 50 construction projects with a
construction area of 758.5 thousand square meters.
The new BOT projects can gather advantages on all
fronts, helping the cities to alleviate parking problems,
improving the urban space environments, making
better the efficiency of transport operations, and also
form a wholistic closed loop of investment, finance,
management and withdrawal, reducing financial
pressure. This is the Company’s key focus of future
work.
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During the year, we rapidly developed urban roadside
parking spaces with 18,800 new spaces. Roadside
products are an important way to establish “from one
point to an area” and “combine inside and outside”
avenues. With roadside products, the urban node
parking buildings become static traffic city service
networks, the “base stations” in urban city traffic service
networks, unifying the management of both inside and
outside parking spaces, and forming a longitude and
latitude of an urban city traffic service network that
further strengthens the service capacity and expansion of
the service radius.

Our team’s market development ability continues rising
towards maturity, however, this speed of improvement
is still not fast enough. In the next three years, the
Company will reach the yearly expansion target of
150,000 parking spaces. To this end, during the year,
four regional companies were established in Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei Area, Chengdu-Chongqging Area,
Southeast region and the Greater Bay Area to meet the
needs of regionalising the layout of parking business.
We study the establishment of the battle systems to
ensure the regional team’s operation, and decentralise
the decision making process according to the
implementation of the regional business and the regional
team’s maturity level, so that those who can hear the
gunfire can call for gunfire and direct the battle from the
ground, which ensures flexibility and mobility in landing
the business regionally.
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Business collaboration value is visible

Shoucheng Holdings has already made parking, and
infrastructure and real estate fund management its
core businesses. Our parking business is mainly long-
term operating rights, new BOT projects and property
rights holding projects, having high demand and low
operational cost characteristics. The long-term stable
leases bring in steady cash flow, and this is considered
as very high quality infrastructure and real estate. At the
same time, in the field of infrastructure and real estate
fund management, we use the “fund + base + industry”
model, using the fund investment to send out industrial
resources and effectively increase the asset values.

Our main business is naturally synergistic with each
other. On one hand, through infrastructure and
real estate fund business, more high level strategic
partnerships are built, consolidating our partners’
parking resources and bringing collaborations,
effective in bringing about growth to the parking
business development. On the other hand, through
the infrastructure and real estate fund, there is an
accumulated resource pool of customer experiences,
thereby parking assets can be effectively changed from
heavy to light, to support for further expansion of
parking business. The Company established a parking lot
fund during the year, expecting a subsequent setup for
parking fund to bring about new growth profit points
for the Company.

In the future, our infrastructure and real estate fund
business will welcome a new dividend policy, along with
the nation’s pilot work in infrastructure and real estate
investment trust fund (REITs). Good quality infrastructure
assets in parking, the urban city renewal, together with
our ability in the fund management field, being in line
with national policy orientation, the regional layout of
the existing good quality assets is also highly consistent
with the key areas of policy focus which indicates
promising prospects.
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During the year, the infrastructure and real estate
fund management business focused on the quality
of its building ability and on product refinement,
whilst upholding the “precise investment + lean
operation” belief, and turned fund management to
asset management. Three urban renewal projects were
managed by the Company and three special funds
were set up respectively. We honoured the policy of
customer first, and started with the end in mind, we
developed project positioning, architectural designs, and
civil construction work, based on the customer needs.
Judging by the current project progress, it is expected
that we will be bringing reasonable good profits for the
fund investors.

Beijing’s Chang’an Street “Chang’an Mills” project will
start business operation at the end of 2021, the total
construction area is 224 thousand square meters. As of
February 28, the rate of contracts signed is over 29%.
“Chang’an Mills” is different to the traditional “big box”
commercial with office building structure. 23 individual
buildings spread out around the landscapes of West
Beijing, amongst which, Shanghai NEOBIO Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd. ("NEOBIO"), a one stop brand for
growing families, catering specially to children, providing
fun international family experiences, will open its first
super flagship store in Beijing at the “Chang’an Mills”.
A leader of the China’s catering industry, namely Yum
China will also build their first concept fusion store in
“Chang’an Mills”.

|u

The construction area of Shouying International Center
on Chang'an Street is 388 thousand square meters,
which is located on the Chang’an’s golden axis to boost
finance and capital, web and technology, and upgrade
the manufacturing industry, which demonstrates a new
benchmark for innovative integration.
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The construction area of the new Shougang
International Talent Community project is 200 thousand
square meters and is positioned with focus on the digital
entertainment industry, via co-empowerment of art,
technology and IP, building West Beijing a traffic flowing
landmark.

These three projects will take the Company on a
qualitative leap in asset management of office buildings
and commercial complexes.

Furthermore, the Company’s joint venture Vstartup
completed round B of investment this year, with a
valuation of almost HK$1 billion, in comparison to the
Company’s founding of Vstartup, there is a substantial
valuation increase. The main business of Vstartup is
property management operation, including apartments,
office buildings and other commercial buildings, with
an operation area covering over 500,000 square meters
in Beijing. Vstartup has served customers including
Bytedance, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
New Oriental, TAL Education Group and many other
well-known companies. In creating better return on
investment for the Company, Vstartup also established
an operation team for parking service in smart
communities and Hutongs, and infrastructure and real
estate fund project, contributing to the Company’s main
business development.
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CHAPTER THREE: BORN FOR EXCELLENCE,

OUR OPERATION AND
TECHNOLOGY

| believe an excellent operation system is built on three essential

elements, these are product, operation, and technological

strength. In this past year, our products are continuously

evolving, as at present and in the future, continuous

improvements of operational capabilities and technological

strengths are critical to staying competitive.
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Operational Optimisation

Parking spaces are the basics of a mobile vehicle's
essential supporting facility, in the same way that
railway transits need stations, planes need airports, and
steamships need harbours. As cars move with a high
degree of freedom and personalised trips, thus, the last
three types of movement distribution is a point or line
trip type, different from the parking spaces, which in the
city must be mapped out as net shaped distribution and
ensure sufficient density.

Parking spaces serve cars and drivers and the number
of car drivers is similar to the number of middle-
income population in China. This customer group has
characteristics of an eagerness to travel by car, and
highly valuing time. At the same time in Chinese cities,
there is coexisting dilemma of serious insufficiencies of
parking space supply and a low usage rate of existing
parking spaces. The Company upholds the principle of
“precise investment + lean operation”, and returns to
the origin of the parking space, taking account of many
years of hard work and exploration by our team to
establish the concept of modern parking management in
China:
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i)

Awaken vitality of parking assets,
conversion from extensive property facilities
management towards professional asset
management.

A majority of the parking lots in the market
service mainly tenants and owners of the building
on the ground, caring less about surrounding
static traffic or potential customers, meanwhile
the parking lots management personnels and
owners of the parking lots use a short-term
rewards based cooperation model, which is the
reason why currently cities in China do not have
over 20% of usage of parking spaces. We have
established a long-term business collaboration
model with owners, fully utilising the enthusiasm
of the parking lot managers, putting additional
traffic planning in place, marketing and managing
the relationship of the public and government,
and on the premise of ensuring the customers
in the main building receive quality service,
better the surrounding traffic signage, increase
the surrounding dynamic and static traffic
management and marketing efforts to customers,
in order to provide service to more drivers and
cars, and design diversified parking operation
products according to the surrounding profiles of
customers.
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ii)

Leverage parking price and provide
diversified products ranging from single
hourly rent and monthly rent to flexible
pricing.

Parking service products are similar to airline
seating service and hotel room service, these
belong to “perishable goods” in terms of
economics, as when these goods are unsold
within a specified period of time, their value will
return to zero. In 2020, the Company increased
research and reforming efforts for the parking
price system, trialing flexible price of diversified
products in several projects, increasing parking
pricing combinations on parking lots with
low usage rate of parking spaces, promoting
efficiency in parking lot usage and increase in
total revenues. In 2021, the Company, on the
basis of successful experiences, plans to further
develop the flexible pricing system, decentralise
the power of price setting and operation
product design to regional offices or parking
lot managers, together with a comprehensive
project assessment and incentivised system, in
an endeavour to take another step up on the
Company's parking lot utilisation and total
revenue.
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Technological empowerment

Due to traditional parking operations in the past
being based on single parking lot and short-term cost-
oriented contracts, the current parking management
systems mostly cannot fulfil the modern parking
management needs. Hence, the Company developed
the “SONIC” parking management system, and in 2020
implemented it across the board and it was obvious
that the operational efficiency rose. The Company's
research and development ability kept improving
throughout the development of the “SONIC” system,
and the Company’s subsidiaries have gained access to
the qualification of new high tech enterprises, and the
technological product systems continue to be enhanced,
basically completing the development work of system
platform with various application scenes and our own
intellectual property rights. Presently, the digital parking
system has solved problems of entering and exiting
parking lots, search for car and parking fees “leaking”
problems, effectively relieving the main pain point for
drivers currently, which is how easy it is to find a parking
lot with available parking spaces, and whether the
parking lots can provide more enjoyable and convenient
travel services.
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We are not satisfied with the intelligent management
mode at the parking lot level. In 2021, the Company will
increase the scientific and technological research and
development of online operation products, fully explore
the “parking space level” intelligent management
mode, strive to disassemble the operational work to the
smallest unit and settle it into the operation system,
continue to increase investment in technological research
and development, implant advanced technologies such
as A.l. vision, geomagnetism, VR navigation to creat
a digital smart parking lot model room. In facing the
future, the automatic parking function needs automatic
driving system to interact in real-time with the carpark’s
physical data to complete the parking, payment, and
departure, etc. of vehicle movements. In the future,
empowerment of technology is an emphasis of the
Company to integrate technical means to achieve
online and offline interactions, deliver a personalised
parking product, to keep improving the operation
and management efficiency and customer experience,
forming a diversified business system around the parking
settings.

Our experience accumulated in various parking
scenes supports the intelligent traffic system from the
bottom up and the intelligent traffic system covers all
the situations, which is a complementary top down
system. The positioning of science and technology
sector in the Company’'s operation is to actively
promote the improvement of operation efficiency and
provide technical support for innovation and value-
added through comprehensive science and technology
empowerment. The “SONIC" system will be built into
a first-class combined parking management platform in
China, focused around the actual demands and future
trends of the parking settings, providing an industry-
leading digital solution for static traffic, assisting
Shoucheng Holdings to become a leading enterprise in
China’s parking industry.
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CHAPTER FOUR: BORN FOR THE EVERLASTING,
OUR ORGANIZATION AND

CULTURE

Once the strategy and the route is confirmed, the team
becomes a critical decision-making factor. An excellent team
is necessary no matter how great the strategy is, and our
organization and culture is the soil in which we continue to
attract and cultivate high-quality talents.

“Precise investment + lean operation” are the competitiveness
of the Company, but the biggest difficulty in combining the
two lies in building the organization. Precise investment is
based on a number of investment assumptions, however the
core of the value predictions is the leadership team of the
invested enterprise, if this team is much more excellent than
getting full scores, then even if faced with many challenges,
they are able to overcome them easily. Moreover, lean
operation requires many partners to put in effort together, at
a certain point in time some of the partners might score above
100 points, some of them are scoring at 90 or 80 points, or
even below 60 points. How to provide a bigger platform for
outstanding talents, to help the partners scoring at 80 or 90
points to become more outstanding, and help the partners with
lower scores reduce the rate of falling behind, is a challenge
to organisation construction, and also the charm of the
organisation.

In the past few years, along with the transformation of the
strategies and expansion of business scale, currently the
number of directly managed employees is 458, with a year
on year increase of 23.1%; and 1,481 outsourcing employees
serving the Company through outsourced work, with a year
on year increase of 28.4%. We hope the Company is a warm
and evolving business community, in which the integration
of employees” growth with the Company’s developments
complement each other. We believe that the resonance of the
mission of the business and the recognition of the core values
can help the team to achieve the same desire from top to
bottom, and to be the firm fellow companions and partners in
the business.
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To this end, we try to build up a highly efficient, vigorous,
enterprising through a flat organisation, operating with
simplified rules, professional collaboration of a “Yuanyang
Array” team, and matching the incentive mechanism for both
individual and the enterprise to achieve a win-win situation. A
group of employees with a common mission and vision gather
to ensure the implementation of strategies and business results.
However, we are also clearly aware that the sense of mission
and cultural recognition requires to be run-in and precipitated.
There is still a lot of room for improvement and optimization
of organizational management capabilities, we will continue to
endeavour to build organisation structure, operational system,

benefit sharing, talent training and consensus of values.

1. Optimisation of organisational governance
and structure

In meeting with the needs of the business development,
the Company entered the stage where headquarters
operates for strategic management. The annual business
plan and annual budget was promoted to a five-year
business target — 3-year business plan — 1-year business
plan (a 5-3-1 budget system), as the set foundation
for growing the Company’s business in continuity. We
are trying to reach a clear hierarchical structure with
strategic management, daily business management and
front-end business performing their duties; a closed
loop management so that the strategies and plans
run throughout the budget management system, and
performance indicators can effectively identify key
results, long-term value can be rewarded.
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The Company's corporate governance structure is
further optimised. The executive committee, consisting
of the Company's core executives implements the
arrangements of the general meeting of shareholders
and the board of directors, conducts strategic planning,
strategic and tactical transformations, and improves
the efficiency and effectiveness of the Company’s
decision-making and considerations of major issues;
in the operation and implementation level, an initial
establishment of the president’s office meeting
was made as the core of the daily operation and
management system, which is responsible for the
Company’s overall management and implementation of
strategies. During the year, the Company also invited Mr.
Li Wei, a member of the executive committee to be the
president of the Company.

Based on the in-depth business expansion, the
organisational system of each business segment
has been further optimized. A “small but precise”
professional team has been formed at multiple levels
such as business and projects, where equity, special
expansions, fundraising, REITs, urban renewal projects all
began to build a battlefront array in line with their own
business features. The regional company established
by the parking segment is the integrated of business
expansion and operation, at the same time, ensuring the
effective decomposition and landing of the objectives,
to unleashing the team with their total enthusiasm,
facilitating the team and Company to grow together. As
the business team continues to mature, the Company
will continue to decentralise authority, so that the day of
those who hear the gunfire making effective decisions
can come earlier.
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Operation procedures and rules simplification

The rapid development of business and the rapid
iteration of organisation structure require us to build
the simplest system of procedures and rules. On one
hand to reduce decision-making levels. After years of
exploring, we have established a “small but precise”
authorisation management system around the core
business process, core finance, human resource, internal
control management process, and reward and penalty
system, to achieve an orderly and efficient organisational
operation. On the other hand, the system attempts to
make policy-makers speak with clarity and conciseness,
allowing the implementors to be able to understand,
accept and execute, and for this purpose, we gradually
established a process system, from establishment, the
process is of seeking opinions, publishing, executing,
obtaining feedback and iteration, especially in the three
parts of seeking opinions, publishing, executing and
feedback — these come from various forms such as staff
meetings, discussions and live broadcasts. Directly facing
employees, in turn, makes the process system design
even easier to be understood and implemented.

Increase talent induction and training

The Company is a “migrant corporation”. For many
years we have continued to recruit talents of excellence,
and we look forward to bringing them together. In
reaping the benefits of business development, the
setbacks and repeated experiences, we have become
thoroughly aware that the Company’s internal
motivation of moving the business forward is due to
the collective team rather than a solitary individual. In
the future, we will transform from talent aggregation to
talent management and training.
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During the year, we were active in recruiting various
kinds of talents to enrich our team. In the whole year,
15 middle and senior executives were recruited, and
some colleagues have become leaders in the Company’s
subdivisions already, for example, Mr. Lian Feng, who
possesses over 20 years of commercial real estate
investment management experience, and worked in
Jones Lang Lasalle Incorporated for 15 years, and in
May of 2020 officially joined the Company. He finished
building the core fundraising team, and achieved the
realisation of the strategic urban renewal segment
“investment and leasing first” in a short time. Within
half a year, Mr. Lian Feng led the team to accumulate
intentions of leases of over 1 million square meters,
delivering the Company’s first commercial real estate
project “Chang’an Mills” to achieve a pre-leasing rate of
nearly 30% six months before the official delivery. Apart
from the “Chang’an Mills”, Mr. Lian Feng and his team
also assisted the International Talent Community and
the Southeast projects in project positioning and pre-
fundraising work.

At the same time, we combined work with training,
and launched the employee training system, to support
the rapid growth of the employees and established
an enterprise talent team. Through the Shoucheng
Holding's subsidiary training brand “Can + Academy”,
under the empowerment of “leadership, cohesion,
company strategy, organisation and human resources”,
a training program for middle and senior executives was
launched. Amongst the first 40 trainees, Mr. Liu Hongyi,
who joined the team in January of 2015, was once
responsible for the construction of the parking business
risk system, preliminary surveying for developing project
and review management. After finishing the middle
and senior executives training, he took initiative to
apply to change his position from a mid-level office
support department to front-end business department,
and he is now the general manager of the southeast
region company, responsible for the operation of the
parking lot complex, intelligent parking products, etc. in
Shanghai, Nanjing, and other cities. | believe that under
his leadership, the southeast regional Company can
successfully complete regional expansion and operation
tasks.
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We also place importance on training and the
appointment of outstanding employees and grassroots
employees.

Ms. Li Jinhui joined the Company in July of 2018 after
leaving her military service. She started out working
in the operation support department, then according
to the needs of the Company, in 2020 she submitted
to the Company's allocation to relocate to Chengdu-
Chongging Company, becoming a member of the
expansion team. She learnt quickly on the job and grew,
she is able to transform from being a novice in the area
of expansion to becoming a backbone in the business,
from a supporting collaborative role to capable of taking
sole responsibility.

Ms. Yang Di, joined the Company in 2019 as a member
of the equity investment department. She successively
developed and operated an expansion of nearly 20,000
parking spaces, and created a new product line for
the Company. Prior to this, she worked in legal affairs
in real estate, having a wealth of experience in large-
scale commercial real estate merger projects and has
a lawyer’s rigorous logic. This undoubtedly adds a
stepping stone and safety valve for the Company to
invest in large-scale merger projects and obtain high-
quality parking lot real estates.
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Mr. Liu Haihua, started as a parking lot toll collector and
has been the deputy manager of Beijing Lutong Shunjie
Parking Management Co., Ltd. (“Lutong Shunjie”),
assisting in the overall management of the expansion,
operation, and his team is the first to make the
“integration of expansion and operation” happen. At
the end of 2017, he and his team joined the Company
following the Company’s acquisition of Lutong Shunjie,
fully integrating into the Company, and successively
participated in the formation of Tangshan Intelligent City
Static Transportation Industry Development Co., Ltd.
and Nanjing Jianye Intelligent Static Traffic Service Co.,
Ltd., thus laying a solid foundation for the Company to
establish an operation management system around the
nation. Presently, he is responsible for the operation of
Beijing area except for the airport line, in charge of over
tens of thousands parking spaces.

Ms. Chen Ling, joined the Company in February 2018.
She came from the traditional property management
industry, joined the Company and now is the manager
of the Chengdu High-tech Zone public parking lot. She
consciously practices modern parking management
beliefs and leads the team to actively conduct marketing
to the surrounding customers, customising design
of product and service, putting effort into improving
the parking spaces utilisation rate and return rates.
Especially in 2020, even under the impact of COVID-19,
she stayed in the frontline of epidemic prevention, took
the initiative to innovate, adjusted on multiple fronts,
taking on various measures, and achieved 40% revenue
growth in several projects she was in charge of.

We continue to firmly push forward the team
optimisation iteration for those performances that do
not meet expectations, where the development speed
lags behind the Company’s needs, or when employees
have different values and beliefs, so as to maintain
the team’s energy and progress. Of course, the best
way to train talents is winning one after another.
The Company’s biggest competitive advantage is the
collective group of talents and wisdom.
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Organisational incentive and constraint
improvements

Guided by performance, ability and values, we establish
and continually improve a market competitive salary
incentive scheme, sufficiently ensuring employees pay
matches their work, to retain and attract talents as much
as possible.

During the year, we magnified the performance based
salary incentive and penalty, optimised the project
reward scheme, optimised storage project rewards
based on actual performance contributions, and added
new partial project rewards based on the Company's
incremental business development situations. A more
flexible reward and penalty mechanism has further
tapped the positive initiative of employees and
added new vitality to the Company’s performance
development.

Incentivising and restraining are mutually complementary,
in designing and using the incentive scheme, we
also form a closed loop system, by matching with
a synchronised corresponding restraint scheme. We
implement a strict risk liability fund system for middle
and senior management, launching a full follow-up
investment mechanism, further breaking down the
annual bonus structure and details of performance
completion. Through a series of reforms, we aim to have
the middle and senior executives share the risks together
with the Company, and allow all the employees to share

the profits with the Company.
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Shaping common values

Values not only decide the cohesion and agility of the
Company, but also affect the organisation’s way of
thinking and behaving. If all the employees have right
values, they can have similar ways of executing, and will
work hard for the common goal.

During the year, with the hope of the employees to
work according to the same value orientation and
code of conduct, we promoted the core values through
multiple ways such as role model selection, publicity, and
implementation of a 360 degree evaluation, etc. From
major issues to decision-making and deliberation, to
daily disputes and contradictions, more and more of our
colleagues will cite the Company’s values as a measure
of evaluation and judgment. For the new employees,
they can also readily understand and integrate into the
Company through these core values.

In the organisation establishment process, there is
more for us to look forward to. Such an example is
that we believe a team of business partners with high
stability, loyalty, and commitment is the cornerstone of
a company’s everlasting foundation. Another example is
that we believe technology means such as digitalisation,
informatization and intelligentization of enterprise
operations are vital supports for the organization, and
are also the core links for us to build a future intelligent
and smart organisation. A further example is that we
realise our organisation is not open enough, unable to
be inclusive of everything, and in terms of acquiring and
consolidating the Company and teams, many things are
not well thought through yet and lack empowerment.
There are also various problems that occur daily, but we
believe the problems and shortcomings are signs and
motivation for progress, only by working hard every day
can we accomplish becoming a great enterprise.
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In the last few years, the Company has focused on
strategic adjustment and industry focus. Five years
onwards, can we become a leading enterprise in the
parking industry, and can we become a leader in the field
of infrastructure and real estate? At present, no matter
the revenue scale or organisational efficiency, there is still
a huge gap in benchmarking with international first-class
enterprises, and this requires us to give much more effort
to achieve “ten times better”, to turn the blueprint into a
business in reality.

The Company may still have many issues and ambitious
goals need more outstanding people to be on the same
path, solving problems in the process of moving forward,
till we finally arrive at the dream on the other shore. |
hereby would like to invite partners who are aspiring,
capable and willing to join us to co-create the future.
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CHAPTER FIVE: OUTLOOK

In the parking industry, internationally there are leading
enterprises that are already mature, the scale of our parking
spaces is not even one tenth of the global scale, and single
parking spaces utilisation rate has more room for improvement.
We believe China will surely give birth to world-class
benchmark enterprises, having the largest global market, the
highest technology content and the best returns on revenue.

We believe in the infrastructure funding industry, the pilot
policy of infrastructure public offering REITs is another major
innovation of China’s asset securitisation, and it is given by
the era in time for the Company to be deeply planted in the
industry, an opportunity to operate with precise investment and
lean operation, furthermore the times have given the Company
more opportunities to serve high quality first equity owners and
investors. In five years, the Company plans to expand the scale
of the infrastructure fund management to USD10 billion, and
achieve proposed goal for 2027 as mentioned in the past years’
Chairman’s report. With the help of the opportunity given by
the REITs times, asset managers equipped with lean operation
capabilities can fundamentally improve the management of
liquid assets and create long-term value for the investors.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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The equity investment team is a special force of the Company’s
future development. We will establish more than three market-
oriented equity investment funds in segment industry, and
strive to maintain the history of fund excess returns. At the
same time, with the perspective of equity investment, to better
examine the vertical investment and horizontal mergers and
acquisitions in the upstream and downstream of the parking
and infrastructure industry chain, and to understand the signals
leading to change, in time, and seize the industry opportunities.
The Company is only at a start in the industry of parking and
infrastructure, we will carefully introduce those who are able
to synergise with the Company on industry and resources as
strategic investors, forming great power, to ultimately bring to
reality the maximum long-term value of returns for investors.

I would like to sincerely thank the new and old shareholders,
partners and employees and all sectors of society for your
strong support! The Company reaches today’'s growth by the
process of thinking, doing, learning, and innovating, along
with adhering strictly to the right path, dutiful in running hard,
and is fortunate to be successful! It is with the help of many
others that our company became what it is today. We shall not
disappoint all shareholders, partners and employees, and put all
our heart and strength into developing our business and do as
what we say!
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Tianyang, aged 40, was appointed an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 January 2018 and is also a member and
the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
degree in science and a Master degree in economics from
Peking University and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business. Mr. Zhao joined Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (&
£EAMRAE, “Shougang Group”) in December 2011. He
is a deputy general manager of Shougang Group, a director
of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding"”) and, a director and the general manager of Beijing
Shougang Fund Co., Ltd. Jt REEEHE R A5, “Shougang
Fund”). Both Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Each of
Shougang Group, Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund is a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Zhao
worked in The China Securities Regulatory Commission, Beijing
Municipal Commission of Development and Reform and Peking
University. He has extensive experience in company operation
and management, investment and capital operation.
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Mr. Xu Liang, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is also a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. He graduated
from Fudan University with a Bachelor degree in Statistics
and obtained a Master degree in Business Administration
from Tsinghua University and is a senior accountant. Mr. Xu
joined the group of Shougang Group in 1988 and held various
senior positions. He is the managing director of Shougang
Holding. Mr. Xu is also an executive director and the chairman
of Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (“Shougang
Grand”),
Holdings Limited (“GDC") and was the managing director
of Shougang Grand (from 22 August 2019 till 18 September
2019) and the chairman of GDC (resigned on 21 July 2018).
Both of Shougang Grand and GDC are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.

an executive director of Global Digital Creations

Xu has extensive experience in management.

Mr. Li Wei, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 22 May 2020 and is also a member of each
of the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was also appointed as the President of the
Company on 9 July 2020. Mr. Li obtained a Bachelor degree in
Agriculture from Beijing University of Agriculture in 1997 and a
Master degree in Management from Renmin University of China
in 2008 and is a senior political worker and an economist. He
is a director and the general manager of Beijing Shouda Huihe
Enterprise Services Co., Ltd. Ot RBEZESLERFERAR),
a subsidiary of the Company, and was the president of regional
development and service group of Shougang Fund. Prior to
joining Shougang Fund, Mr. Li held various important positions
in various departments of Beijing Municipal Committee of the
Communist Youth League and held senior positions in Beijing
International Technical Cooperation Center. He has extensive
experience in coordinating company’s daily operation and
management.
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Mr. Liang Hengyi, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Managing Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 (stepped down from the Managing Director with
effect from 1 January 2021) and is also a member of each of
the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. He holds a Master degree in Economics and a Doctor
of Philosophy degree in Management and is a senior economist.
Mr. Liang was the managing director of Shougang Fund. He
also served as the general manager of non-fare business unit of
Beijing Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd., the general manager
of Beijing Capital Investment Rail Transit Assets Management
Company R ERHNEXEEELEETEERAE)and the
president of Beijing Urban Underground Space Development
and Construction Co., Ltd. Qb T ERBMAERRBRA
).

Ms. Zhang Meng, aged 39, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 22 May 2020 and is also a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company. She
obtained a Bachelor degree in Laws from China University of
Political Science and Law in 2003 and a Master degree in Laws
from University of Tubingen in 2008. Ms. Zhang is a director
and the general manager of Jingji Tiancheng (Beijing) Fund
Ltd. (REXM QtR) B EEBRRE,
"Jingji Capital”) and was a Deputy General Manager of the

Management Co.,

Company, the controller of risk control department of Beijing
Ltd. GERR
“Jingxi Venture”) and the

Jingxi Venture Capital Fund Management Co.,
FARIXREESEERARLA,
controller of risk management department of Shougang Fund.
Both Jingji Capital and Jingxi Venture are principal subsidiaries
of the Company engaging in management of private fund. Prior
to joining the Group and Shougang Fund, Ms. Zhang was a
solicitor in Beijing Jia Yuan Law Firm where she participated in
a number of mega projects involving mergers and acquisitions,
listing, financing, fund raising and capital restructuring
activities.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Yinhui,
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is a member

aged 53, was appointed as a Non-executive

of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Arts (History) and a Doctorate degree in World Economy from
Jilin University in 1991 and 2001 respectively, and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Nanjing University
in 1997. Dr. Li completed his Postdoctoral research in China
Centre for International Economic Exchanges in 2016. He
is also a non-executive director and the chairman of CIMC-
TianDa Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, and a vice-president of China International
Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd., a company listed on both
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange. Dr. Li has
extensive experience in managing large-scale enterprises.

Mr. Liu Jingwei, aged 53, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 6 January 2018 and is also
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He
graduated from the School of Economics of Beijing Forestry
University in 1989 and from Shanghai Advanced Institute of
Finance with a Master degree in 2016. Mr. Liu is a PRC Certified
Public Accountant. He currently serves as a senior partner of
Shinewing Certified Public Accountants and is an external
director of Shougang Group. Mr. Liu is also an independent
non-executive director of each of China Nonferrous Mining
Corporation Limited and AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited, both
are listed on the Stock Exchange, an independent director of
Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd., a company
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, and an independent
director of each of Guiyang Longmaster Information &
Technology Co., Ltd. and Beiling StarNeto Technology Co., Ltd.,
both are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, aged 44, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company on 21 May 2018 and is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of
Laws degree from University of Sydney, Australia and was
admitted as a solicitor in New South Wales, Australia and
England and Wales and as a solicitor and barrister in the High
Court of Australia. Mr. Ho is also a fellow member of CPA
Australia. He is a committee member of the Industry Advisory
Committee of Insurance Authority, Deputy Chairperson of
CPA Australia Greater Bay Area Committee, a member of
the China Committee of Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce, a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenyang, a standing
committee member of the Youth Federation of Inner Mongolia
and a vice chairman of Inner Mongolia & Hong Kong Youth
Exchange Association. Mr. Ho is an executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
a non-executive director of Wai Kee Holdings Limited and
an independent non-executive director of each of Kam Hing
International Holdings Limited and Asia Allied Infrastructure
Holdings Limited, all being listed on the Stock Exchange. He
was the senior investment director of New World Development
Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company
and a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and an executive
director of New World Strategic Investment Limited. Mr. Ho
was also a partner of an international law firm Fried, Frank,
Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP. He was an independent non-
executive director of Hailiang International Holdings Limited
(resigned on 1 September 2020), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in the area of
corporate management, investments, corporate finance, merger
and acquisition transactions and international brand and retail
management.
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Mr. Li Hao, aged 39, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 September 2018. He holds
a Bachelor degree from Dalian University of Technology
and a Master of Business Administration degree in Finance
from Waseda University, Japan. Mr. LI has been with ORIX
Corporation (“ORIX"”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company) since October 2007. He is currently the operating
officer, deputy head of East Asia Business Headquarters
and managing director of Greater China Group at ORIX, a
diversified financial services company and whose shares are
listed on both Tokyo Stock Exchange and New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. Li also serves as the director and president
of each of ORIX (China) Investment Company Limited and
ORIX Asia Capital Limited, both of which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of ORIX. He is also a non-executive director of
each of Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd (formerly
known as Panda Green Energy Group Limited) and Haichang
Ocean Park Holdings Ltd., both are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wang Xin, aged 43, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and,
is also a member and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He received his Ph.D. degree in Accounting from Duke
University in 2006 and obtained a Bachelor degree and a
Master degree in Accounting from Tsinghua University in 1999
and 2001 respectively. Dr. Wang is a CPA of CPA Australia.
He is a professor of accounting at the Faculty of Business and
Economics, The University of Hong Kong (“HKU"). Dr. Wang
joined HKU in 2011 and was awarded a tenured position by
HKU for his excellent academic performance in 2014. Before
he joined HKU, Dr. Wang worked at The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2006 to 2011. He has research interests in the
fields of executive compensation, financial disclosure quality,
corporate governance and insider trading. Dr. Wang's papers
were published on various world leading academic journals,
such as Journal of Accounting and Economics, The Accounting
Review, Contemporary Accounting Research and Review of
Accounting Studies. Dr. Wang has teaching experience in
several accounting courses, including Introductory Financial
Accounting, Intermediate Financial Accounting | and II, and
Management Accounting. He also teaches (as one of co-
instructors) the Ph.D. course of Research Methods for Business
Studies. Dr. Wang was an independent non-executive director
of China First Chemical Holdings Limited (resigned on 15
August 2018), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Choi Fan Keung Vic, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
18 May 2018 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He obtained a Bachelor degree, Postgraduate Certificate and
a Master degree in Laws from HKU in 1997, 1998 and 2001
respectively. Mr. Choi is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. He also serves as a consultant of Howse Williams and
the general counsel of Atlantis Investment Management
Limited. Mr. Choi served as deputy head of compliance, area
compliance officer in China and head of compliance with HSBC
Bank (China) Co. Ltd., where he managed over 160 compliance
officers and was responsible for regulatory compliance and
prevention and control of financial crime in over 60 cities in
China. He worked at Clifford Chance and Herbert Smith and
was specialised in compliance, anti-money laundering, anti-
fraud and corporate finance and other advisory work. Mr.
Choi served in the Hong Kong Police Force and was a senior
inspector. He has over 30 years of experience in compliance
management, prevention and control of commercial crime and
investigation, and has extensive experience in legal practice
and, crime investigation and prosecution.
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Mr. Deng Yougao, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2018 and
is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Economics from Institute of Finance and
Economics of Jiangxi CIFEM AL, now known as Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics)in 1994 and a Bachelor
degree in Shipbuilding Engineering from Harbin Shipbuilding
Engineering Institute (FAFE MM T2 26T, now known
as Harbin Engineering University)in 1988. Mr. Deng is the
chairman of the board and the general manager of Shenzhen
City Weishi Chengzhang Investment Management Co., Ltd. (3§
BN EREEIERARAT), the chairman of Shenzhen
Henggu Nano Technology Co. Ltd. CRIINEE A KB B RA
&]) (formerly known as Shenzhen Henggu Anticorrosion Nano
Technology Co., Ltd. CRIINEE B AR BRAE)), the
chairman of Shengshi Henggu (Holdings) Co. Ltd. (Bt 15 @& (1%
f&) BPFRAF)), the managing partner of Shengshi Henggu
(Shenzhen) Administrative Center (Limited Partnership) (2%t
EE CRYI) EER O (BREE)) and the managing partner
of Henggu Shengshi (Shenzhen) Administrative Center (1E &
Bt CRYI) BE L) and a supervisor of Shanghai Tiantan
Nano Technology Co., Ltd. (/8RB KEIZBRAF) . He is
also an independent non-executive director of Success Dragon
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Deng has numerous experiences in different roles
in various companies in different industries.
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Ms. Zhang Quanling, aged 47, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6
January 2018 and is also a member and the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. She holds a Bachelor degree in Arts. Ms.
Zhang joined China Central Television in 1997 and has hosted
the famous programmes such as “Oriental Horizon” and
“Focus Interview"”. She participated in numerous news live
coverage and was awarded the “Golden Microphone Awards”,
the “Golden Eagle Awards”, the “Fan Changjiang Journalism
Award”, the most prestigious journalism award in China, and
the 19th “Top Ten Outstanding Chinese Youths”. Ms. Zhang is
the founding partner of Ziniu Fund (4 &%) and the chairlady
of Cool Youth (Tianjin) Culture Communication Co., Ltd. (B&13
D (R#) XIEEEBRAF). She has extensive experience
in news media, brand building and strategic planning.

Dr. Qiao Yongyuan, aged 38, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
14 June 2019 and is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor degree
in Physics from Peking University in the People’'s Republic of
China in 2005 and a Doctorate degree in Philosophy from the
University of St Andrews in the United Kingdom in 2008. Dr.
Qiao currently works in Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. as the chief
strategist and worked in Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, where he was the chief
strategy analyst who led the strategy research team. He also
served as a consultant for each of China Soong Ching Ling
Foundation and China Youth Development Foundation. Dr.
Qiao received the first prize and the second prize for the “Best
Strategic Analyst” awarded by New Fortune in October 2015
and October 2014, respectively. He also received the second
prize for the “Crystal Ball Award for Best Strategic Analyst”
awarded by Security Market Weekly for two consecutive years
from 2014 to 2015. Dr. Qiao has extensive experience in
financial management and securities trading.

52 Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

RREL LT 475 R2018F1H6REZT
BEAREBUIFERITES WA AR5 5
ZEEMEREERE UKREARBBZREES
RRLEEEWME BRIEBXELTEURY
THR1997FMAFRRERE  BFFMNELIEE
TERAFRZE R TERGF-H2HETKRE
FHBESEERE BESTEEAR TS
ER RPEFTERANESRESHREIIR &
F19ETHFE+ABHEF - RELTHAR
G EFAREBAKREELE (R8) XEE
BEERADEER - FEMBEERS REE
R BRI SE I mAREERK-

BkiEfE L 3855 M2019FE6 8140 EEE
AREANBBIUFANTER UAEARBTEZ
ZEE FNEEERIRREZEEME KR
2005 SRR R ASYIEEB B4
WH2008F RS EREZBEHAEZT LR
TR -BETRIECEERTROERA
BEHREREM TERBMIR LR 2ERE
ZiEE RN B RABIETEE RO e &
RIEMEEBEEEA - BITZEIRERE
TEARTESOEERESCTEMN -SELT
DRI 2015FE 108 R2014E 103 EF P EH
FIREREOMMIE—RBRE R IR
2014FE 2015 FEBEMFEEF ST HBETE
FIOMEMKBKE I F L - BELRUBE
BRESEERBRELE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPANY OVERVIEW

In May 2020, the Company has officially changed its name to
Shoucheng Holdings Limited. “Shoucheng” inherits the spirit
of daring to be the first in the world, and implies the earnest
belief and common vision of “pursuing to be a front-runner in
the industry and creating a promising prospect together”. The
new name reflects the Group’s current strategic and business
development direction, helps shaping the new brand image
and corporate identity, and conveys to the market that the
Board, management and staff wish for a bright vision of the
Company'’s great future.

In 2020, the Company focused on the development of parking
business and infrastructure and real estate fund management
business. With strong support from the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), the collective efforts from
teams have strived to resist the impact of Coronavirus Disease
2019 epidemic (the "epidemic”) on the Group’s business.
This resulted in the revenue and profit scale of the principal
businesses of the Group to continue growing rapidly, the
Group’s continuing operations recorded revenue of HK$706
million, representing an increase of 78% compared to last
year, the profit attributable to shareholders of the Group for
the year was HK$659 million, representing an increase of 49%
compared to a profit of HK$443 million recorded for the last
year.

Despite challenges imposed by the epidemic, the car parking
business of the Group has made sustain progress in business
expansion, multi-storey parking lots have been constructed in
a number of cities and have begun to be replicated in multiple
locations. The parking business now contributes the largest
source of revenue to the Group with its revenue maintaining a
rapid growth trend, and a year-on-year increase of over 170%.
The new product line which contributed considerable profit
to the Group, has resulted in the realisation of annual profit
attributable to the car parking business for the very first time.
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In the area of urban redevelopment business, the Group's
accumulated capabilities in the field of asset management
have been transformed into its own competitive advantages
and become more pronounced over time. The scale of the
fund management business has expanded steadily with urban
redevelopment projects progressing smoothly at different stages
of construction and promotion, revenue and profit scale of
the urban redevelopment business are also maintaining steady
growth.

The Group’s basic earnings per share (after the effect of the
share consolidation) of continuing operations for the year were
HK9.62 cents, representing an increase of 15.8% compared to
HK8.31 cents in the last year. The diluted earnings per share
(after the effect of the share consolidation) of continuing
operations for the year were HK9.57 cents, representing an
increase of 15.2% compared to HK8.31 cents in last year.

During the year, the Group continued to receive tremendous
support from its strategic investors. The Company has received
additional capital contribution from its existing shareholders
Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding”), ORIX Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Orix”),
NWS Holdings Limited (“NWS Holdings"”) and its subsidiaries
and Matrix Partners China V, L.P. (“Matrix Partners V"),
raising a total of approximately HK$1,706 million. Completion
under the convertible bond subscription agreement entered
into between the Company and Greater Bay Area Common
Home Development Fund have also taken place in August
2020, raising approximately HK$295 million for the Group.

Furthermore, in February 2021, the Group has completed the
placing and the subscription of 210,000,000 placing shares to
not less than 6 placees, raising approximately HK$419 million
for the Group. The abovementioned fundraising exercises have
raised an aggregate of approximately HK$2,420 million of
proceeds for the Group. With the support from the investors,
the Group had maintained a reliable pool of cash reserves,
paving solid foundation for its future business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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KEY PERFORMANCES AND FINANCIAL R TS R B X5 1B
INDICATORS REVIEW

For the year ended
31 December

BE12B31HLEE
2020 2019
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEHET B EET
Revenue SRR 706 396
Earnings before Interest, Tax, HEREXHE s BRITEHH
Depreciation and Amortisation Al 2 FER](EBITDA)
of the continuing operations (EBITDA) 947 474
Profit attributable to the owners of the AT ER NELET]
Company
Results of the continuing operations FEREXB ¥E 659 442
Results of the discontinued operation ERIEREER 245 - 1
659 443
Basic earnings per share SREREF
Results of the continuing operations REBEREEB X5 9.62 8.31*
Results of the discontinued operation EARIERESER 25 - 0.02*
9.62 8.33*
Diluted earnings per share ERmEERN
Results of the continuing operations FRREEHE 225 9.57 8.31*
Results of the discontinued operation BRIEREER & - 0.02*
9.57 8.33*
g Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in March 2020 & 202038 R M EHMIFL ZA/E
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As at 31 December

®12H831H

2020 2019

HKS$ Million HK$ Million

BEEET B E T

Total assets BEE 14,126 10,997

Net assets FEE 11,919 9,823

Bank balances and cash RITHFRRIRE 3,739 3,057
Wealth management products and BHMEMKR

fixed income financial assets BB SR E E 887 527

Total borrowings BiegR 483 457

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The year ended 31 December 2020 compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Revenue and Cost of Sales

With the rapid expansion of business scale, the Group’s
continuing operations recorded significant increase in revenue
and cost of sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's continuing operations recorded revenue of
HK$706 million for the year, representing an increase of
78% compared to HK$396 million for the last year. The
Group’s continuing operations recorded cost of sales of
HK$531 million for this year, representing an increase of
174% when comparing to HK$194 million for last year. Gross
profit ratio for the year of continuing operations was 24.8%,
representing a decrease of 26.3% compared to 51.1% for the
last year. The decline in gross profit was mainly attributable
to the fundamental change to cost structure as result of the
significant growth in the business size of the parking business
of the Group; and on the other hand, the impact on certain
parking projects such as those situated at airport(s), which were
adversely affected by the epidemic.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation (“EBITDA")

During the year, the EBITDA for continuing operations of the
Group amount to HK$947 million, representing an increase
of 100% as compared with HK$474 million for last year after
further deduction of non-recurring profit and loss items. The
EBITDA of parking business was HK$416 million, representing
an increase of 1,564% as compared to the last year.

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs of continuing operations of the
Group amounted to HK$77.17 million, representing an increase
of 182% from last year. The increase in finance costs was
primarily attributed to the increase in the business size of car
parking business, and specifically the increase in the number
of car parking spaces, which resulted in the increase of lease
liabilities recognised and finance costs correspondingly during
the year.
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Share of results of associate

Shougang Fushan Resources Group Limited
(“Shougang Resources”)

During the year, the Group has shared a profit of HK$348
million from Shougang Resources, amongst which, HK$71
million was derived as gain on deemed acquisition of shares of
Shougang Resources as Shougang Resources completed a share
repurchase in September 2020 which led to an increase in the
Company attributable interest in Shougang Resources from
27.61% to 28.98%, excluding this gain, the share of profit for
this year is nearly the same as last year.

Taxation

The subsidiaries of the Group engaged in parking business and
infrastructure and real estate fund management business in
Mainland China are subject to China enterprise income tax at a
rate of 25%. Provision for such tax amounting to approximately
HK$53 million was made for the year, while provision of
approximately HK$25 million was made for last year. Apart
from this, the Group had reversed provision for capital gain tax
of approximately HK$148 million in last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAE D

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Summary of net profit/(loss) contribution to the

operation/entity:

Group by

eSS B

BN/ ARHALEENFEF, (BR) B

FRIEES :

Attributable

For the year ended

Operation/Entity interest 31 December
2/ RAE FE(GtE HEN2AMHLEE
2020 2019
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEGET BEHET
Continuing operations REREER
1. Parking business 1. FEHEBITER 100% 180 (43)
2. Infrastructure and real estate fund 2. ERBEAHER
management business TERER 100% 137 195
Sub-total gt 317 152
3. Holding other business assets 3. HEHMEREE
Shougang Resources BHEIR 28.98% 348 290
(Before 28
September
2020: 27.61%)
28.98%
(20204
9A28HA :
27.61%)
Shougang Concord Century BEREEEH Nil - 5
Holdings Limited BRAT (Before 9
(“Shougang Century”) (MBEREE) April 2019:
35.71%)
(20194
4898A
35.71%)
Others B - 1
Sub-total gt 348 296
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Attributable

For the year ended

Operation/Entity interest 31 December
A,/ AT FE(L i = HE12H31HILEE
2020 2019
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
EEEET BEEET
4. Others 4. Hfth
Disposal of the equity interest of EEEREERE
Shougang Century - (125)
Australian tax recoverable RINR (2] 4 = 148
Corporate and others ANEIB G REM (6) (29)
Sub-total INEt (6) (6)
Continuing operations RHBEREER 659 442
Discontinued operation BARIRE R = 1
Profit attributable to owners of ERAFER AEGER
the Company 659 443
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Parking business

Despite the parking business of the Group had been adversely
affected by the epidemic, the Group continues to adhere
to its vision of ‘investment in key cities, core locations and
quality parking spaces’ and implement its operational concepts
of regional development, lean operations and technological
empowerment. The Group has initially established the four
core business networks through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
E Park Investment Management Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Shouzhong Investment Management Co., Ltd) (BE/FE (b
R)REEEERLA) FIBAERREEERARRA),
which is spanned across Beijing Tianjin-Hebei (with Beijing
designated as the core city), Southeast region (with Nanjing
designated as the core city), Chengyu Region (with Chengdu
and Chongqing designated as the core cities) and Greater
Bay Area (with Guangzhou designated as the core city), and
setting up regional operation company, further consolidating
the business network, and investing key cities. It has further
polished core products, enriched business landscape, expanded
cooperation model, and added the new product segment —
parking spaces with property rights built on top of existing
three types of existing product segment. Meanwhile, the Group
has further implemented technological innovations into parking
spaces operations and management, and improved operational
efficiency while creating new business growth points based on

regional characteristics.
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In 2020, the projects at the Beijing Daxing International Airport
("Daxing Airport”) and the Beijing Capital International
Airport commenced operation during the year, which
contributed revenue of HK$481 million for this operating
segment, resulting an increase of over 170% compared to
the last year. In addition, the parking spaces with property
rights which the Group’s cooperated with Vanke Service Co.,
Ltd (“Vanke"”) in the Greater Bay Area last year has achieved
significant investment returns during the year. Net profit of this
operating segment has recorded HK$180 million and shifted
from a loss-making position to a profit-making position. EBITDA
for the year was HK$416 million, representing an increase of
over 1,500% when compared to HK$25 million of last year.

In terms of regional development, the Group continued to
strengthen its project layout in the four core regions of Beijing-
Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River Delta, Southwestern Region and
Greater Bay Area, amongst which:

o the Baoding roadside project in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
region was the first city-level parking project secured by
the Group, providing 30-year parking operation services
for 40 street roadside parking spaces and a parking
complex in the core area of Baoding;

o Obtain the parking projects of Nanjing Jianye District
and the P1 and P2 parking buildings of Shanghai Pudong
International Airport through bidding continued to
strengthen the Group's competitiveness in the Yangtze
River Delta;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o Obtain the parking project of Chongging Dadukou
through bidding exploited the PPP Construction project
model in the Southwest region, combining the respective
advantages of the Group and the local government to
create a business model with benchmarking significance
and reproducibility;

o in the Greater Bay Area, the Group and Vanke have
jointly cooperated and formed a new business model,
and successively expanded a considerable number of
residential and commercial parking assets in Guangzhou
and Foshan, and the asset appreciation gains have
become the Group's new profit growth point.

In terms of lean operations and technological empowerment,
through reviewing and analysing its existing car parking assets
portfolio, the Group has characterised its car parking assets
by four major product lines, namely the municipal facilities
car parking product segment, commercial car parking product
segment, on street car parking product segment, and parking
spaces with property rights segment, while empowering
technological advance in different segments simultaneously to
create new business growth points.

EEERAE D

. AEERREEANEOERE RAHAT
PPPERIAB MR G S A EE Mt
THREEEZ TJTEABERIT TR
EEMPJERMENEFERE

. EREE AEEEBMNYESIEL
T BEBEN > LREBEMANE
WIERTHREHENETEENBHESE
FEEE BERERaMAETER
MBF B RE -

ERmEERNKEESE BENEERF
BEEENME AEBARAEZEEEEDER
FEIDATREERFEERERS BEH
FEERER RAFEEREERERE
UEREEGHNONARERE LR EFBE
BREARRAIN  FTEMHNEBERE-

BEIRERBIRAE 2020F R 63



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEmImE S

In the municipal facilities car parking product segment, the
Group continued to strengthen its leading advantages. In the
first half of the year, the winning bids of the Shanghai Pudong
International Airport P1, P2 parking building project and the
Boao Airport project demonstrated the Group’s continued
leadership in the airport parking operation field, and signified
that the Group had secured market recognition and has formed
a positive brand image and reputation. Airports, being an
extensive space with traffic and landmark facilities, have ample
of room allowing scenario application of parking products. The
Group has also fully implemented scientific and technological
management in airport projects, introduced automatic
parking technology, promoted the application of photovoltaic
energy, and practiced green concepts; in addition to “hard”
technology, it has also enhanced the travel experience through

humanistic services.

In commercial car parking product segment, the Group will
continue to deepen the research and development of the
SONIC (S-PARK Online Network Information Center) platform,
which features with functions covering parking management,
business innovation, facility management and Al + big data,
allowing the Group to collect information at parking lots, set
up information middle office, formulate information standards
and establish parking management information system. In
addition, with the account system, membership system and
bonus points system, the Group is able to produce accurate
profiles of the users and parking lots and empowered parking
management with Al + big data. Coupled with the application
of the “finance + advertisement + insurance + automotive
aftermarket” operation mode, we created innovations to
diversify income stream and provided integrated intelligent
parking solutions.

In on-street car parking product segment, the management of
dynamic traffic and static traffic is combined through intelligent
operation means, which not only lessens the difficulty of
parking in the core area, but also improves the efficiency of on-
street parking and utilises the data generated by static traffic
for big data analysis and assist in the management of dynamic
traffic, so as to realise all-round smart traffic management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

in cities and regions. This product format has been applied
in several districts on-street parking projects in Beijing and
Baoding city-level on-street parking projects.

In the parking spaces with property rights segment, the property
rights of premium project parking spaces can be obtained through
cooperation with leading domestic real estate companies. In the
long-term operation process, in addition to obtaining rental income,
the Group is also able to benefit from asset appreciation gain. At
present, this model has performed well in the actual operation of
the Guangzhou project and the Foshan project.

The epidemic in early 2020 had a certain extent of impact
on the operations of the existing parking business and the
new business expansion. In response to the adverse effects
of the epidemic, the Group has actively implemented counter
measures to improve the cost efficiency. With the effective
control of the epidemic, we believe that business conditions will
be further improved.

Infrastructure and real estate fund management
business

Infrastructure and real estate fund management business
continues to take real estate infrastructure as the main
direction. It covers urban redevelopment business and
the infrastructure field. In 2020, the overall scale of fund
management was growing steadily and continued to contribute
a stable source of income to the Group. In 2020, this operating
segment recorded revenue of HK$213 million, representing
an increase of 18% from last year and profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$137 million, representing
a decrease of 30% from last year, respectively. Excluding
the impact of one-off income in 2019, the net profit of this
operating segment has increased by 25% for this year as
compared to last year.

As at 31 December 2020, the investors of the currently managed
funds of the Group include the National Council for Social Security
Fund (“NSSF"), Singapore Golden Eagle Group, Agricultural
Bank of China, China Merchants Bank, China Life Insurance and
other large financial institutions, and fund investment institutions
from the provincial and municipal governments including Beijing,
Nanjing, Hebei, Jilin, Sichuan, and Heilongjiang.
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The Group adopts the real estate financial model of “funds

+ bases+ industries” to participate in the development,
management, operation, and exit of industrial entities. Through
controlling the shareholding or investing in the enterprises
in the old industrial zone will result in the concentration of
high-end industries. At the end of 2019, one of the funds
managed by the Group successfully bidded for the land use
rights in respect of several parcels of land at the southeast
area of the New Shougang High-end Industry Comprehensive
Service Park (“Shougang Park”), with a planned gross area
of approximately 240,000 sq.m, which aimed to be developed
into a quality commercial office complex. The Shouao Industrial
Park (B2 EZE &) project jointly launched by the Company
and Tishman Speyer (a renowned real estate developer) has
commenced construction and investment promotion and is
scheduled to be put into operation in late 2021.
to become the first largescale commercial complex at Shougang
Park to serve the 2022 Beijing Winter Olympic Games and the

It is expected

citizens at the surrounding areas. With the continuous release
of land resources in the old industrial zone, future cooperation
will be continued around the 8.63 square kilometers of land
resources storage in the Shougang Park, and the scale of fund
management will be continued to expand.
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The synergy between the infrastructure and real estate fund
management business and the parking business has further
emerged. The industrial funds deployed in key areas provide
good relationship network, business resources and industry
chains collaboration for the expansion of the parking business.
In addition, with the accumulation of the Group’s business in
the parking industry, funds with parking business as the main
direction are also gradually establishing. The Group and Nanjing
Jianye District had completed the signing of the establishment
of Nanjing Shougang Jianye Smart Parking Investment Fund
in 2020. This is the first professional investment fund in the
parking industry of our Group, with a total scale of RMB1,000
million. The establishment of the fund has successfully built a
closed loop of the parking industry ecosystem, realising the full
chain coverage of parking lot planning and design, investment
construction, and operation management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Another focus of the fund management business is the equity
investment business. The Company’s equity investment business
adheres to the concept of “keep straight and be innovative,
incubating with ecology”, on one hand, to “innovative”
outside the core business and earn profits for the Company
through financial investments, and on the other hand, to
provide an ecological platform to promote repeated operation
and innovation and incubation in core business industry.
As the fund manager, the Group typically also serves as the
general partner. As per the industry practice of private fund,
the general partner shall invest in a minority stake of the funds
under its management so as to share its returns on investment
and excess returns. As the fund’s investment projects continue
to exit with benefit, the Group expects to obtain considerable
and excess investment returns. “Li Xiang Automotive”, which
was officially listed on U.S. stocks market on 30 July 2020,
is expected to bring excess returns to the Group during the
subsequent fund withdrawal period. The “Bayi Space” which
the fund under our management has invested in, was listed
on the A-shares Science and Technology Innovation Board,
is expected to bring considerable investment returns to the
Group. The above two investment projects will not only bring
considerable expected excess returns and investment returns
to the Group, but also win market reputation for the Group's
fund investments. The fund’s brand power and influence in the
investment circle will be continued to expand.

During the year, the Group acquired 11.22% equity interest
of the fund under its management - Beijing Shougang Lvjie
Venture Capital Co., Ltd (“Lvjie Fund”).
company that focuses on investing in innovative small and

Lvjie Fund is a

medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs"”) which are in their initial
stage and early to middle stage, and possess attributes of
original innovation, integrated innovation or re-innovation.
Lvjie Fund is in line with Beijing’s urban function orientation,
industrial investment orientation and relevant industrial
policies. In particular, Lvjie Fund's investment focuses on energy
conservation, environmental protection, new energy and other
strategic emerging industries or cultural and creative industries
stipulated by Beijing government. SMEs are the new force of
national economic and social development, and an important
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

force to expand employment, improve people’s livelihood, and
promote entrepreneurship and innovation. Governments at
all levels in the PRC shall give full play to their guiding roles
in financial funds and state-owned enterprises, to enhance
the technological innovation ability of SMEs comprehensively.
Under the background of national support for the development
of SMEs, Lvjie Fund was established in 2014 by financial funds
and state-owned enterprises at state and local governments’
level.

The overall financial condition of Lvjie Fund has been
satisfactory and the acquisition of equity interests in Lvjie Fund
from MOST Innovation Fund Management Centre is expected
to bring positive financial benefits to the Company. Although
Lvjie Fund has recorded net loss for the year of 2019, it was
mainly derived from the loss in fair value changes in its invested
projects. As Lvjie Fund will officially enter its exit phase in 2021,
the accumulated income from previous investment projects will
be distributed to its shareholders and it is expected to get cash
return in a short period of time after the Acquisition.

The acquisition of equity interest in Lvjie Fund is precisely the
implementation of the Company’s philosophy of investment,
which will also be beneficial to further focus on advantageous
resources and industrial sectors, deeply participate in industrial
integration, carry out precious investment and better empower
and support the Company's core business.

In the future, Equity investment business is also expected to
form in-depth collaborative development with the company’s
major business through the fully participation in industry
integration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PERFORMANCE OF ASSOCIATES
Shougang Resources
Exploration and sale of coking coal

As at 31 December 2020, Shougang Resources is a 28.98%
owned associate of the Group listed in Hong Kong and is a
major hard coking coal producer in China. Shougang Resources
currently operates three premium coking coal mines in Shanxi
province, the PRC, namely Xingwu Coal Mine, Zhaiyadi Coal
Mine and Jinjiazhuang Coal Mine. Shougang Resources sold
approximately 80,000 tons of raw coal and 3.26 million tons
of clean coal in the year, with a revenue of HK$3,997 million,
an increase of 3% compared with last year. The raw coal price
per ton was RMB597 (inclusive of value added tax “VAT"),
while the average price of clean coal was RMB1,218 (inclusive
of VAT), decrease by 31% and 13% respectively over the last
year. The profit attributable to owners of Shougang Fushan
in the year was HK$1,080 million, compared to HK$1,140
million in last year. The profit of the Group’s share of Shougang
Resources in the year was HK$348 million, amongst which,
HK$71 million was derived as gain on deemed acquisition
of the shares as Shougang Resources undertook a share
repurchase exercise on September 2020 which led to an
increase of the Company attributable interest of Shougang
Resources from 27.61% to 28.98% excluding the gain on
deemed acquisition, it reflects the stable development of
the profit contribution of Shougang Resources compared to
HK$290 million of share of profit of Shougang Resources in last
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate sales of
continuing operations attributable to the Group's five largest
customers combined were less than 30% of the Group's total
sales of continuing operations and the aggregate purchases of
continuing operations attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers combined were less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases of continuing operations.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group focus on the parking business and infrastructure and
real estate fund management business.

The Group is also engaged in mining and sale of hard coking
coal in China by holding interests in the Hong Kong listed
associate, Shougang Resources. As a vital raw material for
steel refining, the sale of coking coal of Shougang Resources
has close connection with the steel demand. Weak demand on
steel will directly dampen the results of Shougang Resources.
With significant proportion of investments in these associates,
the results of which will to a certain extent affect the overall
performance of the Group.

Save for the above mentioned risks and uncertainties, the
analysis on market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk of the Group
are detailed in the note related to financial instruments to the
financial statements.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Group aims to diversify its funding sources through
utilisation of both banking and capital markets. To the extent
possible, financing is arranged to match business characteristics
and cash flows.

1. Bank Balances, Cash and Loans

The bank balances and cash, loans and debt equity ratio
of the Group as at 31 December 2020 as compared to
31 December 2019 are summarised below:
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Bank balances and cash RTHERKRIRE

Wealth management products and BHERKEWEEMEE

fixed income financial assets

Total borrowings BEhyasg

Equity attributable to the owners KANBER N\EDE
of the Company

Debt equity ratio* BEE AL

* Debt equity ratio = Total borrowings/Equity attributable to

the owners of the Company
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Currency Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Other
Market Risk

The Company formulates financial risk policies under
the directives of the Board, managing financial risk,
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and trading
counterparties’ credit risk. Derivative financial
instruments are mainly used to hedge the business
operation risks. We also target to ensure that adequate

financial resources are available for business growth.

The Group conducts its businesses mainly in Hong Kong
and the Mainland China,
exchange fluctuation risks of HK dollars, US dollars

it is subject to the foreign

and Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure, foreign
currency assets are usually financed in the same currency
as the asset or cash flow from it through borrowings.

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates
on bank balance and borrowings had been 25 points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, pre-
tax profit of the Group would have been HK$10.36
million (2019: HK$7.82 million) higher/lower.

Financing Activities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s balance of term
loan financing from bank was HK$483 million, which
was for investing in the 25 years of operation rights of
the parking building of the new airport in Beijing.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

On 9 April 2019, the Company completed the subscription
of a total of 676,808,626 (3,384,043,134 shares before the
Share Consolidation) new ordinary shares by Soteria Financial
Investment Company Limited, Red Avenue Investment Group
Limited and Matrix Partners China V Hong Kong Limited's
designated persons and received net proceeds of approximately
HK$850 million. As at the date of this report, out of the
HK$850 million, approximately HK$780 million was used
to pay part of the Group’s commitment contribution and
lease deposits and expenses for its parking business and the
Company has fully utilised the remaining net proceeds for
general working capital.

On 11 December 2019, the Company completed the
subscription of 300,000,000 (1,500,000,000 shares before
the Share Consolidation) new ordinary shares by JD Fountain
Technology (Hong Kong) Limited and received net proceeds of
approximately HK$450 million. As at the date of this report,
out of the HK$450 million, approximately HK$110 million was
used to pay part of the Group’s commitment contribution
and lease deposits and expenses for its parking business and
the Company has not utilised the remaining net proceeds
and intends to apply such proceeds as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019. The
Company intends to use (1) approximately 60% of the proceeds
to invest in the Group's parking business, part of which will
be used for the Group's existing capital injection commitment,
rental deposit and construction expenditure, while the
remaining balances will be used for the development of new
car parking assets, especially in transportation hubs, which the
Group hopes will further expand its leading advantage in this
segment; (2) approximately 25% of the proceeds to invest in
the Group’s infrastructure and real estate fund management
business; and (3) the remaining 15% of the proceeds as general
working capital and to seize business opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 17 January 2020, the Company completed the
subscription of 18,666,666 (93,333,333 shares before the
Share Consolidation) new ordinary shares (“Shougang
Subscription”) by Shougang Holding and the subscription of
the convertible bonds (“CB Subscription”) with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,231,685,000 by Mountain Tai Peak,
Matrix Partners V and Matrix Partners V-A, and received a total
net proceeds of approximately HK$1,256 million. As at the
date of this report, the Company has not utilised any of the
proceeds from the Shougang Subscription and CB Subscription
in whole or in part, and intends to apply such proceeds as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29
November 2019. The Company intends to use (1) approximately
HK$754 million, or 60% of the net proceeds, to invest in the
Group's parking business, part of which will be used for the
Group's existing capital injection commitment, rental deposit
and construction expenditure, while the remaining balances
will be used for the development of new car parking assets,
especially in transportation hubs, which the Group hopes
will further expand its leading advantage in this segment; (2)
approximately HK$314 million, or 25% of the net proceeds,
to invest in the Group's infrastructure and real estate fund
management business; and (3) approximately HK$188 million,
or 15% of the net proceeds, as general working capital and to
seize business opportunities.
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On 21 February 2020, the Company completed the subscription
of 300,000,000 (1,500,000,000 shares before the Share
Consolidation) new ordinary shares (“FTLife Subscription”)
by FTLife Insurance Company Limited (“FTLife Insurance”) (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS Holdings) with net
proceeds of approximately HK$450 million. As at the date of
this report, the Company has not utilised any of the proceeds
from the FTLife Subscription and intends to apply such proceeds
as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14
February 2020. The Company intends to use (1) approximately
HK$270 million, or 60% of the net proceeds, to invest in the
Group's parking business, part of which will be used for the
Group's existing capital injection commitment, rental deposit
and construction expenditure, while the remaining balances
will be used for the development of new car parking assets,
especially in transportation hubs, which the Group hopes
will further expand its leading advantage in this segment; (2)
approximately HK$110 million, or 25% of the net proceeds,
to invest in the Group's infrastructure and real estate fund
management business; and (3) approximately HK$70 million,
or 15% of the net proceeds, as general working capital and to
seize business opportunities.

On 10 August 2020, the Company completed the subscription
agreement (“Poly Platinum Subscription”) with Poly
Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Poly Platinum”), pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and
Poly Platinum has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the
1% convertible bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$300 million. As at the date of this report, the Company
has not utilised any of the proceeds from the Poly Platinum
Subscription and intends to apply such proceeds as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 28 July 2020. The
Company intends to use the proceeds from the Poly Platinum
Subscription for financing the expansion of the Group's parking
business in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area
and technology innovation of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS & DISPOSALS

There was no material acquisitions and disposals by the Group
during the year.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIODS

(a)

Very Substantial Disposal

On 15 January 2021, Shoujing Yifei Holdings Limited
(the “Vendor”),
Company, entered into the a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sales and Purchase Agreement”)
with King Rich Group Limited (“King Rich”), a
connected person of the Company, pursuant to which

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell, and King
Rich has conditionally agreed to purchase, the sale
shares (the “Sales Shares”) which represent the entire
issued share capital of each of Excel Bond Investments
Limited ("Excel Bond"), Fine Power Group Limited and
Fair Gain Investments Limited (collectively the “Subject
Companies”), at a consideration of HK$3,513,509,976.
The Subject Companies directly and indirectly held
1,463,962,490 shares of the Shougang Resources which
represents 28.98% of all issued shares of Shougang
Resources and all interests of Shougang Resources held
by the Group.

On 18 February 2021, the Company announced in a
supplemental announcement that, on the same date,
the Vendor and King Rich entered into a supplemental
agreement to amend and restate the Sales and Purchase
Agreement to the effect that:

i) the Sales Shares was amended to one ordinary
share of Excel Bond, which represented the entire
issued share capital of Excel Bond (the “Revised
Sale Share”). At completion, Excel Bond will
indirectly hold approximately 11.88% of all issued
shares of Shougang Resources; and
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(b)

78

i Consideration for the Revised Sale Share is
HK$1,440,000,000, which reflects an indirect
transfer of 600,000,000 Shougang Resources
shares at a consideration of HK$2.40 per
Shougang Resources share, being the same price
per Shougang Resources Share as disclosed in
the announcement dated 15 January 2021. As
Excel Bond will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company following Completion, the Company
will only have indirect aggregate interest in
approximately 17.10% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources upon completion of its
disposal of the Revised Sale Share pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the amended and
restated Sales and Purchase Agreement.

For further details of the aforesaid disposal, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 15
January 2021 and 18 February 2021.

Placing of existing shares

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong
Kong) Limited and BOCI Asia Limited (as placing agents)
to procure placees to purchase the total number of the
placing shares, being 210,000,000 shares, at a placing
price of HK$2.03 per placing share.

On 3 February 2021, the Company completed the
placing and the subscription of 210,000,000 placing
shares to not less than six placees (”“Placing and
Subscription”) with net proceeds of approximately
HK$419 million.

For further details of the aforesaid placing, please

refer to the announcements of the Company dated 27
January 2021 and 3 February 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company issued 5,698,949,999 new shares (before
the share consolidation taking effect) during this year. On
21 February 2020, the Company announced that the Board
proposes to implement a share consolidation on the basis that
every five (5) ordinary shares of the Company be consolidated
into one (1) ordinary share. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed on 26 March
2020, the share consolidation was approved and had become
effective on 30 March 2020. Immediately after the share
consolidation, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was adjusted to 6,925,576,780 from 34,627,883,902
(the “Share Consolidation”).

As at 31 December 2020, the issued share capital of
the Company was HK$12,127,547,000 (represented by
7,081,017,194 issued ordinary shares, after the share
consolidation taking effect).

EMPLOYEES RELATIONSHIP

The Group has a total of 458 employees as at 31 December
2020. All subsidiaries of the Company promote equal
employment opportunities, and the selection and promotion
of employees depends on whether the individual meets the
requirements of the relevant position.

The remuneration policies of the Group are to ensure fairness
and competitiveness of total remuneration to motivate and
retain current employees as well as to attract potential ones.
Remuneration packages are carefully structured to consider
local practices under various geographical locations in which
the Group operates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The remuneration packages of employees in Hong Kong
include salary, discretionary bonuses, medical subsidies and
hospitalisation scheme. All the subsidiaries of the Group
in Hong Kong provide pension schemes to the Hong Kong
employees as part of their staff benefits. The remuneration
packages of employees in the PRC include salary, discretionary
bonuses, medical subsidies, welfare fund contribution and
share subscription plan to subscribe for the Company’s ordinary
shares as part of their staff benefits. In addition, the Group
continues to organise different training and development
courses for its employees, and arranges a number of social,
recreational and cultural activities for all employees, and its
employees also actively participate in a number of meaningful
community activities.

PROSPECTS

2020 has been a complicated year in terms of external
business environment for enterprises. While bringing great
challenges, it also offers opportunities for the Group’s business
integration and expansion. Our airport projects have captured
a new fortress, and city-level projects in cooperation with the
government have opened up a new prospect. The scale of fund
management has continued to grow, investment projects have
begun to yield positive results, the synergy of the two business
segments has been further strengthened, and the profitability
has continued to improve.

The domestic car parking industry in the PRC currently has
structural issues including excessive market dispersion, weak
technology and low management efficiency as well as lack of
leading enterprise in the industry, which represent a huge space
for integration and market expansion. Meanwhile, it was noted
that the industry is also gaining higher market traction and
increasing number of investors as well as large to medium-sized
enterprises have invested in the industry. As the first batch
of listed company in China that focuses on parking business,
the Group is committed to becoming a pioneer and promoter
of the car parking industry by continuing to consolidate
and strengthen its existing advantage as the first-mover and
increasing its investments in the car parking industry. It is
expected that the Group will achieve fast development in
respect of parking business in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In view of the strong fundraising capability and tremendous
investors base (international large-scale financial institutions
and provincial and municipal government investment fund of
the Company), it is expected that the management service
income from future private equity fund business and net profit
contribution from investment exit will continue to rise as
the fund size increases. While creating long-term and stable
profits for the Company, the infrastructure and real estate
fund management business also contributed to the growth
of the Company’s parking business. An unique development
model of “funds + bases + industries” was formed, providing
a solid foundation for the Group's robust growth in the future.
In addition, through the establishment of a special parking
industry fund and equity investment in the field of “travelling”,
it has created strong synergies with the Company’s deeply
cultivated parking business.

The rapid development of the Group benefits from the trust
and support of shareholders. With the completion of a new
round of financing in the first half of the year, the Group
completed the convertible bond subscription agreement with
the Greater Bay Area Common Home Development Fund in
August 2020. While obtaining financial support, it will also
form a strategic alliance. The government and corporate
resources, financial strength and strategic resources of invested
companies in the Greater Bay Area will help the Group
further explore space for business expansion in the Greater
Bay Area, acquire high-quality parking assets in the region,
and accelerate the Greater Bay Area business, the expansion
extends from a dotted layout to a grid and density layout, and
establishes a leading position in the Greater Bay Area market,
thereby forming a pattern of simultaneous development of
the four core areas of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Yangtze River
Delta, Southwest Region and the Greater Bay Area to further
consolidate the leading position of the parking industry.

We will stay committed to pursuing more speedy development
of the parking and infrastructure and real estate fund
management business, and strive to become China's
investment management and technology in the field of parking
and transportation and infrastructure real estate service leader.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance accountability and
transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions, and
where applicable, met the recommended best practices in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the "Listing Rules”) during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of fourteen Directors,
being five Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors and
five Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors
is set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors” of
this annual report. In addition, an updated list of the Directors
and their roles and functions is published on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

The Board is characterised by wide diversity and has a balance
of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company. The Directors’ biographical
information is set out in the section headed “Directors’

Biographies” of this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors
are required to disclose to the Company at the time of their
appointments and annually the number and the nature of
offices held in public companies or organizations and other
significant commitments with an indication of the time
involved.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” as set out on pages 43 to 52 of this annual
report, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Board members.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) so that there is a sufficient independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of Non-
executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

o serving on Board committees if invited; and

o scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring

performance reporting.

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed comments. They
benefit the Board and the committees on which they serve with
their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation in the
Board and committees meetings.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent
Non-executive Directors are identified, in all corporate
communications to shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Board diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 28 August 2013 which sets out its
approach to achieve diversity on the Board with a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on the merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

Role and function of the Board and the
management

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-
day operations of the Company to the Executive Committee
and senior management within the control and authority
framework set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Further details of these committees are set out in this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and endeavors to hold at least four
Board meetings a year. Additional meetings will be arranged,
if and when required. The Directors can attend meetings in
person or through electronic means of communication in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up
the agenda of each Board meeting. A draft agenda of each
regular Board meeting will be sent to all Directors for review
before the agenda is issued and all Directors may request for
inclusion of other matters in the agenda. The Chairman will
take into account the matters proposed by the Directors and
where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters in
the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14 days’
notice of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company
aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.
The Company also aims at sending the agenda and the
accompanying board papers, which are prepared in a form
and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it to all Directors 5 days for
regular Board meetings, or not less than 3 days for other Board
meetings as possible, before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Where queries are raised by Directors, prompt and full
responses will be given as possible.

The Board has procedures in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon
reasonable request, provide separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them in performing their duties to
the Company.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings and Board committees meetings, draft and final
versions of which would be sent to Directors for comments
and records respectively, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Director/committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter (including material transaction with
connected persons) which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent Non-
executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at that
Board meeting.

Except for those circumstances permitted by the Articles and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote
on any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement
or any other proposal in which he/she or any of his/her close
associates (or associates where the transaction or arrangement
is a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) has a material interest nor shall he/she be counted in the
quorum present at the relevant Board meeting.

Attendance records

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
Directors have made active contribution to the affairs of the
Group and 11 physical Board meetings were held to consider,
among other things, various projects contemplated by the
Group and to review and approve the interim results and
annual results of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The attendance records of Directors at Board meetings and

other committees meetings as well as general meetings during

EEERHRS

HE2020F 1283 1HLEMBEER  EER
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the financial year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the &AW T :
table below:
Number of general
Number of meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
L/ BOEERY HE/ BORRAERY
Annual
Executive Audit Nomination Remuneration  General General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meetings Notes

Director 3 B3¢ BITREE BRZEY RAZEE HFHZET RRBEAET KEAE Vi3

Executive Directors BiTES

Zhao Tianyang (Chairmen of BXE (EEE

the Board, Executive and HirZ58K
Nomination Committees) EEZRELE) 1nm 1110 - 44 - il 13

Xu Liang #he 1M 10/10 - - - ”n 33

Li Wei (President) & (#3) 7 57 - iy - il n 1

Liang Hengyi (Managing Director) %% (£ 404578 1/11 10/10 = 414 = n 33 4

Zhang Meng RiF m 57 - - - 1n i 2

Non-executive Directors FYTES

Li Yinhui THIE 111 - 22 - 33 1 33

Liu Jingwei Az 1M - 2 - - 1n D]

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang mEE 1M - W) - - n 33

Li Hao FE 111 - - - - 01 03

Independent Non-executive BUEHTES

Directors
Wang Xin (Chairman of Audit Iz
Committee) (EUZERELE) 111 - 22 414 33 N 33

Choi Fan Keung Vic ZER 1m - 2 - 33 1n 33

Deng Yougao BEE /1 - 20 414 - n 33

Zhang Quanling (Chairlady of KRB

Remuneration Committee) GrHIZE81E) 111 - 22 414 33 1 23

Qiao Yongyuan Bk 1" - 22 212 33 "N 213 3

Notes: st -

7. Mr. Li Wei was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of 1. FRALESFBRITEERHNITEZEEN
each of the Executive Committee and Nomination Committee with WEHREESEHS H20209F5522 HE 1782
effect from the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the REREAFABFRLELI W H2020F7
Company held on 22 May 2020. He was appointed as the President HIA LB -
on 9 July 2020.

2. Ms. Zhang Meng was appointed as an Executive Director and a 2. REXR L EETRATEERNITEE DA
member of the Executive Committee with effect from the conclusion 8 H2020F5522HF7H R A 5] R FE A F
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May AKEEFRELER -

2020.

3. Dr. Qiao Yongyuan was appointed as a member of the Nomination 3. BREEBLT BB THRIEREZSEHE 52020
Committee with effect from the conclusion of the annual general F5522 HE{THI K 2\ 5] IR BB F K & 45 Rl
meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2020. x4

4. Mr. Liang Hengyi stepped down from the Managing Director with 4. R LT EFRASE R 5202141

effect from 1 January 2021.

AIEELR -
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Access to information

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and
information by the management to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information
put before it for approval. The management provides all Board
members with monthly updates which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by
the management, each Director has the right to separately and
independently access to the Company’s senior management to
make further enquiries if necessary.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy and review the profiles of the candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and nomination of Directors.

According to the Articles, any Director so appointed by the
Board shall hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy,
only until the next following general meeting of the Company
or, in the case of an addition to their number, until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company who shall
then be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. Every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company are set out on page 116 of this annual report.

All Executive Directors have entered into new service
agreements with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
for a term commencing from 1 January 2020 (except Mr. Li Wei
and Ms. Zhang Meng whose term of service commencing from
their appointments as Executive Directors from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May
2020 (the “2020 AGM")) and continuing until terminated by
either party by prior written notice.
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All Non-executive Directors have entered into new engagement
letters with the Company for an initial term commencing
on 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2020; with
such appointment being automatically renewed for successive
12-month periods.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) effective on 1 January 2019 which sets
out the nomination procedures and criteria for the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment as Directors or for
recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, prior to a meeting of the
Nomination Committee called for considering candidates for
directorship, the Nomination Committee will invite nominations
of candidates from the Board members or put forward
candidates. The Nomination Committee will consider the
nominated candidates at such committee meeting according
to the criteria of: reputation for integrity; accomplishment and
experience; compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
and board diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. A selected candidate will then be recommended by
the Nomination Committee to the Board for consideration and
approval.

A shareholder of the Company may propose a person for
election as a Director in a general meeting pursuant to
procedures set out in the Articles.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed five Independent Non-executive
Directors and one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the number
of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company

represents more than one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who
has served the Board for more than 9 years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

Dr. Wang Xin, the Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. The Company will state in a circular which
will contain, among other things, the notice convening the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company the
reasons why the Nomination Committee and the Board
consider he is independent, including his character, integrity
and experience he possesses to continue fulfilling the role
of an Independent Non-executive Director and his education
background, in-depth experience and practice which allow him
to provide valuable and relevant insights and contribute to the
diversity of the Board; and the recommendation to shareholders
to vote in favor of his re-election as Director.

Insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the businesses of
the Group.
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Directors’ training and professional development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction
of regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated
on the latest development of the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practice. Directors are
also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors and the Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for the
Directors.

During the year, the Company provided the Directors with
online trainings and/or presentations information and/or
materials by qualified professionals, regulatory authorities and/
or management team on regulatory updates and/or the Group’s
business and operation developments.

All Directors have provided to the Company their records of
training received during the financial year ended 31 December
2020, a summary of which is as follows:
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Type of continuous professional
development programmes

RESXERRAAESR

Participating online
trainings and/
or webinars on

regulatory updates

Attending
presentations on
Group's business

and operation

Reading materials ZMEREHRENR developments
and updates ZHEEENR/ HESEEEBR
Name of Director BF RERERER SRR E EERRZRE
Executive Directors HITES
Zhao Tianyang (PN v 4 v/
Xu Liang wE v v v
Li Wei =@ 4 4 4
Liang Hengyi PR E-S 4 4 4
Zhang Meng R v v 4
Non-executive Directors FERITESR
Li Yinhui g v v v
Liu Jingwei 2=E v/ 4 4
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang GESLEE v v v/
Li Hao e v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFEHITEE
Wang Xin B v v v
Choi Fan Keung Vic 2ER v v v
Deng Yougao HES v/ 4 4
Zhang Quanling RRE v v v
Qiao Yongyuan Bk v/ v/ v/
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate
and exercised by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability. Mr. Zhao Tianyang is the
Chairman and Mr. Liang Hengyi served as the Managing
Director during the financial year ended 31 December 2020
(who stepped down with effect from 1 January 2021). The
Chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures that
the Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities.
The Managing Director has overall chief executive responsibility
for the Group’s business development and day-to-day
management generally. The division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and the Managing Director is clearly established
and set out in writing.

On 9 July 2020, Mr. Li Wei was appointed the President of
the Company taking up responsibilities on representing the
executive Board to coordinate the Company’s daily operation
and management, lead the management team to implement
formulated strategies, achieve annual target tasks, and promote
rapid and healthy development of business with “precise
investment + lean operation”, especially in the business
development, parking fund establishment and operation, cost
optimization and technology upgrade in the Company's parking
business sector. He took up the role of the chief executive
of the Company following the stepping down of Mr. Liang
Hengyi with effect from 1 January 2021 and the division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the President has

been established and set out in writing.

The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other

things:

o taking primary responsibility for strategies formulation
and capital operation and approving the annual plan,
budget and performance management of the Group;

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good

corporate governance practices and procedures are
established;
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o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate information which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable;

o encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and taking the lead
to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company;

o encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communications with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole;
and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of Non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. All committees have
their own terms of reference. All resolutions passed by the
committees will be reported to the Board at the next Board
meeting.
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Executive Committee

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties and revised on 1 April 2012.

The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved
for the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the
Group and has been assigned with the responsibilities to
perform the corporate governance duties as follows:

o to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s
employees and Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
. to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors,

namely Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Xu Liang, Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Liang
Hengyi and Ms. Zhang Meng.
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During the year, 10 physical meetings of the Executive
Committee were held. Amongst those meetings, one meeting
was held for the purpose of performing the corporate
governance duties. The attendance of each member at these
meetings is set out in the table above under subsection
“BOARD OF

“Attendance records” of the section headed

DIRECTORS".

The major work in relation to the corporate governance of
the Group performed by the Executive Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in December
1998 with specific written terms of reference adopted on
1 January 2009 which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties and revised on 1 April 2012, 21 December 2015 and
1 January 2019 respectively. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are posted on the websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst
other things:

o overseeing the relationship with and engagement of the
Company’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of
the Group;
o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies

and practices;
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o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting,

internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference and the authority to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it
considers necessary. It is given access to and assistance from
the employees and reasonable resources to perform its duties

properly.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Wang Xin, an
Independent Non-executive Director, and the members of the
Audit Committee include Dr. Li Yinhui, Mr. Liu Jingwei and Mr.
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, who are Non-executive Directors and Mr.
Choi Fan Keung Vic, Mr. Deng Yougao, Ms. Zhang Quanling
and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan, who are Independent Non-executive
Directors. None of the members of the Audit Committee are
former partners of the auditor of the Company.

During the year, 2 physical meetings of the Audit Committee
were held and the attendance of each member is set out in
the table above under subsection “Attendance records” of the

section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed and considered the audit plan and the

remuneration of the auditor of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019;
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o reviewed the final results of the Group and the audit
report of the auditor of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 and recommended the
reappointment of the auditor of the Company;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group and the review
report of the auditor of the Company for the 6 months
ended 30 June 2020; and

o reviewed the reports on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group prepared by an
independent advisory firm.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 which deal clearly with its authorities
and duties and revised on 1 April 2012, 28 August 2013
and 12 July 2018 respectively. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;
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o assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o determining suitably qualified individual(s) to become
deputy general manager(s) of the Company; and

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and
reviewing the measurable objectives that have been
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
reviewing the progress on achieving the objectives.

The Nomination Committee follows the nomination procedures
and criteria set out in the Nomination Policy, as disclosed
above, in selecting and recommending candidates for

directorship to the Board for consideration.

The appointments of Mr. Li Wei and Ms. Zhang Meng as
Executive Directors during the year have undergone the
abovementioned nomination procedures set out in the
Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any
necessary information from the employees within its scope
of duties and the authority to obtain outside independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhao
Tianyang who is also the Chairman of the Board. Members
Li Wei and Mr.
both of whom are Executive Directors, and Dr.

of the Nomination Committee include Mr.
Liang Hengyi,
Wang Xin, Mr. Deng Yougao, Ms. Zhang Quanling and Dr.
Qiao Yongyuan, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

During the year, 4 physical meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held and the attendance of each member
is set out in the table above under subsection “Attendance
records” of the section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS".
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The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included, amongst other things, the following:

o considered and made recommendations to the Board on
the appointments of Executive Directors at the annual
general meeting and appointments of committees
members;

o accepted and reported to the Board on the retirement of
a senior executive of the Company;

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors;

o considered and made recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting;

. considered and made recommendation to the Board on
the appointment of the President of the Company;

° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommendations on proposed changes
of Directors and committees members to the Board; and

. considered and made recommendation to the Board on
the stepping down of the Managing Director.

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in
February 2005 with specific written terms of reference adopted
on 17 February 2005 which deal clearly with its authorities and
duties and revised on 1 April 2012. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are posted on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.
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The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

o making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Company’s
goals and objectives;

o determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors;

o reviewing and approving compensation payable to
Executive Directors and senior management and
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of
the Board and/or the Managing Director (or the President
with effect from 1 January 2021) of the Company about their
It has
explicit authority to seek any necessary information from the

remuneration proposals for other Executive Directors.

employees within its scope of duties and the authority to obtain
outside independent professional advice, at the Company's
expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the
Directors are based on market alignment and reward for
performance. The Company reviews the remuneration package
annually taking into consideration of the market practice,
competitive market position and individual performance.
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The chairlady of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Zhang
Quanling, an Independent Non-executive Director, and
members of the Remuneration Committee include Dr. Li Yinhui,
a Non-executive Director, Dr. Wang Xin, Mr. Choi Fan Keung
Vic and Dr. Qiao Yongyuan who are Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company for the year are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, 3 physical meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of each member
is set out in the table above under subsection “Attendance
records” of the section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year included, amongst other things, the following:

o determined, reviewed and approved the terms of the
service agreements and remuneration of the proposed
Executive Directors;

o considered, reviewed and approved the performance
bonus distribution plan and performance bonus
arrangement plan for year 2019 for all staffs of the
Group; and

o considered, reviewed and approved the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees of the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors for
the year 2021.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman
and/or the Managing Director (or the President with effect
from 1 January 2021) on corporate governance and the
implementation of the CG Code. The Company Secretary is an
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group's affairs.

All Directors also have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are followed. The
selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary
are subject to the Board approval.

Ms. Chan Weng Mui has been appointed the Company
Secretary of the Company since October 2020 and she has
confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, while the Board is responsible for overseeing
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. A
review of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system has been conducted annually by the Board to
cover all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:
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Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: ldentify type of significant risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks

and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.
o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2020, no
significant weakness was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

components of the framework are shown as follows:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment. A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.
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o Control Activities. Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out.

° Information and Communication: Internal and external

communication to provide the Group with the

information needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.

Internal Auditor

The Group outsources the internal audit work to a globally
renowned professional internal audit services provider. Internal
audit function carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems. The internal
audit function is independent of the Group’s daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An internal audit plan has been reviewed by the Board.
According to the established plan, review of the risk
management and internal control systems is conducted
annually and the results are reviewed by the Audit Committee

and reported to the Board.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually
according to the requirements of the CG Code.
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The Board, through its review and the review made by the
internal audit function, the management and Audit Committee,
concluded that the risk management and internal control
systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

The Company adopted an inside information disclosure
policy (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) on
21 December 2015 which sets out the procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information with a view
to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are
provided with full, accurate and timely information about the
activities and the financial condition of the Group. The Inside

Information Disclosure Policy covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and
escalating potential inside information to the Board;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving
the confidentiality of inside information, escalating
upwards any such potential information and cascading
down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff;
and

o identifying who the Company'’s authorised spokespersons
are and their responsibilities for communications with
stakeholders of the Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant
staff regarding the implementation of the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.
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The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures are
effective and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard
the Company and its officers in discharging their disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the
website of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. A reminder
is served by the Company to each Director twice annually of the
black-out period that Directors cannot deal in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company.

Directors are required to notify the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee and to receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chairlady
of the Remuneration Committee herself, she must notify the
Managing Director (or the President with effect from 1 January
2021) and receive a dated written acknowledgement before
any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as

EEERHRS

BB &

REAFENEXN /BN FERBZBENE
REKBEMEBAHNMESHIMT -

follows:

HK$'000
Services rendered Frie it AR 75 BT
Audit services EETRTS 4,228

Non-audit services: JEETIRTS ©
Interim review H HA 2= RS 350
Tax services MERT 587
Others EHih 225
5,390

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern
basis and in presenting the annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 151 to 158 of this annual report.

EENMBRERNEE

EERINSEEERIEERMHFTERE
URFBEEREAERBERATMEINEERN
EH IRV FERSRPHRER LT
RAPTERNEMM BRER  EFAND
F 5~ 75 M K BR B 3t Y A< & B Y AR O e Al

=
=°

ARBNIZBEMBEBRBKEGSMSEFHAE
ERFHRFISIEEFE 158EE L Z AR
SRR BERAERFEMBERROPHRELE
EHER -

BRREZERARAS 2020®R 107



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERHRS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy reflecting the current practices of the
Company for communication with its shareholders. Such
policy aims at ensuring the shareholders of the Company are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to
enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the
Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders,
the Company provides extensive information in its annual
and interim reports and announcements. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s website at
www.shouchengholdings.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. The external auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that
is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of
the independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address shareholders’ queries.

During the year, 4 general meetings were held. One of the
general meetings was the 2020 AGM and the others were the
general meetings held on 10 January 2020, 26 March 2020 and
22 May 2020 for approving the followings:

1. the share subscription agreement dated 29 November
2019 (the “Subscription Agreement”) entered into
between the Company and Shougang Holding (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Shougang Holding"”) in relation
to Shougang Holding's subscription of shares of
the Company (the “Subscription Shares”) and the
transactions contemplated thereunder, and the specific
mandate to allot and issue Subscription Shares under the
Subscription Agreement;
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2. the convertible bonds subscription agreements dated 29
November 2019 entered into between the Company and
each of ORIX Asia Capital Limited, Matrix Partners China
V, L.P. and Matrix Partners China V-A, L.P. (together, the
"CB Subscribers”) in relation to the CB Subscribers’
subscription of the zero coupon convertible bonds in the
aggregate principle amount of HK$1,231,685,000 to
be issued by the Company (the “Convertible Bonds")
and the transactions contemplated thereunder, and the
specific mandate to allot and issue the conversion shares
upon an exercise of the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Bonds;

3. consolidation of every five issued ordinary shares of the
Company into one ordinary share of the Company; and

4. the proposed change of the Chinese name of the
Company from "BRBEREEBRRE" to "BREERK
BBRAE", and the English name of the Company from
“Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company
Limited” to “Shoucheng Holdings Limited”.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
attended the 2020 AGM. Details of the attendance of each
Director at the general meetings of the Company held during
the year are set out in the table above under subsection
“Attendance records” of the section headed "BOARD OF
DIRECTORS".

During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched
by the Company to its shareholders for meetings held were
sent for annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and at least 10 clear business days for all
other general meetings. Separate resolutions were proposed
at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the re-election of individual retiring Directors, and all
resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting were taken
by way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman of the
meetings explained the procedures for conducting a poll and
answered questions from shareholders on voting by poll, if
any. The results of the poll were published on the websites of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company
respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a general meeting

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the Directors to call a general
meeting pursuant to Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at
the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Such request must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a relevant right to vote at a general
meeting can request the Company to circulate to the
shareholders of the Company a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting
pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The expenses shall be borne
by the shareholder(s) making the request unless the meeting
concerned is an annual general meeting and the statement is
received by the Company in time for sending with the notice
of the meeting. The request must identify the statement to be
circulated, and must be authenticated by the shareholder(s)
making it and sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form for the attention of the Company Secretary at
least 7 days before the meeting to which it relates.
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Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders of the Company or at least 50
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at an
annual general meeting can request the Company to give to
the shareholders of the Company notice of a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The request must
identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, and must
be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it and sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form for the
attention of the Company Secretary no later than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requests relate,
or if later, the time at which notice of the meeting is given.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our registered
office or by email to our Company. In addition, shareholders
can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings
and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are set
out on page 3 of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year, except the name of the Company was
changed from "BRBIE®ZEAR AT Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited" to "E2ZRAE
FfR/A 78] Shoucheng Holdings Limited" on 28 May 2020. The
Articles with updated company name has been posted on the
websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERESE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 159 to
322 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development
to be an objective. Under the dividend policy adopted by the
Company, dividends may be recommended, declared and paid
to shareholders from time to time. In summary, the declaration
of dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board, taking into
consideration of, among others, the following factors:

o financial results;

° shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;

° capital requirements;

° taxation considerations;

o contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction, if any;
and

o any other factors that the Board may deem relevant.
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Where a dividend is being declared in any particular financial
year, the total amount of payment shall not exceed 50% of the
accumulated profits available for distribution during such given
financial year.

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend in
the total amount of HK$400 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$500 million), payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Thursday, 15 July
2021. Based on 7,291,017,194 ordinary shares of the Company
in issue, such a final dividend would amount to HK5.49 cents
per ordinary share (2019: HK7.22 cents per ordinary share).

Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend
at the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
28 May 2021 (the "AGM"), the final dividend is expected to be
paid on or about Tuesday, 3 August 2021. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 15 July 2021 for registration.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 25 May 2021 to Friday, 28 May 2021 (both days
inclusive) to determine the shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. During such period, no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 May 2021 for registration.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 42 and pages 53 to 81 of this annual report
respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 323 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the Company issued an aggregate of
1,295,230,413 new ordinary shares (adjusted pursuant to the
effect of the Share Consolidation (as defined below)), details
of which are set out in the section headed “SHARES ISSUED"
below.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 21 February 2020, the Company announced that the
Board proposed to implement the share consolidation on the
basis that every five (5) ordinary shares of the Company be
consolidated into one (1) ordinary share of the Company (the
“Share Consolidation”).

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 26 March 2020, the Share Consolidation became
effective on 30 March 2020 and the total number of issued
shares of the Company was adjusted to 6,925,576,780 shares
from 34,627,883,902 shares on that day.
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Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 21 February 2020 and 26 March 2020
and circular dated 11 March 2020.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date and as at the date of
this report, the Company has issued 210,000,000 new ordinary
shares. Details of which are set out in the section headed
“SHARES ISSUED"” below.

DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2019: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Zhao Tianyang

Xu Liang

Li Wei (appointed with effect from the conclusion of the annual

general meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2020)

Liang Hengyi

Zhang Meng (appointed with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
22 May 2020)

Non-executive Directors
Li Yinhui

Liu Jingwei

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Li Hao

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wang Xin

Choi Fan Keung Vic
Deng Yougao
Zhang Quanling
Qiao Yongyuan
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In accordance with article 102(A) of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”), Mr. Zhao Tianyang, Mr. Liu
Jingwei, Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, Mr. Li Hao and Dr. Wang Xin
will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company include Zhao Tianyang,
Xu Liang, Li Wei, Liang Hengyi, Zhang Meng, Bai Lin, Bai Jie,
Chang Yingxin, Chen Hongyuan, Chen Na, Chen Wenyue, Chen
Zhichao, Fu Qiang, Gao Feifei*, Gao Ying, Gao Zhijun*, Guan
Yingwu, Hao Bolin, Ji Weizheng, Jia Tingting, Le Qi, Li Na, Li
Qingyang, Li Yanfeng, Liang Lixia, Leung Yuen Chee Sara*,
Lian Feng, Lin Yan, Liu Hongxiu, Liu Hongyi, Liu Quanfeng, Liu
Shuyi, Liu Xunxu, Liu Wenbin*, Lu Ping, Lu Ting*, Lu Ruiliang,
Meng Ziyang, Ning Jingbian, ONGKAHKOK, Peng Cheng, Qin
Daoxin, Rong Hao*, Ryan Reed Botjer*, Shen Zhuolin, Shi
Xiaodong, Song Chunsheng, Song Changhai, Tan Long, Tong
Zhenyuan, Wang Hongpeng, Wang Junfa, Wang Zhijian, Wang
Sheng, Wu Jing, Xia Xiaohong*, Xie Peng, Xu Huajie, Xue
Jiangzhou, Yang Dongmei, Yang Shiying*, Ye Qian, You Wenli*,
Yu Haiyang*, Zhang Haitao, Zhang Jun, Zhang Lan, Zhang Qi,
Zhang Zhengzhong, Zhao Kebai, Zhao Xiaotong, Zhao Yuzhen
and Zheng Yuegiang.

* Ceased to be directors of relevant subsidiaries of the Company as at
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles, every Director or other officer of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were

as follows:
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RERB RN KRBRRKRGZEE

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company

% of the total number of
shares of the Company in
issue as at 31.12.2020

(Note 1)
BEATE
Capacity in which Number of 20205128318
Name of Director interests were held shares held ERTRNOEZZERLT
BEEHL FEEDRZEMR HERMEE (HraE1)
Li Wei Beneficial owner 1,020,000 0.0144
=R EEEEA
Liang Hengyi Beneficial owner 598,000 0.0084
A%k BHEEFA
Liu Jingwei Beneficial owner 1,765,200 0.0249
2 ER EEEEA
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 60,000 0.0008
SERE S (HaE2)
Wang Xin Beneficial owner 40,000 0.0006
Tz EEEEA
Interest of spouse 200,000 0.0028
OB
Zhang Meng Beneficial owner 264,000 0.0037
R EEEEA
Notes: Wer:
7. As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued shares of the 1. BLFE2020F 12531 H » KA BE#H TR
Company was 7,081,017,194 ordinary shares. #7,081,017,194/R Z 8% o
2. These shares were held by Sunshine Express International Consulting 2. ZERDAELZELLET100%ZHH G EE

Company Limited, which was 100% controlled by Mr. Liu Jingwei. REZFABRAEIFHE ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had registered any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” herein,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its
parent company was a party and in which a Director or his/her
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following
Directors have declared interests in the following businesses
(other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or any member of the Group) which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

EENHRBEEHZED

BB LHRAUESI10E U TEFEEGTESE
RUTEBF ARG (LA BEEEFESES
BRRBZESFURKRARA KR, NAEEE
ERAREADBRZET) MEFEBRSE
PAREFERNEAEREFBREZNEE

BRF A PIERA R T

Description of businesses

Name of entity
whose businesses are
considered to compete

of the entity which are
considered to compete
or likely to compete

or likely to compete with the businesses Nature of

with the businesses of the Group interest of

of the Group EBWRE the Director

EBRRAERER HMAEBETR in the entity
Name of Director FHBERF AR 1 PX 35 35 5 BT BEAB FY EENEERS
E5NS BRHRFZERZLE HMBZEBEREZEN ZHEHEZMEE

Zhao Tianyang Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.

Fund management

Director and

i N ("Shougang Fund")* HeEE General
ITRERESERAE Manager
(reflEx)" EERRKIE
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang Urban Parking Limited* Car park management Director
a8 18 EWEEIZEEBRAR FHIZERE o
# Such businesses may be carried out through the subsidiaries or — * REEBOECRBAEHER B LA

associates of the entity concerned or by way of other forms of
investments.

The Board is independent from the boards of the above-
mentioned entities and is accountable to the Company’s
shareholders. Coupled with the diligence of its Independent
Non-executive Directors whose views carry significant weight
in the Board's decisions, the Group is capable of carrying on
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
businesses of these entities.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
or deemed to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in the shares/underlying shares of
the Company
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total number of
shares of the

Company in
Capacity in which Number of shares/ issue as at
Name of shareholder interests were held underlying shares 31.12.2020 Notes
ERRE
1£2020%12831H
ERITRMHAH
RERBE RERZZER vzl e ¢=| ZESL =3
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (“Shougang Group”) Interests of controlled 2,545,447,437 35.9475 1,5
BENEEERAR (HHER)) corporations
REEB R
ORIX Corporation Interests of controlled 1,044,081,679 14.7448 2,5
BT RHBERAR corporation
R PE
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.7989 35
corporations
REEEZ#G
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited Interests of controlled 835,485,105 11.7989 35
corporations
REEB LR
Rocket Parade Limited Beneficial owner 535,485,105 7.5623 35
BEmEAA
HOPU Investments Co. Il Ltd Interests of controlled 543,092,891 7.6697 45
corporation
ZEEEZ#E
HOPU USD Master Fund Ill, L.P. Interests of controlled 543,092,891 7.6697 4, 5
corporation
REEEZ#E
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Notes:

122

Shougang Group s interested in all the shares held by its direct
and indirect subsidiaries, namely, Shougang Holding (Hong Kong)
Limited (holding 90,786,898 shares), China Gate Investments
Limited (holding 551,565,954 shares), Grand Invest International
Limited (holding 153,668,152 shares), Wide Success Holdings
Limited (holding 821,349,784 shares), Prime Success Investments
Limited (holding 9,714,800 shares), Lyre Terrace Management
Limited (holding 46,000 shares) and Jingxi Holdings Limited (holding
918,315,849 shares).

ORIX Corporation is interested in (i) all the 300,748,346 shares and
743,333,333 shares held by its direct wholly-owned subsidiary ORIX
Asia Capital Limited and indirect wholly-owned subsidiary Mountain
Tai Peak | Investment Limited, respectively.

Rocket Parade Limited is wholly-owned by NWS FM Limited which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS FM Holdings Limited. FTLife
Insurance Company Limited is wholly-owned by Earning Star Limited
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Success Idea Global Limited.
Both NWS FM Holdings Limited and Success Idea Global Limited
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of NWS Service Management Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) ("NWS Service”), which
was accordingly deemed to be interested in 535,485,105 shares
held by Rocket Parade Limited and 300,000,000 shares held by
FTLife Insurance Company Limited. NWS Service is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NWS Service Management Limited (incorporated in the
Cayman Islands), which is wholly-owned by NWS Holdings Limited
which is held as to 60.86% by New World Development Company
Limited, which in turn is held as to 44.55% by Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited (“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”). Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises is wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited,
which is held as to 81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited,
which in turn is held as to 48.98% and 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited and by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1)
Limited respectively.
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4. HOPU Investments Co. lll Ltd ("HOPU Investments”) is interested
in 543,092,891 (2,715,464,456 shares before the Share
Consolidation) shares held by its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Soteria Financial Investment Company Limited (“Soteria Financial
Investment”). Soteria Financial Investment is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Soteria Financial Holding Company Limited, which in
turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU USD Master Fund Ili, L.P,
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of HOPU Investments.

5. As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 7,081,017,194 ordinary shares.

December 2020, the
Company had not been notified of any person (other than

Save as disclosed above, as at 31

a Director or chief executive of the Company), who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” below, at no time during the year had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or
any contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of their subsidiaries.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, there
is a sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual
report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme"”), which became
effective on 29 May 2012.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(the “Invested Entities”). The 2012 Scheme shall be valid
and effective for the period of ten years commencing on 25
May 2012, being the date on which the 2012 Scheme was
conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the Company, and
ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or
directors (including executive and non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of the Invested
Entities, and any advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers,
customers and distributors, who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries and/or any of the Invested Entities,
share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.
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No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. The maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share options
which may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is 895,330,622
(being 179,066,124 shares after the Share Consolidation
becoming effective), representing approximately 2.46% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. The total number of shares of the Company issued
and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of share
options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) to each grantee in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer shall not exceed
1% of the number of shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, which would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the offer
of such grant (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue on the date of the grant; and
(b) having an aggregate value of in excess of HK$5,000,000
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of each grant), such further grant of options shall be subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’
approval in a general meeting on a poll at which the grantee,
his/her associates and all core connected persons of the
Company shall abstain from voting in favour of the resolution
concerning the grant of such options, and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time. A connected person of the Company will be permitted to
vote against the grant only if his intention to do so has been
stated in the circular. Any grant of share options to a Director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, is required to be approved by
the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding the
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
options).
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The period during which a share option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save
that no share option may be exercised more than ten years
after it has been granted under the 2012 Scheme. There is no
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered
to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time
of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share
options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of offer of share options. Each of the grantees is
required to pay HK$1.00 as a consideration for his acceptance
of the grant of share options in accordance with the 2012
Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted within 30
days from the date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general
meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme
since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2020, there
was no share option outstanding under the 2012 Scheme.
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SHARES ISSUED

(a)

Issued (i) 18,666,666* shares on 17 January
2020, and (ii) 77,790,000* shares on 20
January 2020 and 743,333,333* shares on 5
February 2020

On 29 November 2019, the Company entered into the

following agreements to reserve and replenish funds for

the rapid development of the Group’s main businesses

and the increase in the Group’s market share:

(i)

a subscription agreement (the “Shougang
Holding Subscription Agreement”) with
Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Shougang Holding"”), pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue and Shougang Holding has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of
18,666,666* (93,333,333 shares before the
Share Consolidation) new ordinary shares
of the Company (the “Shougang Holding
Subscription Shares”) at a subscription price
of HK$0.30 (before the Share Consolidation) per
Shougang Holding Subscription Share, equivalent
to an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$28,000,000. Completion of the Shougang
Holding Subscription Agreement took place
on 17 January 2020. The Shougang Holding
Subscription Shares were allotted and issued on
17 January 2020 under the specific mandate
granted by the shareholders to the Directors at
the general meeting of the Company held on 10
January 2020 (the “2020 GM").

The subscription price of HK$0.30 per Shougang
Holding Subscription Share represented a discount
of approximately 13.04% over the closing price
of HK$0.345 per ordinary share of the Company
as at the date of entering into Shougang Holding
Subscription Agreement.
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(i)

a subscription agreement with each of ORIX
Asia Capital Limited (“ORIX Asia”) (the “CB
Subscription Agreement 1”), Matrix Partners
China V, L.P. ("Matrix Partners V") (the “CB
Subscription Agreement I11”) and Matrix
Partners China V-A, L.P. ("Matrix Partners
V-A") (the "CB Subscription Agreement
11") (collectively, the “CB Subscription
Agreements”), pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue and ORIX
Asia, Matrix Partners V and Matrix Partners
V-A (collectively, the “CB Subscribers”) have
conditionally agreed to subscribe for the zero
coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,231,685,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds"”), of which ORIX Asia
agreed to subscribe for a principal amount
of HK$1,115,000,000, Matrix Partners V
agreed to subscribe for a principal amount of
HK$105,693,000 and Matrix Partners V-A agreed
to subscribe for HK$10,992,000. The Convertible
Bonds will mature at the second anniversary of
its issue date and are convertible into shares of
the Company (the “Conversion Shares”) upon
the exercise of the conversion rights attaching
to the Convertible Bonds at a conversion price
of HK$0.30 (before the Share Consolidation) per
Conversion Share (subject to adjustments).
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Completion of the CB Subscription Agreements
took place on 17 January 2020. On 20 January
2020, 70,462,000* (352,310,000 shares before
the Share Consolidation) Conversion Shares
and 7,328,000* (36,640,000 shares before the
Share Consolidation) Conversion Shares were
allotted to Matrix Partners V and Matrix Partners
V-A respectively upon receipt of a conversion
notice from each of Matrix Partners V and Matrix
Partners V-A to convert the Convertible Bonds
in the principal amount of HK$105,693,000 and
HK$10,992,000 respectively in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds under the specific mandate granted
by the shareholders of the Company to the
Directors at the 2020 GM. On 5 February
2020, 743,333,333* (3,716,666,666 shares
before the Share Consolidation) Conversion
Shares were allotted to ORIX Asia’s designated
person, Mountain Tai Peak | Investment Limited
("Mountain Tai Peak”), upon issuance
of a mandatory conversion notice by the
Company to Mountain Tai Peak to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$1,115,000,000 in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Convertible Bonds under
the specific mandate granted by the shareholders
of the Company to the Directors at the 2020 GM.
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(b)
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Issued 300,000,000* shares on 21 February
2020

On 14 February 2020, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement (the “FTLife Insurance
Subscription Agreement”) with FTLife Insurance
Company Limited ("FTLife Insurance”) to raise capital
and resources required for the Group's development
which will contribute to better investment return for
the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
FTLife Insurance Subscription Agreement, the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue and FTLife
Insurance has conditionally agreed to subscribe for an
aggregate of 300,000,000* (1,500,000,000 shares
before the Share Consolidation) new ordinary shares
of the Company (the “FTLife Insurance Subscription
Shares”) at a subscription price of HK$0.30 (before the
Share Consolidation) per FTLife Insurance Subscription
Share, equivalent to an aggregate amount of
HK$450,000,000. Completion of the FTLife Insurance
Subscription Agreement took place on 21 February
2020. The FTLife Insurance Subscription Shares were
allotted and issued on 21 February 2020 under the
general mandate granted by the shareholders to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28 May 2019.

The subscription price of HK$0.30 per FTLife
Insurance Subscription Share represented a discount
of approximately 15.49% over the closing price of
HK$0.355 per ordinary share of the Company as at the
date of entering into the FTLife Insurance Subscription
Agreement.

* The number of shares were consolidated under the Share
Consolidation.
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(c)

Issued 103,626,943 shares on 9 September
2020 and 51,813,471 shares on 9 October 2020

On 27 July 2020, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Poly Platinum
Subscription Agreement”) with Poly Platinum
Enterprises Limited (“Poly Platinum”) to finance the
expansion of the Group’s businesses in management
and operation of car parking assets in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area and technology
innovation of the Group. Pursuant to the Poly
Platinum Subscription Agreement, the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue and Poly Platinum has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for the 1% per annum
convertible bonds in the aggregate principle amount
of HK$300,000,000 (the “Poly Platinum Convertible
Bonds”). The Poly Platinum Convertible Bonds will
mature at the third anniversary of its issue date and
are convertible into shares of the Company (the “Poly
Platinum Conversion Shares”) upon the exercise of
the conversion rights attaching to the Poly Platinum
Convertible Bonds at a conversion price of HK$1.93 per
Poly Platinum Convertible Share (subject to adjustments).

Completion of the subscription of the Poly Platinum
Convertible Bonds took place on 10 August 2020. On
9 September 2020 and 9 October 2020, 103,626,943
and 51,813,471 Poly Platinum Conversion Shares
respectively were allotted to Poly Platinum upon
exercise of conversion rights to convert the Poly
Platinum Convertible Bonds in the principle amount of
HK$200,000,000 and HK$100,000,000 respectively in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Poly
Platinum Convertible Bonds under the general mandate
granted by the shareholders of the Company to the
Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 22 May 2020 (“2020 AGM").

The conversion price of HK$1.93 per Poly Platinum
Conversion Share represented a premium of
approximately 4.89% over the closing price of HK$1.84
per ordinary share of the Company as at the date of
entering into the Poly Platinum Subscription Agreement.
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(d)

132

Issued 210,000,000 shares on 3 February 2021

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into (i)
a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”)
with Jingxi Holdings Limited (“Jingxi Holdings”, a
substantial shareholder of the Company) as placing
shareholder and the placing agents (Huatai Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and BOCI Asia
Limited) for the placing of 210,000,000 shares of the
Company beneficially owned by Jingxi Holdings (the
“Placing Shares”) by the placing agents to not less
than six placees (all of whom/which are independent
professional, institutional and/or other individual
investors) at a placing price of HK$2.03 per Placing
Share (the “Placing Price”) (the “Placing”);
(i) a subscription letter with Jingxi Holdings for the
subscription of a maximum of 210,000,000 shares of the
Company (the “Jingxi Holdings Subscription Shares”,
being equivalent to the number of Placing Shares sold
by Jingxi Holdings pursuant to the Placing but less
the number of defaulted Placing Shares if any) at a
subscription price which is equivalent to the Placing Price
but less the commission, fees and expenses incurred by
Jingxi Holdings in connection with the Placing (being
equivalent to a net price of approximately HK$2.00 per
Jingxi Holdings Subscription Share) (“Subscription”),
to enable the Group to promote the rapid development
of its principal businesses, to continuously increase its
market shares and to provide better investment returns
to the shareholders of the Company. Completion of the
Placing and the Subscription took place on 29 January
2021 and 3 February 2021 respectively. 210,000,000
Jingxi Holdings Subscription Shares were allotted and
issued on 3 February 2021 to Jingxi Holdings under the
general mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company to the Directors at the 2020 AGM.

and

The Placing Price of HK$2.03 per Placing Share
represented a discount of approximately 9.78% over
the closing price of HK$2.25 per ordinary share of the
Company as at the date of entering into the Placing
Agreement.
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Details of the total funds raised from the issue of the Shougang
Holding Subscription Shares, the Convertible Bonds, the FTLife
Insurance Subscription Shares, Poly Platinum Convertible
Bonds and Jingxi Holdings Subscription Shares and the use
of proceeds are set out under the sections headed “USE OF
PROCEEDS"” and "EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIODS” in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME"” and “SHARES ISSUED" above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
(whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during the year.

DISTRIBUTION RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Ordinance, details
of which are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate sales of
continuing operations attributable to the Group's five largest
customers combined were less than 30% of the Group's total
sales of continuing operations and the aggregate purchases of
continuing operations attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers combined were less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases of continuing operations.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following connected transactions and continuing

connected transactions were recorded during the year and up

to the date of this annual report:

Connected Transactions

(a)

(b)

134

Shougang Holding Subscription Agreement dated
29 November 2019

On 29 November 2019, the Company as issuer entered
into the Shougang Holding Subscription Agreement
with Shougang Holding as subscriber in relation to the
subscription of 18,666,666* (93,333,333 shares before
the Share Consolidation) new ordinary shares of the
Company at a subscription price of HK$0.30 per share.
The Completion of the Shougang Holding Subscription
Agreement took place on 17 January 2020. Details of
the Shougang Holding Subscription Agreement are set
out under the section headed “SHARES ISSUED" above.

ki The number of shares were consolidated under the Share

Consolidation.

Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Agreement dated
27 March 2020

On 27 March 2020, Beijing Shouxing Zhixing Parking
Management Co., Ltd. (R EEHEITFHIBEIER
[R/A7&, “Shouxing Zhixing"),
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shougang Fund

an indirect wholly-

entered into an agreement (the “Shouzhong Parking
Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to which Shouxing
Zhixing agreed to acquire and Shougang Fund agreed
to sell 33.136% equity interest in Beijing Shouzhong
Car Parking Management Co., Ltd. GEREHEFEE
BERAE, “Shouzhong Parking”), representing
RMB72,900,000 in the registered capital of Shouzhong
Parking, at a consideration of RMB94,410,000 (the
“Shouzhong Parking Acquisition”), subject to
fulfilment or waiver of the conditions precedent set out
therein.
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Upon completion of the Shouzhong Parking Acquisition,
Shouxing Zhixing, E Park Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (BB{=E (JtR) K EEEHBR LB, formerly known
as Shouzhong Investment Management Co., Ltd. (&
FRIREEBIERRAR), "E Park”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Beijing Static
Traffic Anda Parking Management Co., Ltd (b REFAE
REBLZIEFEBEEBRAB) will hold approximately
67.682%, 31.5% and 0.818% equity interest in
Shouzhong Parking respectively, and the Company’s
aggregate indirect equity interest in Shouzhong Parking
will be increased from approximately 66.046% to
approximately 99.182%. After the increase of Shouxing
Zhixing's equity interest in Shouzhong Parking through
the Shouzhong Parking Acquisition, the Company
will participate more extensively in projects of Beijing
Daxing International Airport which will contribute to
accumulating operation experience of parking project of
transportation hub, a segment the Company wishes to
further expand its leading advantage in the future.

Given that Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules as at the date of the
Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Agreement, the entering
into of the Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the transactions contemplated under the
Shouzhong Parking Acquisition Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
27 March 2020.
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Micro Parking Loan Agreement dated 23 June 2020

On 23 June 2020, Beijing Shouda Huihe Enterprise
Services Co., Ltd. (AR EEZEZELXRBFEERLE,
“Shouda Huihe"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as lender entered into a loan agreement (the
“Micro Parking Loan Agreement”) with Micro Parking
(Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. ({2 E (It R) RHEEAERA
B], "Micro Parking”) as borrower and Beijing Vstartup
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. At RAIZE A%
KREREAEMAT, "Vstartup”) as guarantor, pursuant
to which Shouda Huihe agreed to grant Micro Parking,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vstartup, a credit facility
of up to RMB50,000,000 (the “Credit Facility”) for a
term of up to three years at an interest rate of 6.88%
per annum and Vstartup agreed to provide guarantee
in favour of Shouda Huihe to secure the payment
obligations of Micro Parking under the Micro Parking
Loan Agreement. The entering into of the Micro Parking
Loan Agreement will promote and facilitate further
cooperation between the Group and Vstartup.

Given that (i) Shougang Fund is a substantial shareholder
of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules, and (ii) Beijing Jingxi
Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. Gt =
FAAIXKREETEEEBMRAE, "Jingxi Venture”), a
subsidiary of the Company, and Shougang Fund are
both shareholders holding approximately 24.19% and
20.56% equity interest respectively of Vstartup. Vstartup
is a commonly held entity falling within the meaning of
Rule 14A.27 of the Listing Rules. Hence, the granting of
the Credit Facility by Shouda Huihe to Vstartup’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, Micro Parking, and the provision of
guarantee by Vstartup under the Loan Agreement in
aggregate constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the Micro Parking Loan Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 23 June
2020.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

(0

EH 4202046523 H A9 15 E 57 & 7

2202068230 AR BE2EK B
RE R EERSCERBERAE
(TEEZS) FAERANENEER
(tR) BEERAE (IMMERE]) F
BERARLFRAEAMRELERE
RAE (TRIEA)) EAERAES
TERERE ((MEEERER]) &
ILEEEERREAEATZENE
NEIWEEHE FRCEINBBARE
50,000,000t EE (&) » FF]
E75%6.88% HAIRNHEBB=F BIZEA
HEERABEEGRMBER URSE
EHMEEERER THEENEES
FoMEEEREGRNETRHEER
EEAREAMZENE—FT S

(D RELTRA > - BHESELR
BMNEERR AEAERRTZHE
AL & (i) ZREHRBATIERR
FRIEREETEERRAR ((RAE
B ) REHESHR/AELQMLN
R DRIFTBRIZEA1L4924.19%H
20.56% BV m o Bl E QLR EHRRAY
BUAA2TIRFIEENHRARKAEERE R
I RELHRA - HEZEMAIE
AHNEENBATDMEERHNE
E URBREBEEREGRAIELTRM
R —HBR T AR ZHER
5o

MEEERERAREBETRETZR
SHEBEREK AT HEA202056H4
3HMASEHIRE -



(d)

Construction Contract dated 4 August 2020

On 4 August 2020, E Park entered into a contract
(the “Construction Contract”) with Beijing Shoujia
Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (At REZ=MEEE IR AT,
“Shoujia Steel”) under a public tender, pursuant to
which E Park agreed to engage Shoujia Steel as the
general contractor to carry out the construction works
for a new multi-storey parking garage project of The
15th Research Institute of China Electronics Technology
Group Corporation (FEIBEFRZEBABE+HIAR
Ffr)in Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC (the “Project”)
at the bid-winning price of RMB11,495,461.10. The
entering into of the Construction Contract is a strong
alliance between E Park and Shoujia Steel, which aims
to build the Project into a benchmark project to provide
convenient, comfortable and efficient parking services
for the surrounding citizens.

Given that Shougang Group is a substantial shareholder
of the Company, Shoujia Steel is an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of Shougang Group and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules as at the date of the Construction Contract, the
entering into of the Construction Contract constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Details of the Construction Contract and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 4 August
2020.
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Lvjie Fund Acquisition Agreement dated 9
November 2020

On 9 November 2020, Jingxi Venture, Science
and Technology SME Technology Innovation Fund
Management Centre, Ministry of Science and Technology
(MR RPN ERTAMESEERD,
“MOST Innovation Fund Management Centre”) and
Beijing Shougang Lvjie Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (b=
Bl XKL EARBR LB, "Lvjie Fund”) entered
into an agreement (the “Lvjie Fund Acquisition
Agreement”), pursuant to which MOST Innovation
Fund Management Centre agreed to sell and Jingxi
Venture agreed to acquire approximately 11.22% equity
interest in Lvjie Fund, representing RMB32,000,000 in
the registered capital of Lvjie Fund, at a consideration of
RMB33,811,506.85 (the “Lvjie Fund Acquisition”).

Upon completion of the Lvjie Fund Acquisition, Jingxi
Venture's aggregate equity interest in Lvjie Fund will be
increased from approximately 1.17% to approximately
12.39%. The Lvjie Fund Acquisition is precisely the
implementation of the Company's philosophy of
investment.

Given that Shougang Group is a controlling shareholder
and a controller of the Company within the meaning
of the Listing Rules and Shougang Fund is a substantial
shareholder of Lvjie Fund, the entering into of the Lvjie
Fund Acquisition Agreement constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under Rule 14A.28(1) of
the Listing Rules. Details of the Lvjie Fund Acquisition
Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 9 November 2020.

Lvjie Fund is a joint venture company established
under the laws of the PRC with limited liability and has
engaged Jingxi Venture as its manager. The provision of
management services from Jingxi Venture to Lvjie Fund
has been covered under the 2020 Master Agreement (as
defined below) in the subsection headed "Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the section headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”.
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(f)

Jingxinda Loan Agreement dated 30 December 2020

On 30 December 2020, Jingji Tiancheng (Beijing) Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (REXR (ItR) E€EEH
FR/AF], “Jingji Capital”),
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement

an indirect wholly-owned

(the "Jingxinda Loan Agreement”) as lender with
Beijing Jingxinda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(AtRBBEFMEREBR AT, "Jingxinda”), a
project company wholly-owned by Shoujing Xiangying
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (BEEEBLXEEA
fR/A&], “Shoujing Xiangying"), as borrower, pursuant
to which lJingji Capital has agreed to provide a credit
loan in the principal amount of RMB18,900,000 (the
"Loan”) to Jingxinda for a term of up to four months
and extendable to a maximum of eight months at an
interest rate of 6.88% per annum. Shoujing Xiangying
is a joint venture fund company managed by Jingji
Capital and held as to 70% by Beijing Shougang
Industry Transformation Fund Co., Ltd. (b R E$ME %
EAEESAHERAT), which in turn is 1.23%, 37.04%
and 61.73% owned by Jingji Capital, Shougang Group
and Shougang Fund respectively. The entering into of
the Jingxinda Loan Agreement is to ensure the normal
operation of Shoujing Xiangying during the transitional
period of its proposed restructuring.

Given that Shougang Group and Shougang Fund are
connected persons of the Company and Jingxinda is an
associate of Shougang Fund and hence is a connected
person of the Company, the provision of the Loan
constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the Jingxinda Loan Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 30 December
2020.
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(i) King Rich Sale and Purchase Agreement dated 15
January 2021, and (ii) Amended and Restated Sale
and Purchase Agreement dated 18 February 2021

(i)

On 15 January 2021, Shoujing Yifei Holdings
Limited (“Shoujing Yifei”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) with King Rich Group
Limited (“King Rich”), pursuant to which
Shoujing Yifei has conditionally agreed to
sell, and King Rich has conditionally agreed
to purchase, (i) the one ordinary share in the
issued share capital of Excel Bond Investments
Limited (“Excel Bond"); (ii) the one ordinary
share in the issued share capital of Fine Power
Group Limited (“Fine Power”); and (iii) the one
ordinary share in the issued share capital of Fair
Gain Investments Limited (”Fair Gain”) (Excel
Bond, Fine Power and Fair Gain, collectively
the “Subject Companies”, are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Shoujing Yifei) (the entire issued
share capital of each of the Subject Companies,
the “Sale Shares”), at a consideration
of HK$3,513,509,976 (the “Proposed
Restructuring”), which reflects an indirect
transfer of 1,463,962,490 shares, representing
an aggregate of approximately 28.98% of all
issued shares of Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”) at
a consideration of HK$2.40 per Shougang
Resources share.

The Proposed Restructuring can facilitate the
Group in utilizing its enhanced resources to
optimize its current principal business structure.

The completion of the Proposed Restructuring
(the "Completion”) is subject to and conditional
upon the fulfillment (or waiver thereof, if
applicable) of certain conditions precedent (the
“Conditions”) as defined in the announcement
of the Company dated 15 January 2021 (the
“Announcement”).
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(i)

On 18 February 2021, Shoujing Yifei entered
into a supplemental agreement to amend and
restate the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the
“Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with King Rich, whereby the key
amendments in the Amended and Restated
Sale and Purchase Agreement including (i) the
Sale Shares is amended to mean (instead of
the entire issued share capital of each of the
Subject Companies) one ordinary share in the
issued share capital of Excel Bond (the “Revised
Sale Share”), representing the entire issued
share capital of Excel Bond. As at Completion,
Excel Bond will indirectly hold 600,000,000
Shougang Resources shares, representing
approximately 11.88% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources; (ii) the consideration for
the Revised Sale Share is HK$1,440,000,000,
which reflects an indirect transfer of 600,000,000
shares at a consideration of HK$2.40 per share
of Shougang Resources, being the same price
per Shougang Resources share as disclosed in
the Announcement; and Conditions (iii) and (iv)
as set out in the section headed “Conditions”
in the Announcement are removed and a new
Condition, being the transfer of 50,954,000
Shougang Resources shares (representing
approximately 1.01% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources) from Ultimate Capital
Limited (“Ultimate Capital”) to Fair Gain (with
each of Ultimate Capital and Fair Gain being a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shoujing Yifei) having
been completed and which is non-waivable, is
added.

Upon completion of the disposal of the Revised
Sale Share pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Amended and Restated Sale and
Purchase Agreement (the “"Revised Proposed
Restructuring”), Excel Bond will cease to
be a subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly,
the Company’s indirect interest in Shougang
Resources will be decreased from approximately
28.98% to approximately 17.1% as a result of

the Revised Proposed Restructuring.
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Given that King Rich is indirectly wholly-owned by
Shougang Group, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, King Rich is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules as at the date
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the entering
into of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the
Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Details of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and the Amended and Restated Sale and
Purchase Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were disclosed in the Announcement and
the announcement of the Company dated 18 February
2021.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(a)

142

2020 Master Agreement dated 18 November 2019

On 18 November 2019, the Company and Shougang
Fund entered into a new private fund management
service agreement (the “2020 Master Agreement”) in
respect of the provision of private fund management
services by the Company and/or its subsidiaries to
Shougang Fund and/or its associates for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2024.

The transaction amounts under the 2020 Master
Agreement during the term of the agreement will not
exceed the following annual caps:

HRREHERNEEEZEEE®RA
MmMEREEAR 2B ZERKE R
b HREERMZAH RER LTHRA
THRABZBEAL BB LHRL
BEWEEARKREBIIREITEEH=ZEN
BB ARBZHABER R BEEWH
ERREITIRETEBERERAEET
BETZREZNFBEERZASERA
NEJHEAA2021F2818HMN R EH
WEo

FHEMER S

(@)

FHFA20194 115 18H FI2020F 455
WE

R2019F 118188 AR B HHE
ERBERAAR/ REKNBRA M
BEMESR AHEHBBARELESR
TEERBIIUHECESERBE HE
(M2020F Z &R > FHIE20204F
1TH1HZE20245E12831H-

RipEFHR 2020 K5 HERET
ZRBERRIASEBEUTEELIR:

For the year ending 31 December

H#E12R31HLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR NEKE AR ANEE AR
Provision of private fund management services 358,000,000 551,000,000 701,000,000 851,000,000 924,000,000
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(b)

Pursuant to the 2020 Master Agreement, the
provision of private fund management services shall
be priced between either (i) 0.1% and 2% of the
capital commitment or the capital contribution of
the partnership each year (as determined under the
respective partnership agreements) for urban renewal
related funds; or (ii) 0.5% and 2% of the capital
commitment or the capital contribution of partnership
each year (as determined under the respective
partnership agreements) for any other types of funds.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Master Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2019 and in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2019.

Carpark Operation Contractor Agreements and
carpark management agreement

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
1 November 2018 and in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2018, Urban Parking (Beijing)
Limited (B3 (bR) EEEEER2AF, "Urban
Parking Beijing”), became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company upon completion of the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Urban Parking Beijing
(i.e. on 28 December 2018) by E Park, entered into (i)
three carpark operation contractor agreements dated
1 April 2015 (the "Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements”) with each of Beijing Chong Wen e New
World Properties Development Co., Ltd. JEEREX
HHAREMEZERABRAT, "Beijing Chongwen”),
Beijing Chong Yu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (3t
REMEMERZBR AR, "Beijing Chongyu”) and
China New World Electronics Ltd. (FE# R EFHIR
‘~&], “China New World Electronics”), each of which
is a subsidiary of New World Development Company
Limited (“New World Development”), which in turn
is a substantial shareholder of the Company; and (ii)
a carpark management agreement dated 1 April 2018
(the "Carpark Management Agreement”) with Beijing
Xianghe Property Management Co., Ltd. Gt R#¥ M 42
BEIEARAE], "Beijing Xianghe"), a subsidiary of New
World Development.
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Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the initial term is 36 months commencing
on 1 April 2015 and expiring on 31 March 2018, after
which Urban Parking Beijing may opt to (and with
respect to the year commencing 1 April 2018, has opted
to) renew the respective Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements for a successive period of one year each,
until 10 years from the date of the agreement, subject
to any framework agreement applicable to Urban
Parking Beijing and re-compliance with the Listing Rules
at the relevant time; and Urban Parking Beijing will
provide carpark operation services to Beijing Chongwen,
Beijing Chongyu and China New World Electronics
for different sections of the carparks in Beijing New
World Department Store Phase 1 and Phase 2 (“Beijing
Carparks”) in return for income from parking, car
detailing, rental fees in the car park, advertising revenue
and other service incomes subject to the following
payments of fees (the “Carpark Operation Contractor
Fees”):

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017

H2015F481HE2017%3831H

RIEZEEESEEARNEHE Y
S HAMR 23618 3 > B2015F48 10
F2018F3831HE®M EREHEE
b RPIEE (RR2018F48 1A
ZEEBEE) RS MZEREEE
BERANEHEERES F BEE RS
HEET10FEAL HASEARSE
WMEBEILR ZEAERBERE
THRERMEBEENET EMRZR
B EREFEELIRRAILLREX IR
SERMPEFEREFRZENRIER
FHRAE BN RN E
B (IZELREER) REEFEES
EERE > MEmEEILREE R
BREBEB REERFESHEZ W
A BEWREEEMRBWA 2T
FRAXNER ((CHBEERNEE
B

Subsequent 2-year period
from 1 April 2017
2017F4R1BEHEREH

Beijing Chongwen
EREX

RMB1,166,975 per year
SEANRM1,166,9757T

Beijing Chongyu
ERRA

RMB1,900,000 per year
g ANRH1,900,0007

China New World Electronics

FREH I R E

RMB733,025 per year
SH AR733,0257T

Pursuant to the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements, the Carpark Operation Contractor Fees are
subject to the following annual caps:

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2017

1 April 2017 to
31 March 2019
20154818 E  201754B1BE

1 April 2019 to
31 March 2021
2019F4H1BE  2021F4B1HE 2023F4B1BE

Approximately 5% increase

EFA5%

Approximately 5% increase
L5BAI5%

Approximately 5% increase

LEBAI5%

REZEFESEEARBHE F
BEREEAMBERZUTEELR
BRI -

1 April 2021 to
31 March 2023

1 April 2023 to
31 March 2025

20174%3H318 2019%3A31H  2021%3H31H  2023%F3A31H  2025%3H31H

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ANEH ANEH ANEH AEHE AEE

Carpark Operation Contractor Fees 3,800,000 3,990,000 4,189,500 4,398,976 4,618,924

FEREERARBHER
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Pursuant to the Carpark Management Agreement, its
term is 24 months commencing on 1 April 2018 and
expiring on 31 March 2020 and Beijing Xianghe will
be responsible for the management and maintenance
services of certain sections of the Beijing Carparks.
Urban Parking Beijing will pay to Beijing Xianghe a
monthly fee of RMB145,000, amounting to an annual
fee of RMB1,740,000 per year, which is also the annual
cap of this agreement.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Carpark Operation Contractor
Agreements and the Carpark Management Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 November 2018 and in the circular of the
Company dated 28 November 2018.

Operation Right Transfer Agreement dated 11
January 2019

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
11 January 2019, an operation right transfer agreement
between Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong Parking was
entered into on 11 January 2019 (the “"Operation Right
Transfer Agreement”) for governing the continuing
connected transactions to be entered into between
Shouxing Zhixing and Shouzhong Parking. Pursuant to
the Operation Right Transfer Agreement, Shouzhong
Parking agreed to transfer to Shouxing Zhixing the
operation right in relation to the convenience facilities
and advertising spaces located in two parking buildings
in Beijing Daxing International Airport for an initial
term of three years commencing from 11 January 2019
to 10 January 2022 (the
extension by Shouxing Zhixing for another three-year

“Initial Term"), subject to
terms up to twenty years from the commencement date
of the Initial Term. In return, Shouxing Zhixing will pay
Shouzhong Parking an annual transfer fee representing
70% of the annual revenue generated from operation of
such convenience facilities and advertising spaces (the
“Annual Transfer Fee").
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The cap amounts of the Annual Transfer Fee for each of
the three years ending 10 January 2022 are as follows:

From 11 January 2019
to 10 January 2020

From 11 January 2020
to 10 January 2021

HE2022F01H10H EZ3EEERH
MEEEZER LRSBEOT

From 11 January 2021
to 10 January 2022

2019%E1B1MAE 2020F1B1MBE 2021FE1B1MBE

202018108 202118108 2022F1810H

HK$ HKS$ HKS$

B B EBHE

Annual Transfer Fee 180,000,000 180,000,000 180,000,000

FEBRER

The Operation Right Transfer Agreement and the
continuing connected transactions with Shouzhong
Parking thereunder would strengthen the Group's
business of car parking facilities and investment
operation in the PRC with a focus on smart car parking
market and to expand the Group’s investment and
operation of airport parking building in the future.

Upon completion of the Shouzhong Parking Acquisition
on 20 April 2020, Shouzhong Parking ceased to be
an associated company of Shougang Fund and hence
ceased to be a connected person of the Company.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the
Operation Right Transfer Agreement ceased to be
continuing connected transactions of the Company
accordingly.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Operation Right Transfer
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 January 2019.
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Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement dated 28
October 2020

On 28 October 2020, E Park entered into a parking
lots cooperation agreement (the “Parking Lots
Cooperation Agreement”) with Beijing Shoushi
Changtai Trading Co., Ltd. QtREMEHREERRER
g, “Shoushi Changtai”) in relation to the continuing
connected transactions involving entrusting the
management and leasing of the parking lots under
the Chang’an Mills (an urban renewal project in New
Shougang High-end Industry Comprehensive Service Park
FrElsiREEFASIRF &, “Shougang Park”), the
“Project”) by Shoushi Changtai to E Park. Pursuant to
which, Shoushi Changtai will entrust the management
of the parking lots under the Project to E Park and shall
pay E Park an annual management fee (the “Annual
Management Fee”) and shall be entitled to all the
revenues generated therefrom for the first five years
(the “Entrusted Management Period”) and Shoushi
Changtai shall lease the parking lots under the Project to
E Park for operation and management for the remaining
years (the “Lease Period”), during which E Park shall
be entitled to all the revenues and shall pay to Shoushi
Changtai a specified percentage of the profit generated
from operating the parking lots under the Project (the
“Annual Variable Lease Payment”). The initial term
of the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement shall be
ten years commencing from the day after the date of
completion and successful acceptance of construction
of all parking lots under the Project, which shall be
extended automatically for another ten years provided
that E Park has not breached any specific terms as
stipulated in the Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement.

The entering into of the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement is for that the industrial/office parking
is the key focus of the Company and the Company
will work with Shoushi Changtai to build parking lots
with international green standard under the guidance
of the goal of unified brand image, service model,
management standards, operation and maintenance
support, and internal control and supervision of
Shougang Park.
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The cap amounts of the Annual Management Fee during
the Entrusted Management Period and the Annual
Variable Lease Payment during the Lease Period are as
follows:

ZAEEMANEEEEERBEHRN
FEIIFEREEH LRIENOT :

During the
Entrusted
Management During the
Period Lease Period
REXEEHRA RIEEHRA
RMB RMB
ANRE ANRE
Annual Management Fee payable to E Park
BANFECENFEEEE 6,000,000 -
Annual Variable Lease Payment payable by E Park
BRERIANFEFEHEES - 6,000,000

The first contract year is 12 months from the day after
the date of completion and successful acceptance of
construction of all parking lots under the Project, which
is expected to be on 30 July 2021. Accordingly, the
period end date for each of the annual cap under each
of the Entrusted Management Period and the Lease
Period is expected to be by 30 July each year starting
from 2022 and by 30 July each year starting from 2027.

Given that Shougang Group is a connected person of
the Company and indirectly holds approximately 48.86%
interest in Shoushi Changtai, Shoushi Changtai is a
connected person of the Company by virtue of it being
an associate of the connected person of the Company
and hence, the transactions contemplated under the
Parking Lots Cooperation Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Parking Lots Cooperation
Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 28 October 2020 and 9 November
2020.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

F—EAERFEAEBZEEE N2
FEBETIRBKEE XA (Bt T
B & HEA2021E78300) 1218
BoAEIt ZREEHELAAERZESF
ELERENEAREREAES 2SS
2022 EEEM7H30B R BE2027F
EEEEM7H30

BNERARABDZEAEA T REE
BFEEMERN48.86%EH » HILE
MEZABMARTBMEALT ZHE
AMMARAB ZEEAL AL R
BLEmRAFESS 1$T£%uﬁlé?$§m
ETZRZERARE 2 FFERE
%o

EEEBSEHEBE NRET ZFER
BRXHZEBERAREH H}%?%zozo
F10828H %2020 11A9RZ A
R EE o



In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
the continuing connected transactions as set out above
during the year have been reviewed by the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(0) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC"”), was engaged to report on the Group’'s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the paragraphs above in
accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’'s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which were
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements. For those related
party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be)
(other than those described in the section above headed
“CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS”) under the Listing Rules, such transactions
were fully exempt from shareholder’s approval, annual review
and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 82 to 111 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended
31 December 2020 will be set out in a separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report to be published on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited in due course.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the
Company and PwC has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, both with effect from 1 August
2018.

Save as disclosed, there has been no other change in the
auditor of the Company in any of the preceding three years.

PwC will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to reappoint PwC as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Zhao Tianyang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
&AL R S

_
pwc B H ok

To the Members of Shoucheng Holdings Limited BNEEERBRAGRKE
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REAEF M IIBIERA E])
OPINION BER

What we have audited BMEBHNAR

The consolidated financial statements of Shoucheng Holdings BERZERAREAT U THBIEAT) KE
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) MIBAT UT#HEEEM)) 7HNFE159F
set out on pages 159 to 322, which comprise: 3SNEBNGEMBRE 81F

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 e R2020F12A31BHNEE M BRI
December 2020; =

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for HEZHILFENGFE2ERER ;
the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the e HEZHIIFENGFRORREDK ;
year then ended,;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year e HEZOLFENHFEaRERER;
then ended; and &~

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, GEVBRRNNF SR ETEFZHH
which include a summary of significant accounting RiEE-

policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of investment in an associate — Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (“Shougang Resources”).
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&AL R S

Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KN BE MR RS+ EE

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Resources

R—EBEQR (BRER RENFENE

Refer to Notes 4 and 18(A) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held significant
interests in Shougang Resources, an associate of the
Group which engaged in coking coal mining, production
and sales of coking coal products. The carrying amount
of the investment aggregated to HK$5,106,025,000 of
which HK$1,048,488,000 was goodwill. An impairment
assessment was performed in respect of the investment
in Shougang Resources. In carrying out the impairment
assessment, management calculated the recoverable
amount based on value-in-use calculation, as determined
by the discounted cash flow model. The key assumptions
of the discounted cash flow model included revenue
growth rates, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
the discount rate which required significant management
judgement.

F2RAREMBRERNEARMEE18(A)°

R2020%F12831H EE£EEFEEHER( E5£H
W—EREEERER SERHENHKE AR 2B A
Mmoo EZIREMB S AB5,106,025,00070 ° HA B
1,048,488,000c A E . SEECMPRERNERZKE
T’E&f]ﬁiﬁ%ﬂé°E§T’Eﬁ5JﬁJZTE§WEE%’@E*EE*E}EEEESEEEE
ERBRANEBEEZERBETEYREIEEE BRIRIRE R
E%‘ZTE’JEE;:@R OREEEHEASEBHE 2 WAL E
BIEEREFERLERE.

Based on the result of the impairment assessment
conducted by management of the Group, no provision for
impairment was necessary as at 31 December 2020.

We focused on this area because the carrying amount of
the investment in Shougang Resources was significant
to the consolidated financial statements. Further, the
judgement and assumptions applied to the impairment
assessment in calculating the recoverable amount based
on the discounted cash flow model were critical.

B2 E£EEREEBEEFUARETENER 122020512
B31HERFLRERRE-

BAEIREFEPHRRERNEREEZ REEREGDS
PEREAMEBEA I REMBEHEEREBENFE
IO RS R A B E AR B R RRTTBEK -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of the investment in this associate included:

- Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
recoverable amount of investment in an
associate;

- Assessing the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias.;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of management'’s
model used in the value-in-use calculation
and assessing the accuracy of mathematical
calculations used in the model;

HAMNZHE QD RENBENERNVEF S !

- THREEENAEZEGNHEHRE BT WERE
%ﬁéﬁqn;'fﬁ %E )

- BB E BT N EEMNEENEMEE &R E
= PImEHEE - THRE - ZBNHEERRNOH
BRI BYKFARTEERFERNVE S AR ;

- AEEEERNERBESERAER RN
%‘I& WS AR BRI P E BB R ST E Y2

L/_T

Fici
i3
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- Challenging the appropriateness and reasonableness
of the key assumptions, which included revenue
growth rates, terminal growth rate, gross margin
and discount rate based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry and taking into account
Shougang Resources’ future operating plans.
This included comparing (i) the revenue growth
rates, terminal growth rate and gross margin to
industry trends and Shougang Resources’ historical
performance and (ii) the cost of capital used for
Shougang Resources to the discount rates of
comparable companies in the industry;

- BERMPABEBRTEZ TR BTEKEEHHE
BRIRRAGE B KBMERERFEARR
ZEEMKRGENL GFRBAERR XEER
KBRS EE()RAIERE XA
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt HI1E

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KA BE MR IERARE T SE

R—EBELR (BHER RENRENG (&

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate - Shougang Resources (continued)

Comparing the current year’s actual results
with the prior year’'s forecast to assess the
reasonableness of management'’s forecasting;

Reconciling the data input in the impairment
assessment to supporting evidence such as
budgets approved by the Board; and

Evaluating management’s sensitivity analysis
on the key assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow model to understand the impact
of reasonable changes in assumptions on the
estimated recoverable amounts.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
key assumptions and estimates made by management
were supported by the available evidence.

WAFEBREEH I —FENRAETLER
LEHEEERRAZEEM ;
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
WAL RS

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
WAL RS

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

nv'F

BEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 EBETFT BT
Continuing operations FBIREET
Revenue A 5 705,854 396,091
Cost of sales HE K 8 (531,460) (193,695)
Gross profit EF 174,394 202,396
Other income Hug A 6 138,641 92,690
Other gains, net H fth g 25 75 28 7 822 21,873
Provision for impairment losses FE UL AR TR (B S 1B 1
for trade receivables 21 (1,071) (400)
Changes in fair value of commodity contracts BmENZARNBEEE 2 = (3,618)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBNBABZEE 34 - (124,599)
Gain on bargain purchase EBEWE N E 31 - 86,155
Administrative expenses TR H 8 (250,972) (230,774)
Operating profit R 61,814 43,723
Finance costs R A 10 (77,168) (27,358)
Share of results of associates HOMENB 2 EE 18(4) 343,320 295,502
Share of results of joint ventures BhEERNB 2 EE 18(B) 344,069 89
Profit before income tax BREF IS AR F 672,035 311,956
Income tax (expense)/credit 8 (24) /[l 11 (36,565) 129,205
Profit from continuing operations FEREEH Zu 635,470 441,161
Profit from discontinued operation EARIERESEE 2 mF]
(attributable to equity holders of (ABI =
the Company) BB AEM 32 = 904
Profit for the year FEGH 635,470 442,065
Profit/(loss) is attributable to: LT ALTEMSEFR,
(B548) :
Owners of the Company KABIHEB A 658,613 443,003
Non-controlling interests JEEREm (23,143) (938)
635,470 442,065
BB ERAT 2020658 159



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEZEERmR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
Vit:3 BT BT
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hit 2@~ (§518)
Items that have been/maybe subsequently B#E 1% AT 5ENFE#F
reclassified to profit or loss: DEEEEZEE
Share of exchange differences of associates BUEBEABDREELT
and joint ventures arising on translation of TEBINEBEEZ
foreign operations bE R =28 154,656 (70,072)
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon RHE—FERBEARE
disposal of a subsidiary EMDEERMEE - (96,563)
Exchange differences arising on translation of & EINEFHLEE
foreign operations PER e 125,339 (55,264)
Items that will not be reclassified to HTEEHFEE
profit or loss: BmZHEE
Share of fair value change on investment Bh—EBE R B WREE
in equity instruments designated A AnEEE AHM
at fair value through other comprehensive 2@ (518 WEZ
(loss)/income of an associate BATEREZ
NRBEES (402) 96,905
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEHMEZME
for the year W (§518) 279,593 (124,994)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEREUIKEFLAEE 915,063 317,071
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UTALTE&GZZE
attributable to: Wz, (B548) 48%8 .
Owners of the Company KABHB A 919,766 322,174
Non-controlling interests JEFER (4,703) (5,103)
915,063 317,071
Total comprehensive income attributable to &KAFEAE AELZ
owners of the Company: EEINEEEE -
Continuing operations FERE T 919,766 321,270
Discontinued operation BAR IS 2 32 - 904
919,766 322,174
Earnings per share for profit from AT EBEEZFAEA
continuing operations attributable to LB E T
the ordinary equity holders of B ZEREF
the Company:
— Basic earnings per share (HK cents) — & A GBA) 12 9.62 8.31*
- Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) —#% R GBI 12 9.57 8.31*
Earnings per share for profit attributable to N AT LB EFIFEA
the ordinary equity holders of Bl afzE8RERN !
the Company:
- Basic earnings per share (HK cents) —E & GB) 12 9.62 8.33*
- Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) — R GB) 12 9.57 8.33*
& Adjusted for the effect of share consolidation on 30 March 2020. * 20203830 R M EaH L ERE-

The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an integral part of these 55167E322B iz ANGEMBERERZE
consolidated financial statements. FRER 15 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRR

As at 31 December 2020 7220201283 1H

2020 2019
Note HK$000 HK$'000
sz BUEFT BIEF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN AN ET 13(4) 39,748 17,234
Right-of-use assets BREEE 13(B) 1,753,170 1,087,452
Contract assets in respect of BB EE 2
service concession arrangements BERNGHNEE 5 88,274
Investment properties REME 14 158,521 148,856
Investments in associates E BENTZERE 18(4) 5,269,687 5,034,394
Investments in joint ventures AEENEIZRE 18(B) 656,143 269,471
Financial assets at fair value through ?ﬂ’&ﬁﬂafﬁ SFABEZ
profit or loss — non-current ERHEE-FRE 19 616,239 238,569
Financial assets at amortised cost BREBGREAANRZEHEE 20 93,671 =
Prepayments and deposits BAMERRE 21 296,736 129,671
Deferred income tax assets RERBREE 29 16 3,076
Other non-current assets HMERHEE 15 338,970 258,756
Total non-current assets FERBEELEE 9,311,175 7,187,479
Current assets MEEE
Trade receivables FEUSBR 7R 21 190,674 99,294
Prepayments, deposits and BB -BREk
other receivables HAhFEW B 21 333,564 103,079
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFAER
profit or loss — current THEE-TRH 19 514,796 527,194
Restricted bank deposits ZIREISRITER 23 36,890 22,763
Bank balances and cash RITHEEBNIRE 24 3,738,533 3,057,215
Total current assets REEELE 4,814,457 3,809,545
Total assets wEE 14,125,632 10,997,024
Equity gy
Capital and reserves B2 K (it
Share capital N 26 12,127,547 10,125,972
Reserves G (355,257) (441,667)
Capital and reserves attributable to owners Zx2AF#H AW
of the Company B 2 e ek £ 11,772,290 9,684,305
Non-controlling interests FERER 147,008 138,319
Total equity s 11,919,298 9,822,624
The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an integral part of these SF167E322B st ARGEMFRK 2
consolidated financial statements. BEER1D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EEMBIKRR

As at 31 December 2020 732020512831H

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wizt BETFT BEFT
LIABILITIES aff
Non-current liabilities FERBERE
Borrowings - non-current BR—IER 28 476,832 450,957
Lease liabilities — non-current HEGG-ERH 13(B) 1,011,584 397,411
Deferred income tax liabilities RILFrEMas 29 18,063 36,070
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEEE 1,506,479 884,438
Current liabilities mEARE
Trade payables FE ATER AR 27 204,622 22,324
Other payables, provision and HMEMRIE BEK
accrued liabilities s aE 27 216,404 145,005
Contract liabilities aBHNERE 5 89,070 9,611
Tax payable FERHRIE 60,831 33,959
Borrowings - current B RE 28 6,100 5,710
Lease liabilities - current HEER-—RE 13(B) 122,828 73,353
Total current liabilities TEEEELE 699,855 289,962
Total liabilities mafmE 2,206,334 1,174,400
Total equity and liabilities HEEEREaE 14,125,632 10,997,024

The consolidated financial statements on pages 159 to 322

were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021

and were signed on its behalf.

Zhao Tianyang
HXE

Director

s
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EAESBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 BT BIEFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZRERE
Net cash generated from operations EBEEMBRETH 35 92,191 256,096
Interest paid BXARE - (118)
Income tax paid BIFTEH (29,429) (8,843)
Net cash generated from RETHMGEZREFE
operating activities 62,762 247,135
Cash flows from investing activities REEZHZRERE
Advance to associates BYHERT 28BN - (78)
Repayment from associates REBMERBZER = 241
Dividends received from associates BRHMEATZIRE 237,162 248,852
Interest received BUHE 93,422 90,915
Repayment from related companies REBB AR ZEM - 19
Advance to related companies BYEBAT BN (3,299) (6,689)
Placement of restricted bank deposits FRRRHIRTER (16,163) (23,143)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits REZRHRITER 2,036 2,036
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BRENEKE 13(4) (27,651) (11,778)
Capital injections into associates and AETHERIRAERT
joint ventures (17,483) (274,513)
Addition of financial assets at fair value RERARNBESABRZ
through profit or loss TREE (338,181) (1,092,119)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ HERAABEFABZEZ
fair value through profit or loss EHEEZMERE - 672,904
Placement for financial assets at REREGRREARZ
amortised cost THEE 20 (93,671) =
Purchase of other non-current assets BEHMIERHEE 15 (60,923) (83,986)
Payment for acquisitions of subsidiaries, g Ny =WNSIENE
net of cash acquired (NBEWEBIES) 31 = (214,825)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HE—RIE AR ZMEHRE
net of cash disposed (NBRELERS) 33 - 205,961
Proceeds from disposal of commodity contracts HERREX ZFEMIE 22 - 150,000
Prepayment for leases HEBMHIE = (122,694)
Prepayments for construction of property, BREME -BER
plant and equipment REZBARIE (70,024) =
Net cash used in investing activities REZHFMAZETFE (294,775) (458,897)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREAER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2020 2019
Note HK$000 HK$'000
iz BT BIEFT
Cash flows from financing activities MEZHZRERE
Repayment of borrowings BEREN (462,798) (102,904)
Proceeds from borrowings EENIE ¢ 443,498 =
Net proceeds from issuance of BONBRES 2T
convertible bonds HIE S 25 1,521,829 =
Interest paid BXARE - (16,959)
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BOEBRZMERIERE 26 477,254 1,295,543
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEER (272,876) (18,971)
Step acquisition in a subsidiary DT WE—EHE AT 33(a) (105,000) -
Capital injection from non-controlling interests JFIEMREZ A E 33(b) 85,210 =
Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders X {fF¥AATREZKRE 30 (800,174) (899,669)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests in {4 F i B AT I
subsidiaries BEZRE - (4,591)
Net cash generated from financing MEEHMEZREZE
activities 886,943 252,449
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RE&RFEEBEYMILNFE 654,930 40,687
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FNzRERREEEY
the year 3,057,215 3,034,026
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SRR EE)  FE 26,388 (17,498)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FXRZREKRREEEY 24 3,738,533 3,057,215
For cash flows of discontinued operation, please refer to Note HEHRBERLEKEXH 2 IBERE  ASEE
32 of the consolidated financial statements. S BMRMEE32

The notes on pages 167 to 322 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

GENERAL INFOMRATION

Shoucheng Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company
and together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in management and operations of
car parking assets business, management of private
funds that are oriented towards urban redevelopment
business and investment holding. The Company's
principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
set out in Notes 17 and 18.

On 28 May 2020, the Company changed its English
name from Shougang Concord International Enterprises
Company Limited to Shoucheng Holdings Limited.

The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are 7th Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been
reviewed by the audit committee of the Company and
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

—RE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

168

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1
(a)

(b)

2.1.1

Basis of preparation

Compliance with HKFRSs
and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
revaluation of investment properties and financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, which are carried at fair values.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2020.

° Definition of Material — amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

° Definition of a Business — amendments to
HKFRS 3

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

o Revised Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

(b)
2.1.1

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Historical cost convention (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the

group.

The Group is still assessing what the impact of the
new standards, interpretations and amendments
will be in the periods of initial application. It
is not yet in a position to state whether these
standards, interpretations, and amendments will
have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1
2.1.1

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective (continued)

EETHBRBE &

21 REEE (B
2.1.1 B HEEERHE
C=))
(b) EEMRERREN ] RAEE
SR AMEREER] (&)
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 BEBEHZ2E

Az Zet AR ER

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Rent Concession related to COVID-19 1 June 2020
EEMBREERF1650ES] HNSmREsEE2HESRE 2020F6H1H

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

To be determined

and HKAS 28

EBMBRESER B0 K
BAEESHER B8R BT

Amendments to HKAS 1

an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

KREEHRHAEBME AR REGE AR ZEW
BEELETLA

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

BT

1 January 2023

BR G ERBIRIER]

Amendment to HKFRS 3

Amendment to HKAS 37

Amendment to HKAS 16
SR G EAIF165R1EET

IASB annual improvements
2018-2020 cycle

2018-2020 IASBEE B IASBEE FZ P 2
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract
EAMHREERF17R REg &4

Amendment to HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(a)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

172

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(b)

(c)

(d)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at
cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified

“Joint Arrangements”

as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the
legal structure of the joint arrangement. The
Company has joint ventures. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’ s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
or joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

2

2

2.2

(b)

(0

(d)

B BRBRE (2

mERREGSRA @

HEREF

MENBIEMBELAEEHERE
BERE ) EZEE R
BEHEZER  —RBEREAR
EERFEWBEE20%E50%%
ERRE-BEATNKEEY
R G 5 AARR > ¥18 DARK A HE

20
SEEH
REEBN SRS EAE1%

B8R REaERHZR
ENERAEEBNAERT -
ZDBRRIEREEZGHOR
MREE MIFGERFZ LR
RE-ARBEESEAT X
ARE B R R D R A A
BB REERARZEmERE
mE BE2RETX) Afke

Vg gy
REBEEmEsHA REDD LUK
REER > HeFURE > Uk
GrEBmREIEERDE
WEERRKREE Z B NER
MR EtEm W AR A E
BommkEEHMEZENRA
28 -BWRSEBIEE AT
BERAZREBIB/RER
EEZRLD -

-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(d)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Equity accounting (continued)

When the Group's share of losses in an equity—
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’
s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments are tested for impairment accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

174

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(e)

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or joint control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associated company,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

(e)

2.3

Principles of consolidation and
equity accounting (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisitions of subsidiaries comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group
o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration

arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2

176

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non—
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition— related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred

o amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2

178

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24

2.5

2.6
(a)

Separate financial statements (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by
the chief operating decision makers, being the
Executive Directors of the Company, that are
used to make strategic decisions and resources
allocation. The Group’s businesses are managed
according to the type of products and services
they provide. No operating segments identified
by the chief operating decision makers have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(b)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within other gains, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income
of consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(c)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as

part of the gain or loss on sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6
(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Group companies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation
and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group's ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight—
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term
or 4 to 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years

equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9
(a)

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are held for long-term
rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other gains,
net.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 15.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

included in “other non-current assets”
Goodwill on acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included in the cost of the investment
in associates or joint ventures. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, being the operating segments.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Separately acquired intangible assets are shown
at historical cost. Intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
The amortisation period and amortisation method
for an intangibles asset with finite useful life are

assessed at every period end.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash generating unit level. Such intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable, if
not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a

prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

2.10

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Carpark operating rights 5 to 10 years
Funds management contracts 3 to 10 years

These intangible assets are included in “other
non-current assets” in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-—
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal

groups) held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use
and a sale is considered highly probable. They
are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets
and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance
contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal
group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the
sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are
part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held
for sale continue to be recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups)

2.12
(a)

held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and
the assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from the other
assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single coordinated plan
to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss);
and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

2.1

2.12
(a)

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K

2 EEEHHREE (2

HAREIFRBEE GLE
HHE) RERILEEER (B

DEARFAREZERBEE
ROERFTAERBEZHEES
EERGAEMBRIEANEAHR
thEEDREI -NEARER
EZHEHMGEBERREYH
MnExAEEMEESRZ5 -

ERIEEEXFIEEREHE
ANBERAFERFELR/BILE
BEBUEEME ZERERD
HEZBEBALEMEBZE
—MEE 2B WERE
EMBBZNEAR - BA&ILEE
EEGZEENGEE2EK S
KPEFEY -

EMEE
bog]

FEEBEEMEENEST
SIEt 2485 -

. BREAAEESE (B
BHEME2EWE (TH
EHEWE) HBEBED
URBRAREE &/
EE &

. BREBHUAFEZSH

NRETFEREESREEL

EHERAKRBEREZGHORK

187



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

188

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other
gains, net together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI,

recognition of impairment gains or losses,

except for the

interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains, net. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains, net
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains, net in

the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in revenue or other gains, net
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1(b)(ii) for further details.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item
being hedged.

During the year, none of the derivative
instruments has qualified for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. Trade
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note
21 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.12
for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short- term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
company’s equity instruments, for example
as the result of a share buy-back or a share-
based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to the owners of the Group
as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received,
net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the

owners of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

The fair value of the liability portion of a
convertible bond is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. This amount is recorded as a liability
on an amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or maturity of the bonds. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option. This is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowing (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value

of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowing costs (continued)

2.21

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

(continued)
Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
properties that is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme") set up pursuant
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets
of the Pension Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administrated fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for the
Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the
Pension Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

In addition to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the Group’s employees in Hong Kong,
the Group is required to contribute to central
pension schemes for certain Group’'s employees
in the PRC based on applicable rates of monthly
salary in accordance with government regulations.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specific contributions.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties
and make good obligations are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24
(a)

(b)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition
Fund management services income

Fund management segment provides fund
management service to investment funds.
Revenue from management fees are recognised
on a time-proportion basis with reference to
the net asset value of the investment funds
and managed accounts. Performance fees are
recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts
when there is a positive performance for the
relevant performance period and it is determined
that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the
relevant basis of calculation for the investment
funds and managed accounts.

Investment income

Investment income includes net gains/losses on
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

Refer to Note 2.12 for the recognition policy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Car park income

Car park income is recognised when the services
is provided.

Leasing income

Refer to Note 2.27 for the recognition policy.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence, the Group does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

Construction services

The Group’s performance in respect of
construction services creates or enhances an asset
or work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction assessed on the basis of
the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and
the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a
service concession arrangement is estimated on
a cost plus basis with reference to a prevailing
market rate of gross margin at the date of the
agreement applicable to similar construction
services rendered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25
(a)

(b)

2.26

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account the after income
tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) and at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Dividends are
recognised as other income in profit or loss when
the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of an investment.
In this case, the dividend is recognised in OCI if
it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
However, the investment may need to be tested

for impairment as a consequence.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESiHHKEHNE &
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases 227 A8

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-
lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leases assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases (continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

2

BEEGTHEEME (&
227 ME #@)
. FEEREENTEE (R

FEBSERETEZ
EERE) &

. AR IERERYETRR ()
MEFRRRRAEETT
ERERKIERE) -

RECERERBEEERERST
EERBEENRITMA B RS

=
=

HENREBEERRESHF
RETMER - WEAREZNE
(FEBBEBBBWU) > AKX
AT ARG BERFZE BE
AIABAR/RBLEERERET
ERUEEHAREEGBEREAN
BE  LURLUR S B R IFMF
BEAFMEET MR AT T

R o

PHETREERIE AER !

R BEB T » LUE Bl &
HMALHBRENSE=7
MEFAER FHAR
UrRBBEES =78/
BURMEBRAOZIE;

. ERRMZE BemAE
EFfARENEERR
ChATLEE=FME)
REERERAR K

. HEEETRENRE
PIMNEAR B~ B &
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEIHHERME &

POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases (continued) 227 HE @&

The Group is exposed to potential future increases
in variable lease payments based on an index or
rate, which are not included in the lease liability
until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect,
the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received

° any initial direct costs; and

L/ restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its land and buildings that are presented
within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low—
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small
items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over
the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in
consolidated statement of financial position based
on their nature. The Group did not need to make
any adjustments to the accounting for assets held
as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28

2.29

2.30

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and
no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or
before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value gains on these
assets, see Note 7 below.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as interest income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see note 6
below. Any other interest income is included in
other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss

allowance).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The Company manages its
financial risks in accordance with guidelines laid
down by its Board of Directors. The Operating
Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation within the
Group to cope with overall risk management,
as well as specific areas, such as market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. It is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to Hong Kong dollar, United States
dollar ("US$"”) and Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB") denominated transactions.
Foreign exchange risk arises where future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in currency
that is not the functional currency of the
subsidiaries of the Company.

Several subsidiaries of the Company
have foreign currency transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies other
than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

@)

Currency risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, some group
entities with functional currency of
HK$ had considerable amount of bank
balances and cash denominated in US$.
Under the Linked Exchange Rate System
in Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged to USS,
management therefore considers that there
is no significant foreign exchange risk with
respect to US$ (2019: Same).

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 3% with all
other variables held constant, there will be
no significant impact on the pre-tax profit
of the Group (2019: Same).

The Group does not undertake any foreign
currency hedging currently.

Interest rate risk

The Group holds interest bearing assets
and liabilities including cash at banks,
financial assets at amortised costs and
borrowings. The Group is mainly exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, if interest
rates on cash held at banks had been 25
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$9,346,000 (2019: HK$8,961,000)
higher/lower.

MBERRER @)
31 MBRAKRER @
(a)  HHAE ()

0]

Bt R (&)
202012831818
EEERBABENETE
EERBFEAEUET
STENRTERKRIRSE
RIEZFABNBBREXS
It EEBER A HE A
EITERIIE AINE RIS
(20194F : #8[@)

2020128318 >
AEBEMRBEHMES
REFAENBERLTHE
B2 E3% Bl aH
AEBNBKRKRA RN E
HEAFE (20194 ©
@) o

FAEBRBILERBE
] 51 BEE 4 5 o

MR ERR

rEEFAFEEER
BR BRERTRE &
BEAEARZEHE
E~ETRITERRE
Mo mEBTBEE T
BRZBITEHFRER
MRz RE R K ERE-

720205 522019412
B31H  HWBITFIR
SHMEEREHEME
ERFAENBERT
EF T 25EEE
B A F 2 2 BR R AT A
B, R E
9,346,0007T (20194F : &
#8,961,0007T) °

BREERARAS 20206®k 209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3

210

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, if interest
rates on bank borrowings had been 25
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$1,207,000 lower/higher (2019:
HK$1,142,000).

Other than the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL) held by the
Group which the underlying investments
can be affected by interest rates, the
Group is not exposed to significant fair
value interest rate risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk arises
from investments held by the Group and
classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as Financial assets at
FVPL (Note (19)).

To manage its price risk arising from these
investments, the Group diversifies its
portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the investment
policy set by the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, if price of all
the Group's unlisted equity securities had
been increased/decreased by 3% and all
other variables were held constant, pre-
tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$21,530,000 (2019:
HK$7,157,000) higher/lower, resulting
from the net fair value changes of the
financial assets.
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iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Price risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, if price of all the
Group’s wealth management products and
listed debt securities had been increased/
decreased by 1% and all other variables
were held constant, pre-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$1,349,000 (2019: HK$5,272,000) and
HK$2,785,000 (2019: Nil) higher/lower,
respectively, resulting from the net fair
value changes of the financial assets.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and

financial institutions, FVPL, deposits and other

receivables, as well as credit exposures to trading

customers, including outstanding receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow—up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt and other receivable
at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment loss is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
Besides, the Group has reduced credit risk
on trade receivables by requesting deposits
to be made before service or settlement
before delivery. The Group mainly deals
with companies with a good repayment
record and reputation and also has policies
in place to assess the credit worthiness of
customers.

The Group has limited credit risk on liquid
funds and financial assets at amortised
costs as the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions which are reputable
and/or with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

Credit risk mainly arises from trade and
other receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the top five
debtors and the largest debtor accounted
for approximately 45% (2019: 61%) and
32% (2019: 30%) of the Group’s trade
receivables balance, respectively. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history. The
Group normally conducts credit checks on
new customers and requires them to pay a
deposit of certain percentage of the sales
amount, or to provide the Group with a
letter of credit when placing orders.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

The Group recognised lifetime expected
credit loss for trade receivables carried at
amortised cost based on either individually
customers who are long overdue with
significant amounts or known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, or
collectively assessing them for likelihood of
recovery based on ageing of the balances
with similar risk characteristics taking into
account the forward looking information.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Given the track record of regular
repayment of trade receivables and
good credit profiles of customers, the
directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by these customers is not
significant, taking into account forward-
looking information on macroeconomic
factors. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of trade receivables is assessed to be
insignificant and loss allowance provided
on a collective basis was amounted to
HK$1,071,000 (2019: HK$400,000).

For trade receivables relating to accounts
in which objective evidence that the
debtor faces significant financial difficulties
or enters liquidation, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance.
Accordingly, specific loss allowance of
HK$2,223,000 (2019: HK$2,223,000) were
made as at 31 December 2020.

For trade receivables relating to accounts
in which objective evidence that the
debtor faces significant financial difficulties
or enters liquidation, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance.
Accordingly, specific loss allowance of
HK$2,223,000 (2019: HK$2,223,000) were
made as at 31 December 2020.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group adopts general approach for
expected credit losses of other financial
assets at amorlised cost based on the
Group's assessment in the risk of default
of the respective counterparties. The
Group considers these financial assets
have not significantly increased in credit
risk from initial recognition. Thus, these
financial assets are classified in stage one
and only consider 12-month expected
credit losses.

Considering the history of default and
forward-looking factor, the expected credit
loss is immaterial.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by ensuring

it has sufficient liquid cash balances and credit

facilities to meet its payment obligations as they

fall due.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held
deposits at call of HK$3,738,533,000 (2019:
HK$3,057,215,000) that are expected readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

HBERRER (B

3.1
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1
(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. A monthly report on forecasted inflow
and outflow of cash is compiled for the directors’
review. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
outstanding borrowings of HK$482,932,000
(2019: HK$456,667,000). As at 31 December
2020, the Group has no available unutilised
borrowing facilities (2019: HK$97,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3  EERKREIR (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBRKEER @)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © TEELERE &)
In addition, the following table details the tESh» TREFMAEREF2020
Group's liquidity analysis for its non-derivative F1I2B31BIETEEREBEN
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2020. MBEE DM o ZRIDBIBEER
The table has been drawn up based on the BHEGEEZZEZETTEER
undiscounted net cash (inflows) and outflows BEXRMRFERE (RA) R
on those non-derivative financial liabilities that HER BERERMMIBEBRERT
require net settlement and gross (inflows) and B UREXRERBEEE ZIFTTE
outflows on those non-derivative financial SHEBEZHE RA) Rt Fr
liabilities that require gross settlement. When BEZEETHRRGHSR
the amount payable is not fixed, the amount R AR LINEERSGE -
disclosed has been derived from interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period.

Repayable on Carrying
demand/ Total  amount at
less than 3 months 12 25 Over5 undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years years  cash flows 2020

20208

REREE/ RER 128

=fEBMUA =fip% —£E REE b3 RenE 382
i —£ i3 if Wk g R
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
AR BB BETT V-l 4w AR R bil A
2020 2020%

Non-derivative financial liabilities i eRas
Trade payables AR 204,622 - - - - 204,622 204,622
Other payables EftERTIR 154,540 - - - - 154,540 154,540
Borrowings [EE 5,985 17,157 21,511 133,563 406,105 590,321 482,932
Lease liabilities fEak 49,689 179,385 296,948 237,356 765,866 1,529,244 1,134,412
Total it 414,836 196,562 326,459 30919 1471971 2478721 1976506
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B EKREIR &
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEBEZR E
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © TEELERE &)

Repayable on Carrying
demand/ Total amount at
less than 3 months 1-2 25 Over  undiscounted 31 December
3 months to 1 year years years 5 years cash flows 2019

720195

REREE/ FER 128

=D ELEEE —£E MEE RenE 3182
BE - mE pig:d RENE &8 R
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
2019 20198

Non derivative financial liabilities FTEEmnaE
Trade payables AR 2,304 - = = = 2,304 2,314
Other payables HthERZE 87,962 - = = = 87,962 87,962
Borrowings [ 6,131 17,019 23335 109,388 462,529 618,402 456,667
Lease liabilities fEak 20,620 74,442 123,229 98,499 317,823 634,613 470,764
Total fit 137,037 91,461 146,564 207,887 780,352 1,363,301 1,037,717

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
borrowings disclosed in Note 28 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debts.

3 HMBEAKER @

3.2

BIEERARAR 2020FHR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(a)

3 HMBEAKER @

Fair value measurements of financial 33 EMTIAZAMEENE
instruments
Fair value hierarchy @) AKAnBEEER
This section explains the judgements and AEBLEER G BHRE
estimates made in determining the fair values PRIAREANBEFENE
of the financial instruments that are recognised MTERAEBERELH E
and measured at fair value in the consolidated KRtste ABHAEMEEANE
financial statements. To provide an indication BPFRMABE I RMIER
about the reliability of the inputs used in AEECDREHENRERE
determining fair value, the Group has classified ERMIEDAZEER BFR
its financial instruments into the three levels R RETREA
prescribed under the accounting standards. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SRR FZHRER F=HRER &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiETT  BETT  BETT  BETT
Recurring fair value 1£2020%128318
measurements as at 31 REMANBEHE
December 2020
Financial assets at FVPL BAREETAERZ
Unlisted equity securities FEETREES - - 717,663 717,663
Listed debt securities NETBETERES 278,463 - - 278,463
Wealth management products 3281 E @ - - 134,909 134,909
Total B 278,463 - 852,572 1,131,035
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(a)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

3 HMBEAKER @

33

(@

Level 1

R el
HK$'000
BIEFT

EMTAZAREBESNE &)
RAEBEER (B)
Level 2 Level 3 Total
ETMBR FE=HARE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BlEFT  EBETT  EBETT

Recurring fair value 1220195128318
measurements as at 31 REMAREBESE
December 2019

Financial assets at FVPL BARLEBEFHARZZ

THEE

Unlisted equity securities FEMRARS

Wealth management products 328 & @

S 238,569 238,569
= 527,194 527,194

Total CEl

S 765,763 765,763

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
for both years.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

FANB—RRA B ZARARA
BEEZRBAZEREEER
REESEHREERE-

FEEZHRDSNEKRSHBE
REBIAAABERRZEN
BAREH -

BRI ERTIEEEZ
TMIE WAREEMNITEL
ARRAES) 2 AnBETR
BREABERFNTISRE
iR - AEEFFAZEMEE
FTRZmHERERRFHREE-
ZETRTSETAB—RRA -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(a)

(b)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o the use of quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments

o for the commodity contracts — discounted
cash flow analysis

o for unlisted equity securities — stated with
reference to recent transaction prices or
the net asset values of the unlisted equity
securities

o for wealth management products -
discounted cash flow analysis; and

° for other financial instruments —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value

measurements of financial assets

The following table presents the changes in level

items for the years ended 31 December 2019 and

3

HHEREER (@)
33 TMIRZAAEESE @

) SRR EH T REZAAEME
E:)7 3
TREYEHZE2019F12831H
2020 12B31BItEEZ$

31 December 2020: ZRBRIEE &)
Unlisted First Wealth
equity Commodity  management
securities Contracts products
ELm E—17
fRAxES HmEH BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT BEFT
1 January 2019 2019F181H 195,416 150,193 106,399
(Loss)/gain recognised in the Riga2ERaRERZ
consolidated statement of (B518) /&
comprehensive income (4,665) (193) 12,208
Additions RE 53,539 - 1,038,580
Disposal HE (21,279) (150,000) (612,708)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BN B AR 18,369 = =
Exchange differences ERERE (2,811) = (17,285)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019FE128318 K
1 January 2020 20201H1H 238,569 - 527,194
Gain recognised in the REa2EiERERZ
consolidated statement of g
comprehensive income 4,834 - 4,525
Additions RE 988,097 - 1,298,369
Disposal HE (515,961) = (1,726,889)
Exchange differences ERELE 2,124 = 31,710
At 31 December 2020 1£2020128318 717,663 - 134,909

There was no transfer between levels 2 and 3
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the year ended 31 December 2019.

HE2020F12B31HIEFER
2019 12B31HIEEE -
AR B ER S = AR AR B 2 ) G AR
B o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(d)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair
value of level 3 fair value measurements

The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable
inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value
measurements (see (b) above for the valuation
techniques adopted):

3 HMBEAKER @

33

(d)

EMIRZAAEERE
(#)
1EERIEPARE LA EER
Fi1%
TEBEBEBE =Z MBI QR
BESEMBIIFEEREREER
ERHBEBANEEEN TR
B ERME 2R LX) -

Fair value at Range of inputs
RTFIRBZARER YEHAER
Un-observable Relationship of unobservable inputs
Description 2020 2019 inputs* 2020 2019 to fair value
FRBEEEEZ
i YRHA FREBRMEZHBRARARBEZHG
HKS$'000  HK$'000
BEFT EETFT
Wealth management 134,909 527,194  Expected rate of 0.88% to 1.35% to Increase/decrease 10% (2019: 10%) of the
products return 4.35% 4.15% expected rate of return would increase/
decrease the fair value measure by
HK$119,000 (2019: HK$588,000).
BYER BHERE 0.88%% 1.35%% BHEREIEN, A 10% (20194 1 10%)
435% 4.15% HERARBESBIEM,/ HD B
119,0007T (20194 : 7##588,0007T) °
* There were no significant inter-relationships & FFAEHE T EHHIFEWAZ R

between unobservable inputs that materially affect
fair values.

The unlisted equity securities represent
investment funds. The management determined
the fair value of the investment funds with
reference to recent transaction prices or by
reviewing the valuations of the underlying
investments held by respective investment funds
to assess the appropriateness of the fair values of
the investment funds. As at 31 December 2020,
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities
is determined to be HK$717,663,000 (20109:
HK$238,569,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

(e)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes
a team that performs the valuations of financial
instruments required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team
reports directly to the senior management and
the audit committee. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the senior
management and the valuation team at least once
every six months, in line with the Group’s half-
yearly reporting periods.

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values are analysed
at the end of each reporting period during the
half-yearly valuation discussion among the senior
management, audit committee and the valuation
team. As part of this discussion, the team
presents a report that explains the reason for the
fair value movements.

HBERRER (B

33

(e)

EMIRZANEERE @)

15 ETE

rEBVBHBRE—BNE
EERMBREENHEMT
BB BREF=ZBRIAAE
EB-lt/NMEEERSREEREK
BRLZEERE -REEEAEH
WHFERSH sREEEH
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3.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar
agreements

The Group has no such financial assets or
financial liabilities outstanding in the consolidated
statement of financial position which are
under master netting agreements. No material
impact on the amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements and respective
disclosures relating to the Group’s master netting
agreements as no such contracts outstanding.

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a) Impairment of investment in Shougang
Resources

The carrying amount of investment in Shougang
Resources, an associate, amounting to
HK$5,106,025,000 (2019: HK$4,877,876,000)
is reviewed for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 (“Impairment of assets”) whenever
certain events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The Group determines the
recoverable amount which is the higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Impairment of investment in Shougang
Resources (continued)

The value-in-use calculation is based on the
estimations of future expected cash flows from
the associates and a suitable discount rate.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
or more than expected, or there are favorable/
unfavorable events and changes in facts and
circumstances which result in upward/downward
revision of future estimated cash flows, a
material impairment loss may arise or reverse. No
impairment loss has been recognised in respect
of investments in associates for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation for the investment
in Shougang Resources are disclosed in Note
18(A).

Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment on an annual basis. For the 2020
and 2019 reporting periods, the recoverable
amount of cash-generating units (CGUs) was
determined based on value-in-use calculations
The

calculations use cash flow projections based

which require the use of assumptions.

on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period.
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates (continued)

(b) Estimation of goodwill impairment
(continued)
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated in Note 18(A). These growth rates are
consistent with forecasts included in industry
reports specific to the industry in which each CGU
operates.
Details of impairment charge, key assumptions
and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 18(A).

(c) Estimation of the fair value of certain

financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used and the impact of changes to
these assumptions see Note 3.3(a).
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CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.1
(d)

(e)

4.2
(a)

Critical accounting estimates (continued)

Recognition of deferred tax asset for carried-
forward tax losses

No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of tax losses of approximately
HK$684,128,000 of which HK$110,000,000
is subject to confirmation by Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) (2019:
HK$514,000,000 of which HK$110,000,000
is subject to confirmation by IRD) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. In
cases where probable taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised and the amounts are
confirmed by the IRD, a deferred tax asset may be
recognised.

Estimation of the fair values of investment
properties

Information about the valuation of land and
buildings and investment property is provided in
Note 14.

Critical accounting judgements
Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
based
on the Group’s past history existing market

inputs to the impairment calculation,

conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

230

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)

4.2

(b)

Critical accounting judgements
(continued)

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management
considers all facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of car parks operating rights, the
following factors are normally the most relevant:

o If there are significant penalty payments
to terminate (or not extend), the Group is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or
not terminate).

o If any leasehold improvements are
expected to have a significant remaining
value, the Group is typically reasonably
certain to extend (or not terminate).

° Otherwise, the Group considers other
factors including historical lease durations
and the costs and business disruption
required to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in offices and vehicles
leases have not been included in the lease liability,
because the Group could replace the assets
without significant cost or business disruption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7r = E\j‘ ?%E% M-J. -Li

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
The Group has been principally engaged in parking

business, infrastructure and

real estate fund

management business and investment holding. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group ceased
the business of trading of iron ore and reclassified the

relevant business as discontinued operation (refer to

EERBERDEER

AEBTENRECEHITES ER
LA EESEBEB R EE
fe o8 E2019F 12831 HIEFE » &

) 45 1 AR

EEHBEOES  WAFE

MEBEMDERDRLECEESE (B
HERIECEXBFBRF2REAME

Note 32 for the details of discontinued operation). 32) FAEBHEIREFELEER 2
Revenue from continuing operations recognised during WAWT -
the year are as follows:
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T EET T
Continuing operations FEREET
Revenue under HKFRS 15: REEBMBERESENE 155K
BRZUA -
Carpark income ZEIRA 337,250 150,791
Revenue from service concession R R ELTH A
agreement 86,009
Fund management services income ~ E&EIERFE WA 207,877 185,532
Others Hih 12,141 38,206
643,277 374,529
Revenue under other accounting RIEE th & st ZERIFE:D
standards: ZWA
Leasing income HEWA 57,743 26,227
Investment gain/(loss) on unlisted FELEFRABHZKRE
equity securities W, (B548) 4,834 (4,665)
Total revenue U A 705,854 396,091
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEFT BT
Timing of revenue recognition U A B SR R BF B
— Overtime —T—EBFEER 643,277 374,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable

segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as

follows:
Continuing operations
Parking business

("Parking”)

Infrastructure and real estate
fund management business
("Fund management”)

Discontinued operation

Trading business

management and
operations of car
parking assets

management of
private funds

trading of iron ore
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating and reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EEERDEBER
(#)

DEPVE R EE

UTHREEREREREEREED
BREZHEDBIEHZ DM

HE2020F12A31HLEEE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
B&IE
Fund Trading
Parking management Others Sub-total business Total
FELT ESER Hitt gt BAEH a5

HKS'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

BEFT EBFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT

Revenue from external REMIZEEZKA

customers 481,002 212,711 12,141 705,854 - 705,854
Segment profit/(losses) PEER/ (B8 142,677 185,046 (8,652) 319,071 - 319,071
Segment profitflosses)  FEEF( EE)

include: ai .
Share of results of BEaEnNAzEE

joint ventures 344,069 - - 344,069 - 344,069
Share of results of associates BLHE AT 7 & - (4,391) - (4,391) = (4,391)
Other income and il AR E B %

other losses, net B 75,065
Central administration costs FRTELR A (67,056)
Finance cost BBHA (2,756)
Share of results of BERENFZ2E

associates 347,711
Profit before income tax BT AR ALER 672,035
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EEBERDEER
(#)

DEPEEBEREE (B
HE2019F12A31HLEFE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B&IE
RECELE RER
Fund Trading
Parking  management Others Sub-total business Total
FBEHT ESEE 2t 1N BREH =H
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AT ABFr BT BT BT AT
Revenue from external RENMPERZHA
customers 177,018 180,867 38,206 396,091 137,075 533,166
Segment profit/(losses) DEER/ (B8) (43,124) 195,383 (4,940) 147,319 904 148,223
Segment profit/(losses)  HEEF,/ (EH)
include: Bl
Fair value gain on PEWBEEEL
step acquisition ARBEEWE 4,802 - - 4,802 = 4,802
Share of results of BUhAEARIZER
joint ventures 89 - - 89 - 89
Share of results of associates B HE A E 2 248 = 810 = 810 = 810
Gain on bargain purchase  EEWENE - 86,155 = 86,155 = 86,155
Other income Heul A 56,163
Central administration costs HR{TERL A (58,001)
Changes in fair value of ~ BRAXZAABE
commodity contracts 25 (3,618)
Loss on disposal of HE-BNEARZ
a subsidiary B8 (124,599)
Share of results of associates B4 HE A E) 2 £ 294,692
Profit before income tax  BRFF{SHRATEA 312,860
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iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable segment:

As at 31 December 2020

EEBARDEER
(#)

DEHEERER

UTHREEREEREBEREZ®RD
R Z DM

2020FE12831H

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
B&IE
Fund Trading
Parking management Others Sub-total business Total
FELT ESER Hitt gt BAEH a5

HKS000  HKS'000
EBTrn  EETn

HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
E¥Ffrn  EETm  EETm EETn

Total segment assets NPEERE 3,525,922 767,930 13,773 4,307,625 - 4,307,625
Total segment assets include: 'ﬁﬁ/f BERZEOR .

Investments in associates ~ REZE AT ZRE - 159,840 159,840 - 159,840
Investments in joint ventures Bfé‘é"z}ﬂzhﬁ 656,143 - 656,143 - 656,143
Investments in associates ~ PREEZE AT ZRE 5,109,847
Bank balances and cash ~ SBITEBRRS 3,738,533
Unallocated assets *OBEE 969,627
Consolidated assets wEE 14,125,632
Total segment liabilities SUEEEE 2,075,818 73,127 14,687 2,163,632 - 2,163,632
Unallocated liabilities *OEER 42,702
Consolidated liabilities BaR 2,206,334
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

EEBERDEER
(#)

IHMEERERE B
72019FE12831H

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
BRI
REREEY REEHR
Fund Trading
Parking management Others Sub-total business Total
BEMT HEEEE Htr Nt BR%E CH
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Total segment assets NYEELE 1,997,095 994,344 33,293 3,024,732 76 3,024,808
Total segment assets include: B EEBBEI .
Investments in associates ~ PREFE AT ZHE = 156,518 = 156,518 = 156,518
Investments in joint ventures REE AT 2 R E 269,471 = = 269,471 = 269,471
Investments in associates ~ FREEE AT ZHE 4,877,876
Bank balances and cash  $R1THE B RFES 3,057,215
Unallocated assets FRBEE 37,125
Consolidated assets meE 10,997,024
Total segment liabilities A FEEEBE 1,067,186 72,490 7,198 1,146,874 8,907 1,155,781
Unallocated liabilities *PEEE 18,619
Consolidated liabilities =L 1,174,400

As at 31 December 2020, there was no unsatisfied
performance obligations (2019: Nil).
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iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EEBEROEER
(continued) (#)
Other segment information HithoZpE

2020

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
B
RBECEEH E-E 3
Fund Trading
Parking management Sub-total business Total
FEHT HEERE gt EPES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Additions to non-current ERHEERE
assets (Note) (Krz2) 2,015,089 - 2,015,089 - 2,015,089
Additions to right-of-use assets ~ ERREERE 951,640 64,015 1,015,655 - 1,015,655
Depreciation of property, NE-BERRENE
plant and equipment 2,062 3,969 6,031 - 6,031
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREEEFE 137,370 15,487 152,857 - 152,857
Provision for impairment FEWER TR ERBEE
losses for trade receivables 1,071 - 1,071 - 1,071
2019 Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRI
FEREEE REEH
Fund Trading
Parking  management Others business Total
FEHT HEEE Hth EGES fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
BEFT EBEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Additions to non-current ERBEERE
assets (Note) () 83,986 - - - 83,986
Additions to right-of-use assets ~ ERREERE 1,064,849 1,346 - - 1,066,195
Depreciation of property, ME--BERZE
plant and equipment e 1,665 717 242 73 2,697
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE
assets 68,490 2,436 - - 70,926
(Provisions for)/reversal of FEWERFUA BB EE
provision for impairment losses
for trade receivables (400) - - 603 203
Increase in fair value of RENEZAAEE
investment properties 181 S = 100 = 100
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Other segment information (continued)

Note:  Non-current assets exclude those assets arising from the
acquisitions as detailed in Note 31, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss — non-current, assets relating to
commodity contracts and deferred tax assets.

Geographical information

The non-current assets, operations and substantially
all of the customers of the continuing operations are
located in the PRC which is the country of domicile
of the relevant entities of the Group. Accordingly, no
further analysis of revenue from external customers
and non-current assets by geographical location for the
continuing operations is presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total sales from continuing
operations of the Group from the continuing operations
are as follows:

SEERDEBER
(#)
Hitt 3 EE# (&)

M FRPEETBERE GFBERME
31) EEMBEE - BARBES ARG
NWEMEE-JFRD HEREOA
RIS ERIREIRIAE & ©

wEER

FRBEE - EEAFACEERZ
BAMOBERHUNAEEERER
ZPRAEBI R P E - FIE » Il A
BEBEIREMNBER ZWAKRIE
RBEERME DB E—D e

ERXEFERZEH

REREEAEAEBRREFELSEX
BZHERBEMBRI0%ZER I
AT

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT FEET T

Customer A' ZEEA N/AZ 3 A2 75,238
Notes: 1 Revenue from fund management MIsE : 1 REEEEEZWE

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 2 AEWALEGEAEERFEES

10% of the total sales of the Group
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iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Contract assets

As at 31 December 2020,
are presented as concession rights and receivables

contract assets which

under service concession arrangements amounted to
HK$88,274,000.

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of construction services for
the infrastructures during the period of construction
under the service concession arrangements. Pursuant to
the service concession agreements, the Group receives
no payment from the grantors during the construction
period. The receivables under service concession
arrangement (including the contract assets therein) are
not yet due for payment and will be settled by service
fees to be received during the operating periods of the
service concession arrangements.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent advances received for the
services concession arrangement. Contract liabilities are
recognised until the points are redeemed or expired.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2020 that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1
January 2020 is approximately HK$9,611,000.

5

EXEERDHBER
(#)
BHEE

R2020F12B31H 6N EEZ2Y A
PR TRELHET 2RI ENE
Uy Fu i 1688,274,0007T

ARBRVMERBEFEELHT
REZEZERFPARNOBDEDES
NEE RERBESFECERS &
BEHBAERRAWREZEAZR
B lRBRHAFEE LI TEWRIE
(BREETNEREE) HARIHF
BRERFHHAEBZETNESH
BWEBIRBEEITER

n:-’JETE
BNEEARTHEFECELRH TR
WRE-aMNEaEgTEEONEF
BO b5 BE BT o

SAFVENEERBEE—_Z-_TF

+_B=+—HLEFEEIRZKREL
A9 611,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

6  OTHER INCOME 6 HlkA
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
EEFT B F T
(Restated)
(A E %))
Interest income on bank deposits RITERF BUWA 83,287 90,915
Government grant (Note) BB (M &E) 56,250 =
Interest income from financial assets £ RIEEF] BUA 10,135 =
Others H (11,031) 1,775
138,641 92,690

Note: The amount represented government grants received
from the PRC local government authorities in respect of
subsidising the operating costs of subsidiaries, which were
immediately recognised as other income for the year as the
Group fulfilled all the relevant granting criteria.

MaE . EEBRPEM S BT ERERHNMHAL
EBRFRAREERANBNME > &
AEE W EBARMERER &
SEMBIAER S FEREMEA -

7  OTHER GAINS, NET 7  Hth&HEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gains R (8518) /W P58 (6,091) 3,066
Gain from changes in fair value of KREMEANEEBEES 2 W=
investment properties (Note 14) (Mtat14) = 100
Fair value gain on wealth management ¥} ZE 2 A A EE W@
products 4,525 12,208
Fair value gain on listed debt REAMBETEBRESZ
securities RABERT 1,411 =
Fair value gain on step acquisition DT WBEEBEZ 2 A EEBNR S
(Note 31(b)) ( Hta£31(b)) - 4,802
Others Hth 977 1,697
822 21,873
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE

8 BRUEHASZXH

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BEF T
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BE@F] X H
benefits and interests of directors) T EEESEMN D)
(Note 9) ( #tz29) 158,263 155,551
Directors’ emoluments (Note 39) BEME (M5£39) 5,702 5,640
163,965 161,191
Construction cost BB A 72,208 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BMERRBINE
equipment (Note 13(A)) (Bta£13(4) ) 6,031 2,624
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
(Note 13(B)) (Bt5E13(B) ) 152,857 70,926
Amortisation of other non-current HIER BN & = i
assets (Note 15) (Bt5E15) 14,811 18,276
Auditor’s remuneration Z B M <=
— Audit service —BERT 4,228 3,837
— Non-audit service —IFEEHARTS 1,162 2,140
Minimum lease payments under T RBFRE&ESHEAIET
operating leases in respect of ZREHRAE
land and buildings 18,124 37,125
Legal and professional expenses FEREEXER 28,850 55,273
Research and development expense  fff 2% & FH 5,186 3,047
Service and management fees BEFEEEEN P T4
charged by Shougang Group EIEER
(Note 37) (H1a£37) 2,990 3,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 (EERALZH FEEEEERN
(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF R i)
DIRECTORS)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMEFT EMEF T
Basic salaries and allowances BN & K2R 142,444 146,256
Retirement benefits scheme RIKBEFFHE R
contributions 15,819 9,295
158,263 155,551
(i)  Five highest paid individuals (i) #"AESHATL

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include one (2019: one) director,
whose emolument is reflected in the analysis in
Note 39. The emoluments paid/payable to the
remaining four (2019: four) individuals during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 are as

B E2020F128310HIEEE
rEEMESRENEZALTE
E—% (2019F : — %) EH - H
&R FE39Z DT B E
20194 22020 12831H LE4F
EE FEEegTIES (2019
F ) ALZESWT

follows:

2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
EBETFT BT T
Salaries and other benefits HrEREMBERN 7,532 7,525

Contributions to retirement RIKEFR FTHEH
benefit schemes 20 114
7,552 7,639
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iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9

(EXCLUDING BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS) (continued)

(i) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

The emoluments of the highest paid individuals

fell within the following bands:

hBREHAL @
BERALZHMENHUTE

I o

EBERA<E FEEESEEN
Ktgwm) (&)

Number of individuals

A&
2020 2019
Emolument band B <& &5 &
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 /A&#1,000,0017cE
#£1,500,0007C 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7&#1,500,001%
A2 000,0007T 2 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 &2 000,001%E
75 #£2,500,0007C 1 1
4 4
FINANCE COSTS 10 B4R
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
EIEFT B F T
Interests on bank borrowings RITEMFE 45,565 16,578
Interests on other borrowing HnEmH 8 - 319
Interests on convertible bonds HEREST B 2,492 =
Interests on lease liabilities HEsENE 31,376 10,461
79,433 27,358
Less: interest capitlised B BTERZAE (2,265) =
77,168 27,358
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 11 FriSMRTH 7 (EH#E)
The amount of income tax expenses charged/(credited) REGeltEmBERANFRZAERX
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income H7 (B8 FUES
represents:
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT T
Current income tax: BOEAPRISAR -
Taxation outside Hong Kong SBIRINRIE
— The PRC —HE 52,701 25,018
— Australia — BN - (148,355)
Deferred income tax (Note 29) RILFTISHR ( fE29) (16,136) (5,868)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frigfp s/ ( [E13#) 36,565 (129,205)
Income tax expense/(credit) from REFERSEER
continuing operations RS s ([E#) 36,565 (129,205)
Income tax expense from FEERIEKEER Y
discontinued operation FriStRR — =
36,565 (129,205)
Hong Kong profits tax EANER

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
assessable profit in 2020 (2019: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
Hong Kong assessable profit for both years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)
Hong Kong profits tax (continued)

In 2016, the income tax expenses included Hong Kong
profits tax of approximately HK$49,061,000 in relation
to the offshore trading profits of iron ore claimed by
the Group in prior years (the “Offshore Claim”). The
Group received tax assessment demanding notes on
the Offshore Claim (the "Assessment”) issued by the
Inland Revenue Department subsequent to the end of
the reporting period of 2016. Although the management
of the Group lodged an objection (the “Objection”)
against the Assessment, provision for prior years’ Hong
Kong profits tax of HK$49,061,000 was made as the
management of the Group was uncertain about the
probability of the success of the objection.

On 30 October 2020, the Objection has been ruled
out by the Inland Revenue Department and the profits
tax assessments has been confirmed. The Company
has redeemed the tax certificate of HK$48,343,000
purchased in prior years.

China enterprise income tax

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the "EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
2020 (2019: 25%).

Australian capital gain tax

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no provision
for Australian capital gain tax was made.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
reversed a provision of Australian capital gain tax
amounted to HK$148,355,000 and recognised it as an
income tax credit as it was assessed that the possibility
of the relevant tax being payable to the tax authority
become remote.

1

FRSMZ L, (B1#) &
EFANER @)

R2016F  FIRMAZEEEBRES
EAEEMRBEELGBIINEZ R
M EFBFSMAAEE49,061,0007T
(BN EEE)) - AEEN2016FKE
PERRBEERT AN BB AL
Mm@ ME () -BEAERE
EECHITRREERYE (FFRRE)) »
EHREAEBRSEBRES EAERD
RERTIENE  UMBTEEZETH
F1S 10 7 1849,061,0007C 1E H B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

1

246

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 11

The tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled

to the profit before income tax per the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

FRGI L, (B &)
FRZHES L (B AR ERE

W RS RZBRFTE
T

i A ¥ AR AN

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
(Restated)
(4 E21)
Profit from continuing operations REFEKSEER
before income tax expense BRPRTE ﬁﬁﬁi‘iﬁul ol 672,035 311,956
Profit from discontinued operation RERIEREEE 2
before income tax expense BRETISMR B AR A = 904
672,035 312,860
Calculated at domestic tax rates AR EEFBEA B
applicable to profits in the EMMEGFERIE !
respective countries: 165,462 59,824
Tax effect of amount which are not Rt EEZRR A RER
deductible/(taxable) in calculating ENGIED-4 (ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ)
taxable income: FRENM B E
Share of results of associates BB EARES (57,423) (48,827)
Share of results of joint ventures BhaE T ES (85,017) 22
Expenses not deductible for ENGIE LA
tax purposes 7,570 26,146
Income not taxable for tax purposes BRI U A (34,931) (36,491)
Tax loss not recognised RIERDMFEEIE 41,002 21,875
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B ABERWIERRTFEEE
recognised (98) (3,399)
Australian capital gain tax BNE I ER = (148,355)
Income tax expense/(credit) FEMBRHAR (E#E)
for the year 36,565 (129,205)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

12 SkaEA

Basic earnings per share (@) EREXEF
The basic earnings per share for the year is KEESRERABATEERR
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to Bl R A ARG & A PR A
the ordinary equity holders of the Company by FEBRTEARMETEH
the weighted average number of ordinary shares FE
in issue during the year:
2020 2019
HK Cents HK Cents
Al Bl
Basic earnings per share AT EBEER
attributable to the ordinary FEAEGEER
equity holders of the Company HAZA
From continuing operations REFELSER 9.62 8.31
From discontinued operation KEDRIEREET - 0.02
Total basic earnings per share KRB E@EER
attributable to the ordinary equity FBEARGERE
holders of the Company BRI 9.62 8.33
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

12

248

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share for the year
is calculated by dividing the adjusted profit
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the Company which have taking into account
the after income tax effect interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares by the adjusted weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue which have
taking into account the additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

12

skE# @)

(b)

sRHEERN

FRASRBRERENTDREHE
WIS MEEALD S BREm
REANGZNEZRBEIFMERE
FMENAETHRBMENEE
REEMBRAFSRERERN
REUERENABERTE
BRMEFEE EZEERRK
FRERERENEBREEE
BB MR EITHERAR -

2020 2019
HK Cents HK Cents
Ml Bl
Diluted earnings per share TR EEER
attributable to the ordinary FEAEGLER
equity holders of the Company wERA
From continuing operations REFEREETR 9.57 8.31
From discontinued operation RE ORISR - 0.02
Total diluted earnings per share AAvlEEiEm
attributable to the ordinary equity BFBARGEER
holders of the Company HrER A 4L %E 9.57 8.33
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12

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

12 Sk=EH @

Reconciliations of earnings used in (0 HBERHEsSREMNZENS
calculating earnings per share iR
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Basic earnings per share SRELRZEF
Profit attributable to the ordinary ARstEEREX
equity holders of the Company | e NN
used in calculating basic earnings Z@EEmaFBEA
per share: FE{L & F)
From continuing operations REFELEER 658,613 442,099
From discontinued operation KE ORISR - 904
Total profit attributable to the ordinary AR st HEERE R
equity holders of the Company BRI ZAKRE]
used in calculating basic earnings ZREDRERA
per share FE i F) 658,613 443,003
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Diluted earnings per share sERHERA
Profit from continuing operations ARstEERER
attributable to the ordinary equity B ZKANE]
holders of the Company used in ZREDRBA
calculating basic earnings FEAL A
per share: 658,613 442,099
Add: interest savings on convertible  fil : PIEIBEHR
bonds FEEE 2,492 -
Used in calculating diluted earnings AU EESRBEERH
per shares 661,105 442,099
Loss from discontinued operation KEDRIEREEREDN
1R - 904
Total profit attributable to the ordinary B stESRFEE
equity holders of the Company B ZKRNE]
used in calculating diluted earnings ZREDRBA
per share FEE = F) 661,105 443,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

12 Sk=EH @

250

(d) Weighted average number of shares d) HBERHAEsSREINZERNS
used as the denominator iR
2020 2019

Weighted average number of ERDERANEE

ordinary shares used as the SREARAIZ

denominator in calculating ZiER IR T8

basic earnings per share 6,848,465 5,321,329
Adjustment for calculation of AUt ESR%RE

diluted earnings per share in B F| R E P EBIRES

relation to convertible bonds LA RS 56,214 =
Weighted average number of ERDEBRNEE

ordinary shares and potential SRELARBNZ

ordinary shares used as the o R B N #E T B

denominator in calculating

diluted earnings per share 6,904,679 5,321,329
Effects of convertible bonds (e) FEMBERZTE

(e)

Convertible bonds issued and converted
during the period are considered to potential
ordinary shares and have been included in the
determination of diluted earnings per share
from their date of issue. The convertible bonds
have not been included in the determination of
basic earnings per share. Details relating to the
convertible bonds are set out in Note 25.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for basic earnings per share has been restated
since the share consolidation has been completed
on 30 March 2020 as disclosed in Note 26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

13(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13(A) % B E K& E

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
R ffh
HE £ RERRE AE =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEF T BT BT BT
Cost [N
At 1 January 2019 120191818 3,911 10,843 2,601 17,355
Additions RE 10,176 1,602 - 11,778
Disposals HE = (234) = (234)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g =Y
(Note 31) (Hyz31) - 764 - 764
Exchange differences ERELE (176) 39 = (137)
At 31 December 2019 120198128318 13,911 13,014 2,601 29,526
Additions RE 905 26,746 = 27,651
Disposal HE - (426) = (426)
Exchange differences ERERE 153 1,369 198 1,720
At 31 December 2020 120208128318 14,969 40,703 2,799 58,471
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2019 120191818 1,771 4,917 2,601 9,289
Depreciation charged BIIRITE 1,060 1,637 = 2,697
Disposals HE = (216) = (216)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g =YNG
(Note 31) (Hrz231) - 620 - 620
Exchange differences ERELE (20) (78) = (98)
At 31 December 2019 120195128318 2,811 6,880 2,601 12,292
Depreciation charged EMNkRiTE 984 5,047 = 6,031
Disposals HE - (418) = (418)
Exchange differences ERER 213 407 198 818
At 31 December 2020 1£2020%12831H 4,008 11,916 2,799 18,723
Carrying values KEE
At 31 December 2020 122020F12831H 10,961 28,787 - 39,748
At 31 December 2019 2019%12831H 11,100 6,134 = 17,234

HZE2020F 128318 EEE > fiEm
BEEEHREME (2019F | &) o

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
impairment loss (2019: Nil) was provided for.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

13(A) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13(A) ME - -BERSRE &

(continued)
Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and KEBEYE -BERZEZITERER
equipment has been recognised as follows: W
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Administrative expenses THZH 6,031 2,624
Charged to discontinued operation HE& LS EBNEG - 73
Charged to the profit or loss BiEm 0k 6,031 2,697
13(B) LEASES 13(8) A&
The consolidated statement of financial position shows FeMBRRERETIUAT HEHEE AR
the following amounts relating to leases: 2

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

() HEREMERTRETZ

statement of financial position oL
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Office premises BFIEYE 6,150 3,408
Car parking assets EBEEE 1,747,020 1,084,044
1,753,170 1,087,452
Lease liabilities HE&R
Current RE 122,828 73,353
Non-current JERED 1,011,584 397,411
1,134,412 470,764

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the
2020 financial year were HK$1,015,655,000
(2019: HK$1,066,195,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

13(B) LEASES (continued) 13(8) & (&
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (i) M2 EmNERESR
statement of comprehensive income =%
The consolidated statement of comprehensive FecmEmWEmKREI U TEA
income shows the following amounts relating to ERMB 58
leases:
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiog=3 BT BT T
Depreciation charge of FHEEEZIFEER
right-of-use assets
Office premises BFEBYE 3,675 2,585
Car parking assets EHEE 149,182 68,341
8 152,857 70,926
Interest expense MEREZ
(included in finance costs) (T ABAF5 AL ) 10 31,376 10,461
Expense relating to short- 42 HAFA S RRARE
term leases (included in G AITEZ 1)
administrative expenses) 8 18,124 27,856
Expense relating to variable Rzt ATAE&E > o] &
lease payments not HEMTEREAS
included in lease liabilities (Bt AJTE Sz H)
(included in administrative
expenses) 8 - 9,269
49,500 47,586
The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was 2020 - HHEZIREMH4EEE
HK$49,500,000 (2019: HK$52,609,000). A 7B 149 500,00075(2019 @ &

#52 609,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

13(B) LEASES (continued)

254

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various office premises and
car parking assets. Lease contracts are typically
made for periods of 1 to 20 years, but may have
extension options as described in (v) below. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants.

Variable lease payments

Some car parking assets leases contain variable
payment terms that are linked to revenue
generated from car parking assets. The expense
related to short-term leases and variable
lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of the lease liabilities is not
significant. Variable payment terms are used for
a variety of reasons, including minimising the
fixed costs base for newly established car parks.
Variable lease payments that depend on revenue
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments
occurs.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of leases across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility
in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 KEWE
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
EEFT B F T
At fair value BAREE
Opening balance at 1 January P11 B Z B & R 148,856 151,702
Change in fair value recognised in RiFa2EW@ERPHESDZ
the consolidated statement of NAEEEE)
comprehensive income (Note 7) (Ktz£7) - 100
Exchange differences (B ZEER 9,665 (2,946)
Closing balance at 31 December R12B31H Z 8k 45 6% 158,521 148,856

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for investment properties:

MEBEMERGEEE2ERGZRAESD
ZEFE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Rental income HEUWA 3,031 3,366
Direct operating expenses from REEERSWAZHEZ
properties that generated rental BEELEZY
income (2,863) (2,219)
Fair value gain recognised I EL AU 2 0% BB R R SR
in other gains, net (Note 7) NABERZ (/fﬁuf7) - 100

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and

maintenance (2019: Nil).

Valuation of the Group’s investment property situated

in Chengdu is performed by the valuation team of the

Group, to determine the fair value of the investment
property as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

FR2020F12831H > A~ E B 1 &P
E— T HEREE REBESNET
(20194 : #) o

AEBURMBHNEENENEHETD
HAEEMNGHENETUEER
2020 K2019FE 1283 1A EYERN
NAEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 RKREWE(E
Independent valuation of the Group's investment AREBUREENREMENEILG
property situated in Hong Kong is performed by the B HRBILINS L EMREY EREN
independent external valuer, AA Property Services BRARETUEEN2020F %2019
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment F12E3BREMENANEE
property as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
The revaluation gains or losses are included in EMWEHBELFAGEEZE KSR
“other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of RANTH M BEE) (I5E7) -
comprehensive income (Note 7).
Fair value hierarchy NABERBR
The following table analyses the investment properties TREBHEREDMERABET
carried at fair value, by valuation method. BRoBEME-
Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)
JEREBEMEZ
BEEHREAA (BE=HRE&H)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Recurring fair value measurements BEMHARBESFE
Investment properties: BEME
Carpark building — Chengdu 1ZEI5RIE — R 151,321 141,656
Residential building — Hong Kong EEE-FB 7,200 7,200
158,521 148,856
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEENBREANREEZERERNE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date BNBRELAEHENRILNEE
of the event or change in circumstances that causes the Bz BEBAREH FR E—HR
transfer. There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 B~ R AR E =R 2B
and 3 during the year. Al A EE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

14 KEYE B

RAFEBEREEEZEREAAN

AnEEFE (F=RERH)

Carpark Residential

building - building -
Chengdu Hong Kong Total
FEZKIZ FEi2
— B O 45t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BIEFT BIEFT
2020 20204
Opening balance at 1 January 520201818 Z 8%

2020 B 141,656 7,200 148,856
Exchange differences bE &2 2= BH 9,665 - 9,665
Closing balance at 72020 12831HZ

31 December 2020 HASR 45 BR 151,321 7,200 158,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 KBEWE (&
Fair value measurements using significant RAJEREREMEEEREAAN
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued) [RBEHE E=ZHRER) @)
Carpark Residential
building — building —
Chengdu Hong Kong Total
FHEIZKIE EEa:
— Bl ER —&5E Hast
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
B FT B FT BT
2019 20194
Opening balance at R2019FE1B1HZ
1 January 2019 HARD 45 R 144,602 7,100 151,702
Change in fair value Rira2ER@ERTP
recognised in the BRZ AR EBEED
consolidated statement of (Ht&t7)
comprehensive income
(Note 7) - 100 100
Exchange differences E R EEE (2,946) - (2,946)
Closing balance at 20191283182
31 December 2019 HAR S BR 141,656 7,200 148,856
Valuation processes of the Group TEEBGERE
The Group’s investment properties were valued at REBZEEMETHARHENE
31 December 2020 by internal valuation team and REBADNEEEEERBZTLRN
independent professionally qualified valuers who hold MM EREENM B KD
a recognised relevant professional qualification and BEEMERENBUEECERGHE
have recent experience in the locations and segments EMFt2020F 12831 HEITEE o ZhFT
of the investment properties valued. For all investment BEREMEMS FERBERNA
properties, their current use equates to the highest and EEkRERR-
best use.
The Group's senior management reviews the valuations rEESREEEERARHENE
performed by the internal valuation team and B EEMBL I RS TS T
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes. L& ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

At each financial year end the senior management:
° verifies all major inputs to the valuation;

. assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation;

. holds discussions with the internal valuation team
and independent valuers.

Valuation techniques

The Group obtains valuations for its investment
properties at least annually.

At the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent valuations.
The directors determine a property’s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:

o current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, adjusted to
reflect those differences

o discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows

o capitalised income projections based upon a
property’s estimated net market income, and a
capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

REWME &
FEEGERE @)
REMBREEFR BRERE

. BRELENMMEIZHEEHA ;

. FEMELEERRBTFEE

HENES ;

. FTHERSGENERBIMG
BEMAYEY & °

b {E M

FERELESF-—AREREYER
AR

RERSHR EFHEEERAON
HEEBFREMNEMENRIABEN
AL -BENGEQAABEMGSHEE
WNEEYXEE

AREBENRERIEAHBELUNYE
HEEEBTHNERER - WARERS
EHEN EFNEZEREZHE
Bk 85 !

. TRTEENYER ERTHH
ERERIBLUIPEELERT
EEMHPAHRER (AR
BR_EAtE RAFHERE)

. RIFARAKRRERER A FE G5
MmBEANTERERE

. RV EMSTHHWAFERU
RBETHEBEONBES
EEXRMERBIEARCUA -

FA HEXMILEES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

The following table analyses the level 3 investment
properties carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

14 KEYE B
TEEKERRE &

TREGERMDOTE ZRRAIKE

ME R AEBETIER) °

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable
Property Fair value at 31 December  technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FREBBEEZ
FaEEREEZ FREELEZHE YBBAL
IS R12ANAZAREE  ERE BEHA BAEE ApEEZHE
2020 2019 2020 2019
HKS 000 HK$'000
BT BB
Carpark building - 151,321 141,656 Income approach(discounted ~ Comparable's unit RMB80,000-  RMB78,000 -  The higher the unit
Chengdu cash flow) and selling price TEE¥% ~ RMB150,000  RMB266,000 selling price, the
BEEAE-HH market approach ZEER per parking per parking higher the space
WAL BRRERE K space SEFEN fair value
[iikor SEFHE AEB EUEBUE 2B
ARE  78,000%E EHs
80,0000 E ARH
AR 266,007
150,0007¢
Rental rates growth 5% from 5% for  The higher the growth
rate 1-5 years, 1-5 years, the first rate, the
HEEXEEX and 2.5% and 3% higher the fair
later on later on value
B1E5E BIEFE BRZHUE AnEBE
A5% #5% )
EEAR2.5% tER3%
Discounted rate 1% 7%  The higher the discount
BHE rate, the lower the
fair value
BREUE AnEE
A
Capitalisation rate 5% 3.0%-4.4%  The higher the
BR(GLX capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value
BALLEHE 2
BEEE
Residential building 7,200 7,200 Income approach Term rate 2% 2%  The higher the term
- Hong Kong (term and reversionary method) fAERtEE rate, the lower the
-84 WAL EERESD fair value
RBtxEs AnE
BHME
Reversionary rate 2.5% 2.5%  The higher the

260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

15 HthER#EE

Carpark Funds
operating management
rights contracts Goodwill Others Total
(Note (3) (Note (b)) (Note (c) (Note (d))
FEG HEEH
gg a4 [ Hith st
(Mza) (Hz)) &) (Hz#a))
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBFT BEFT BBFT BEFT BIEFT
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 20191818 71,451 28,586 132,689 30,290 263,016
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W EEH B A ]

(Note 31) (hzt31) - - 4,603 640,741 645,344
Additions wE - - - 83,986 83,986
Written-off b (1,205) S = = (1,205)
Transfer =t - - = (674,144) (674,144)
Exchange differences ERER (4,291) (2,015) (1,821) (17,073) (25,200)
At 31 December 2019 720198128318 65,955 26,571 135,471 63,800 291,797
Additions "E - - - 60,925 60,925
Exchange differences ERER 4,478 1,813 4,029 26,760 37,080
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 70,433 28,384 139,500 151,485 389,802
Amortisation i
At 1 January 2019 720191810 9,009 5,126 = 2,601 16,736
Amortisation charged BiEER 9,035 1071 = 5,140 18,276
Written-off el (229) = = = (229)
Exchange differences BREE (769) (434) - (539) (1,742)
At 31 December 2019 2019%12831H 17,046 8,793 - 7,202 33,041
Amortisation charged BHER 8,960 4,067 - 1,784 14,811
Exchange differences ERELE 1,671 840 = 469 2,980
At 31 December 2020 2020%12831H 27,677 13,700 - 9,455 50,832
Carrying values REME
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 42,756 14,684 139,500 142,030 338,970
At 31 December 2019 20198128318 48,909 17,778 135,471 56,598 258,756
Notes: Wt
(a) Carpark operating rights represent the carpark operating (a) (EEIZKSRIsEEE (tn) BEE

rights held by E Park Investment Management Co., Ltd.

("E Park”) (formly known as Shouzhong Investment

Management Co., Ltd), Urban Parking Beijing Limited

("Urban Parking”) and their subsidiaries. The rights

entitled the Group to operate a number of carparks in the

PRC for 3 years to 10 years over which the cost will be

amortised.

BIEERARAR 2020FHR

EBRERAR) (MBFEFE) @EEAET
SEEEARATE) R (ER) &
EEARAD (EHMFEFE) REHHN
MBABRKANERSRER K&
EERETEECEZEEREIEE

1055 > BRI B AR AL S ©
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

15

HERSEE (2
HizE - (@)

Funds management contracts represent the contracts (b) ESEHEANIEAERZHRBAR (R
entered by a subsidiary of the Group, Jingji Tiancheng HXp (R E€BEERARA (TR
(Beijing) Fund Management Co., Ltd ("Jingji Capital”) and BEAS)) REMNBABEEMA LT
its subsidiaries with other parties. The contracts granted UZEH ZEANERAERER
the Group to manage the funds held on behalf of other RREMTOFRFEZEERINEE
contracting parties and receive management income as BWRAEREIR BBE1EE105
return for 1 year to 10 years over which the cost will be B eR A A o
amortised.
Goodwill is allocated to the following cash generating units: (0 BEIREATREELS T
Fund
Parking  management Total
FEHT HEEER st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BEFT
At 1 January 2019 120191818 79,007 53,682 132,689
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEM B A E]

(Note 31(b) (Ma231(0)) 4,603 - 4,603
Exchange differences ERER (1,821) - (1,821)
At 31 December 2019 72019%12H31R 81,789 53,682 135,471
Exchange differences ERER 2,728 1,301 4,029
At 31 December 2020 1220208128318 84,517 54,983 139,500
The balance mainly represents prepayment of expenditures (d) ERTEEAREBIIALTETZS
for obtaining operating rights in respect of certain carpark TRESKEBEENEKEEERZ
operating projects entered into with independent parties. TR IR
Goodwill impairment assessment (e) R E

(i) Impairment testing on Carpark operation

Before the acquisition of Urban Parking (Note
31(c)) in December 2018, the goodwill of
carpark operation solely arised from E Park. The
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
("CGU") as at 31 December 2019 was determined
based on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-
use calculations used cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a pre-tax discount
rate of 13%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate for
this CGU.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

(i) 1EEISACE > ol 8 A3
R2018F 128 EEIHFE
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HET - FHEESERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Goodwill impairment assessment (continued)

(i)

Impairment testing on Carpark operation
(continued)

For the goodwill relating to Urban Parking, the
goodwill was determined provisionally as at 31
December 2019. The directors considered that no
provision for impairment loss was necessary as at
31 December 2019. The purchase price allocation
was completed in FY2020 with no adjustment
made on the fair value of identifiable asset
and liabilities and goodwill at acquisition date
determined provisionally as mentioned above.

Following the acquisition of Urban Parking, the
management has been combining certain resources
of E Park and Urban Parking to leverage the
synergies ascribed to each of these car parking
assets operation and management businesses. For
purpose of assessing the goodwill arising from
acquisitions of these businesses and impairment
testing, the Group combines these businesses as a
group of CGUs of the carpark operation segment
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

In March 2019, the Group completed the step
acquisition of Shouzhong Parking (Note 31(b)) and
the goodwill amounted to HK$4,603,000 resulted
from the step acquisition was also allocated to
carpark operation segment.

The recoverable amount of the carpark operation
as at 31 December 2020 was determined based
on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use
calculations used cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a pre-tax discount
rate of 13%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate for
this CGU.

The key assumptions are budgeted revenue,
discount rate and growth rate determined based
on the management'’s expectations for the market
development.

15 EHEthIERBEE (&

iz : ()

(e) R EN G (B

(1)

FESEE 2 HERE (8)

MEREEZEEmMs BE
ThHA2019F 1283 1HERE
EoERBRA R2019F128
31H > BAMBERIEIRE
Eo BB DA 202084
FERM BRI EMROTHE
EERBENAABEMNR
X EREENWER
A EE LA

RREEREER  GEEF
BEERENERZHLE
REGTGH UENBEZER
BEEREREEERRA
PR B 2 153 [E) R4 - 8UZE 2020
F12A3MBILEFEE > s H K
BREEBELEZBHERR
BASMS AEERZEX
BeHREEREEENHZ
—MHRTELEEBT

R2019F38 » KER T H
BHREEZSSWE (M
31(b)) rMN T WEEEESE
ZEEB4,603,0007TTFE

ENEEFHGEEDT -

EEBEENR20205612831
B B9 7] Uk [2] < 28 75 1R 35 (6 A
BEAEET -FHEESE
RAENREEBHENASE
B TAEE R 13%MAT IR =R
NIReREER - BARFH
2RETERAZBEESE
BUETN3%EEREE

TERRARBEBEZD
BERENEE BERA -
B ER IR o
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

Goodwill impairment assessment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment testing on Carpark operation
(continued)

No impairment on this CGU was made for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the
recoverable amounts, which were the value-in-
use, exceeded the carrying amount. The directors
believed that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the recoverable amount of the CGU.

Impairment testing on fund management segment
For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill as set out above with carrying amount
of HK$54,983,000 (2019: HK$53,682,000) has
been allocated to CGU in the fund management
segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU arising from
fund management was determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations
use cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five—
year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 15%
(2019: 15%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2019: 3%)
growth rate for this CGU. The key assumptions
are budgeted revenue, discount rate and growth
rate determined based on the management’s
expectations for the market development.

No impairment on this CGU was made for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the
recoverable amounts, which were the value-in-
use, exceeded the carrying amount. The directors
believed that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the recoverable amount of CGU.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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BRI KE %% BERER)
BiEREE  WILREE2020
FER2019F12831BIEFEE
TERAEREELBETIEY
WE - EEBHE TAZER
RzAERAESEAEES R
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REBBERESELBETZA
BEEZEE

B B E5 B A5
AHETHERNR  EXFEZ
mE 2 IREE A 154,983,000
7t (20194 : #B1#53,682,000
T BERESEESBDEE
REEEBT-

B EEFEENRESESE
By a kbl 8T RE S
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HRABIRERIEERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR R MY 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 RENIADZEMIA
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T EBETF T
Financial assets ETMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BRAnBESFABERZ
TRMEE 1,131,035 765,763
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEBENAARZEMEE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEFREKRIBEEEY) 4,588,415 3,289,328
Financial liabilities Ed)-Ni
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZ# RN AAEZ SRAEES 2,204,930 1,037,717
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 17 FEMRBAT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 TREHR2020F12831BZEEH
December 2020: BAF
Place of
incorporation
or registration/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share/ Principal
Name of subsidiary operations paid share registered capital held by the Company  activities
Bz, BEITR FARFAEETRG/
WBATAE gEhE BHR R EME AR TEREE
Directly Indirectly
E# &%
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %
Shoucheng Management Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - - Provision of management
Company Limited (formerly 55 Ordinary shares services
named as Shougang Concord 7#1100,0007T REERRY
Management Company Limited BiEk
BEEEERRAH
(FiBERAMERBRAR)
Shoucheng Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary 100 100 - - Provision of management
(formerly named as Shougang &8 shares services

Concord Services Limited)
BERBERAR
(FEERREBRAE)

BB EER

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K

RUEERHB
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

17  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 FEMBAR &
Place of
incorporation
or registration/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share/ Principal
Name of subsidiary operations paid share registered capital held by the Company activities
A3 BETR FARRAERITRG/
Lol YNk T BRE R EMERLLAH TEREH
Directly Indirectly
Hi ik
2020 2019 2020 2019
% % % %

Jingji Tiancheng (Beijing) Fund ~ The PRC RMB303,000,000 - = 100 100 Provision of private fund
Management Co., Ltd* HE NG REMEES
(Note (i) and (i) 303,000,0007

REXR (IR B2EE
ARAF
(M) R M ZHi)

Beijing West Fund Management  The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 90 90 Provision of equity
Co., Ltd.* (Note (i) and (i) HE AR investment

TRRAAERERSEEER 100,000,0007T RHERERE
REYME )R M)

E Park Investment Management ~ The PRC RMB1,090,805,326 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
Co., Ltd. ("E Park”) HE N BHIgLE
(formerly known as Shouzhong 1,090,805,3267T

Investment Management

Co., Ltd) (Note (i) and (iii))
BEE (Ix) REEEARAF)

(B GBAETRE

EBARAT)
(W) R M 3 ir))

Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking  The PRC RMB220,000,000 - - 99 66 Carpark operann
Company Limited* HE AR FBEHEE
(Note (i) and (i) 220,000,0007%

CbREHEEEEERAR)
(=02 0)

Beijing Lu Tong Shun Jie Car The PRC RMB20,851,500 - - 80 80 Carpark operation
Parking Management Company Bl N FEBLE
Limited* 20,851,5007T

(Note (i) and (iii)
(ERBEEREERERE

BRRAE)
(Wi 0) R A EH i)
Guiyang Shouzhong Easy Parking The PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100 100 Carpark operation
The PRC Management Ltd.* ~ HE AR H5,000,00075 FEELE
(Note (i) and (///)i
(BRETZARERER
BRAR)
(B 30) R T 24 i))
Notes: (i) Limited company established in the PRC =2 () RAPBERIZIZBRESTAE
(ii) Subsidiaries under Shouhong Investment Group (i) BELRREEEETHEAD
(iii) Subsidiaries under E Park Group (iii) BEEEEETHEAD
*  For identification purposes only * EEBF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

(@) Non-controlling interests (“NCI")

Set out below is summarised financial information
for each subsidiary that has non-controlling
interests that are material to the Group. The
amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before

FEMBAR &
CRINHESRATIEREFEME
EREEZANANBAR - EER
B RHEEMMEAD ZHERER
HBBRTTRe

ZEMBRABDNAFERMERETE
AEFE S -

(@)  FEeEpetEs (TFRiERRtERE))
TXHEINEEFERER RS
FEEMEBEAZNERF
BEEZHUBERBREZ -ZEWEAQ
BB AR BETSH

inter-company eliminations. Al 2 £ &
Summarised statement Shouzhong Beijing West
of financial position Parking Group
HERAREE BHEE RAEMEER
31 31 31 31
December December December December
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20194
128318 12831H 128318 12831H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EBIEFT BT EEFT B FT
Current assets TMEEE 945 90,095 90,282 6,957
Current liabilities MEER (741) (43,072) (8,666) (5,596)
Current net assets TEHEEFE 204 47,023 81,616 1,361
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,838 953,139 158,539 294,414
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (6,518) (763,406) (578) (488)
Non-current net assets JERENE EFE 1,320 189,733 157,961 293,926
Net assets BEFE 1,524 236,756 239,577 295,287
Accumulated NCI Rt JEERER 797 80,390 23,887 29,529
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

17 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 FEMBRE &
(a) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (a) FEEERRRERE (TFERERRHERR))
(continued) (#)
Summarised statement of Shouzhong Beijing West
comprehensive income Parking Group
2HEBEREE BYHEE REREER
31 31 31 31
December December December December
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20194 20204 20194
12H31H 12831H 12A31H 12H31H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIEFT BT EETFT BT
Revenue =R 66,351 20,683 12,811 8,330
Loss for the year FEBE (52,170) (11,531) (6,415) (4,006)
Other comprehensive loss ELft 2 58 = = = -
Total comprehensive 2 HEE5IE4E%E
loss (52,170) (11,531) (6,415) (4,006)
Loss allocated to NCI DEFIEERER
Z B8 (428) (3,915) (642) (4071)
Dividends paid to NCI ~ BUIFZEREDZKE - = - =
Shouzhong Beijing West
Summarised cash flows Parking Group
REREHME BHEE FEAEER
31 31 31 31
December December December December
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20194 20205 20194
12831H 12H31H 12831H 12H31H
HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT HE T EBEFT BT
Cash flows from KERFZIBERE
operating activities (313) 3,117 12,326 (12,406)
Cash flows from REZHZHEER=E
investing activities (614) 19,363 (44,341) 159
Cash flows from REIZHZEERE
financing activities 1,165 (16,980) 101,091 -
Net increase/(decrease) RERIRESSENIEM,
in cash and cash (RiL) 248
equivalents 238 5,500 69,076 (12,247)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18(A) REHEAT ZIRE

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 LIS AEEMN2020FE1283182
December 2020 which, in the opinion of the directors, BMERNE  EERAZERAHEKE
are material to the Group. The entities listed below EMEBEKR - MIRAZKRAER
have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, ZERAEN BERHAEEERFER %
which are held directly by the Group. The country of ERNB 2RI NFRERTAR
incorporation or registration is also their principal place EoTEEEME BFNERER Y
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is EE B SR PR s i ERE 2 EEBIAR(E] ©

the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity REEHBRERPABLEEFEBRZ A
method in these consolidated financial statements. Bl AREIHFERAER AR
Proportion of issued shares/
Principal registered
Place of place of Measurement capital held by
Name of entity incorporation operation method the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
. FEASHRETRG/
RERTE EMA I TEEHY HERE EMERZ LA REE TEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$°000 HK. $°000
BT EETT
Shougang Fushan Resources Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 28.98% 27.61% 5,106,025 4,877,876  Coking coal mining,
Group Limited B HE -Ebes production and sale of
(“Shougang Resources") coking coal products
EHELHRERERAT and side products
(re@ER) BRI LERBEER
BERREIER
Immaterial associates below
UTATEABRERT
Beijing Vstartup Investment The PRC The PRC Equity method 21.77% 21.77% 133,512 136,224 Leasing of shared
and Development Co., Ltd.* ~ HE] FE ik workplace for startups
(Note (b)) B IYN e
TRAEAHERELR ktiil
BRAR
(Hz b))
Beijing West Business Factoring  Hong Kong The PRC Equity method 11.68% 11.68% 22,521 20,294 Provision of trade
Company Limited* B HE -Ebes financing
__(Note (b)) REBZRE
RABEREEFRAT
(s b))
Other immaterial associates 7,629 -
HtFEAKE AR
5,269,687 5,034,394
*  For identification purposes only BB
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

270

Notes:

(a)

On 21 November 2018, the Company announced that
it had entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang
Holding"), the holding company of the Company, pursuant
to which the Company had conditionally agreed to sell, and
Shougang Holding had conditionally agreed to purchase,
the entire equity interest of Fair Union Holdings Limited
(“Fair Union") at a consideration of HK$205,997,000 (the
“Restructuring”). The transaction was completed on 9
April 2019, and the Group retained no interest in Shougang
Concord Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”).

Beijing VStartup Investment and Development Co., Ltd.*
and Beijing West Business Factoring Company Limited*
were acquired through the acquisition of JL R R FHAI %R
EESEEAERAE (Beijing West Fund Management Co.,
Ltd*) ("Beijing West"”) in 2020. Details are set out in Note
31(a).

On 28 September 2020, Shougang Resources announced
that is has completed a share buy-back transaction by
repurchasing a total of 250,000,000 shares at a total
consideration of approximately HK$500,000,000. Such
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled during the
year. As a result of the share buy-back, the Group's interest
in Shougang Resources increased from 27.61% to 28.98%.
A gain on deemed acquisition of interest in an associate of
HK$71,194,000 was recognised and included as part of the
share of results of associates in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

*  For identification purposes only
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2 IR HE > B A B 16205,997,0007T
(TE#4)) - BRIEXZBER2019F48
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EZEMAE -

(b) TRAXERAUREZRARRABDRR
AEEFREAERABD N EBMN20205F
WREIRRAMEREETEEAR
~E (TREAE)) MU FIEHR

FizE31(a)e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

()

Summarised financial information of

material associates

Summarised financial information in respect

of each of the Group’s material associates

is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts shown

in the associates’ financial statements prepared

in accordance with HKFRSs. They have been

amended to reflect adjustments made by the

18(A) MNEAEATIZIRE (&)

0]

FTEMEATMBERIE

ERAERSIEBHEATZ
MHBERRZE M T - F5R

BEE B E2IE

HEABRES

BUYBREENRRZMBR
RFITMEEE -BEBENDETE
MR AEREERAREDE
R PRIAVER R - 3G H & 5HEUR

Group when using the equity method, including EEWNEIE-
modifications for differences in accounting policy.
Shougang Resources BEiER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIETT EET T
Current assets RENEE 6,901,499 7,245,154
Non-current assets JERBEE 14,532,147 14,047,556
Current liabilities mEmas 2,488,195 2,845,954
Non-current liabilities ERBIAE 1,654,381 1,580,444
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Revenue = 1 3,996,951 3,869,308
Profit for the year FEEHH 1,187,283 1,176,141
Profit for the year attributable EERESR A
to owners of Shougang A 5F i A
Resources 1,080,041 1,140,413
Other comprehensive income  EEH M2 EWE
for the year 482,759 21,448
Total comprehensive income FE2EWG
for the year skt 1,670,042 1,197,589
Dividends received from the FECWBHE AT
associate during the year [g=) 231,965 248,852
BREERARAR 20208®% 271
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

272

(i)

Summarised financial information of
material associates (continued)

Shougang Resources (continued)

18(A) MREFEABIZIRE (&

0}

FTEMEATMBELIE
#)
BNER (@

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial 5 B S R B 22 SRR S T
information to the carrying amount of the interest BEABINBERF 2R
in the associate recognised in the consolidated AR B 2 B
financial statements:
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Net assets of Shougang BERBEREEE
Resources 17,291,070 17,046,312
Non-controlling interests JEEER TR (1,453,904) (1,364,732)
15,837,166 15,681,580
Proportion of the Group's FEERBHERZ
ownership interest in B RREmLLA
Shougang Resources 28.98% 27.61%
4,589,611 4,329,685
Effect of fair value RWER A REE
adjustments at acquisition R EE (412,393) (380,616)
Goodwill ik 1,048,488 1,048,488
Other adjustments HihBEe (119,681) (119,681)
Carrying amount of the AERRBHERELD Z
Group's interest in Shougang  BREIE
Resources 5,106,025 4,877,876
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

Summarised financial information of
material associates (continued)

Individually immaterial associates

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in a number
of individually immaterial associates that are

18(A) REtZE AT ZIRE &)
(i) FEHEATIHMBFEREE

-]
1EFIFFEXBE LA

FR ESORBERBE AR @
AEBETHEEATEBIFEXN
MEATDNED  UEmEA

accounted for using the equity method. iRe
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Aggregate carrying amount BRIIEER B89
of individually immaterial REEERE
associates 163,662 156,518
Aggregate amounts of the REEBGUTRIEMREE
Group’s share of
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE (FBi8) ad (4,754) 810
Other comprehensive income  Hfth2®EUk = =
Total comprehensive (Loss)/ 2m| (8518) W=
income “azE (4,754) 810
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18(A) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

274

Goodwill

Included in the cost of investment in Shougang
Resources, associate of the Group, is goodwill
of approximately HK$1,048,488,000 (2019:
HK$1,048,488,000) arising from the acquisition of
Shougang Resources.

Impairment assessment
Shougang Resources

No impairment loss has been recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil) in respect of the
interest in Shougang Resources with carrying amount
of HK$5,106,025,000 (2019: HK$4,877,876,000) after
considering that the recoverable amount of Shougang
Resources is higher than the respective carrying amount.
The recoverable amount of the interest in Shougang
Resources has been determined by calculating the value
in use of the investment. For impairment purpose, the
management estimates the Group’s share of Shougang
Resources’ future cash flows which are based on the
financial budgets attributable to the equity interest
of the Group approved by management covering a
5-year period and using a pre-tax discount rate of
12% (2019: 12%), and the cash flows beyond 5 years
are extrapolated using a zero terminal growth rate.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
relate to the estimation of future cash inflows which
include revenue growth rates and gross margin. Such
estimation is based on the associate’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts
of Shougang Resources are higher than the carrying
amounts and thus no impairment loss is recognised
regarding the Group’s investments in Shougang
Resources (2019: Nil).
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£ #11,048,488,0007T) ©
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FERRE £ 5% > REE2020F 12831
HEEE TERFRERERES 2
IRE{E A HE5,106,025,0007T (20194 :
BiE4 877,876,0007T) HE SR IH E K 18
(20194 ) -REMERER A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as
at 31 December 2020. The country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business, and
the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the
proportion of voting rights held.

18(B) REEABZIRE
LUTFEY AERFMN2020F12831H2
EENT o RERBHIL Y FEMER

TRREZ

TEEXME BFFARE

ez tE B BPr iR R Z EEBIARR ©

Proportion of issued shares/

Principal registered
Place of place of Measurement capital held by
Name of entity incorporation  operation method the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
- . $§f§_ﬁ€¥‘ﬁﬁ§ﬁ/
AL AMALE TREEME  HERE AMER2Z LA AR TEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BlFR  BETn
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu The PRC The PRC Equity method 70.07% 70.07% 488,949 269,471  Carpark management services
Corporate Management Limited ~ #/E] HE 3o CEREERE
Partnership*® (Note (3))
BENETEYCEERAB LS
(Hita)
Other immaterial joint ventures 167,194 =
HifFERGERH
656,143 269,471
8 Limited company established in the PRC e RARBERIIZEBREERT
e For identification purposes only e fE {7
Note (a): On 13 November 2019, E Park Investment Management MizE(a): R2019F11B13H  ARTZ2EE

Co., Ltd.("E Park”) (formerly known as Shouzhong
Investment Management Co., Ltd) (28 (tR) REE
BERRAF) FIRBRAETREEEBRAT), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu Carpark Management Co., Ltd.* ( ENE T &Y
{FHEIBEEBRAE)and Shenzhen Wanwu Chengchang
CRINT B RA AR ER
‘AE)) entered into the Partnership Agreement in relation
to the formation of Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu
Corporate Management Limited Partnership*.

Consultancy Service Ltd.*

As at 31 December 2020, the Group indirectly owns
approximately 70.07% (2019: 70.07%) equity interest in
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate Management
Limited Partnership* ("Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu”). Pursuant to certain terms and conditions
given in the equity owners’ agreement, the financial and
operating policies of Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu
require approval from all equity owners. Guangzhou
Shouzhong Wanwu is jointly controlled by the Group and
another equity owner and, as such, it is accounted for as a

joint venture of the Group as at 31 December 2020.

For identification purposes only

BIEERARAR 2020FHR

WEABEEFERE IR KREEESR
Ram) (MREFEE) FEIERETR
HEBEERRD EMETENE
BREERRATDKRINTEYR
REBABRBERABRBRILEMNE
TEYVTCEEESBLE (BRE
B)IIUEBRE-

720205 12831H REBE B ZEE
BEENETTEYLXEESELE
(ER&aE) (BMNETEY) 4
70.07%(2019 : 70.07 %) 1 - iR 12
HREA A BER#ZE TR
B> BENETBEN B REE
BEBREEEERES ALE-R
20205 12B31H EBEMNEFEYHA
AEBES—LRRZEEALBE

fl AR ERETERZ —REER
=K
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18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(continued)

(i)

(i)

276

Commitments in respect of joint

ventures

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have
any material contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

Summarised financial information of

material joint venture

Summarised financial information of material
joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the joint venture's financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

0}

(ii)

18(B) REEABIZIRE
(#)

ERSEATINEEE
HIFE2020F 128318 L&
B AREBRIRETAEANTE
SREME(Q0194F © ) o

FTESEQARMBEEE

TEGERBDZMBENRE
W T THZHBHBERBE
EREBEEEBEMHHRSEGRR
CEERBUBREMTZE
B

Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate BINEFEYLEEESEBEE
Management Limited Partnership* (BRE#)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BMFT
Current assets MENEE 206,482 131,735
Non-current assets ERBEE 599,210 348,110
Current liabilities mEIAaE 107,891 94,336
Non-current liabilities ERBERE = -
Revenue A 244,787 =
Profit for the year FEEHR 269,995 52,463
Other comprehensive income  EEHME2EWE
for the year 43,232 -
Total comprehensive income FEZAENGIEEE
for the year 313,227 52,463
The above amounts of FBEEREGEEREEE
assets and liabilities include MTFAR:
the following:
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIFEEEEY 19,916 127,495
Current financial liabilities mEETHEE
(excluding trade and other (TEEEMRIR
payables and provisions) H e RIS ) 2,611 94,366
Non-current financial liabilities JEEI &R & &
(excluding trade and other (TEEEMRIK
payables and provisions) H A FE T TRIE S ) - S
& For identification purposes only * Ll
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

18(B) INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18(B) REERTZIRE (&)
(continued)
(i) Summarised financial information of (ii) BNTMBEEREE &)
joint ventures (continued)
Guangzhou Shouzhong Wanwu Corporate BNEPEYLEEESEEE
Management Limited Partnership* (continued) (BIRER) (@)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T BEENBERESME
information to the carrying amount of the interest WERNBIANRGERRDZER
in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated REEZHIER
financial statements:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BMEFT
Net assets of Guangzhou BENEFEMFEE
Shouzhong Wanwu 697,801 384,574
Proportion of the Group's REEBRENETEYZ
ownership interest in R R LG
Guangzhou Shouzhong
Wanwu 70.07 % 70.07%
Carrying amount of the Group's ZEBREMNE T EY LR
interest in Guangzhou ZIEREE
Shouzhong Wanwu 488,949 269,471
(iii) Individually immaterial joint ventures (liiy {ERFFEREEQT
In addition to the interest in joint venture bR EXIENSE AR
disclosed above, the Group also has interests in a rEBETEEETHENIEEKX

number of individually immaterial joint ventures SERAEINER  UETEA
that are accounted for using the equity method. BRo
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFT FEET T
Aggregate carrying amount of fEARJFEREE AT
individually immaterial joint FREE#EE
ventures 167,194 =
Aggregate amounts of the AEEEBEUTRIEEEE !
Group’s share of
Profit for the year FEEH 155,134 =
Other comprehensive income  HM &2 W& - -
Total comprehensive income EEW @ AR EE 155,134 -
BREERARAR 202088k 277
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19

278

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss (FVPL):

o debt investments that do not qualify for

measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI;

o equity investments that are held for trading, and

o equity investments for which the entity has not

elected to recognise fair value gains and losses

19

BRAREEFABRZTHEE

AEERUTETREEDEREAR
BESABDZZEHEE

AR EURBERA AT ENR
AnBESFAEMEZEKTDZ
BHERE;

RERBZRERE ; &

AREEARBBEMEE KD
BREARBEWREREER

through OCI. KEE o
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFT BT T
Unlisted equity securities (Note (a)) JE EHRRAEE S (Mat(a)) 717,663 238,569
Wealth management products R E G (BF3Eb))

(Note (b)) 134,909 527,194

Listed debt securities (Note () NGB TERSES
(H5#(c) 278,463 =
Less: non-current portion IETRENER (616,239) (238,569)
Current portion MENER 3 514,796 527,194

Note (a):

Note (b):

Note (c):

It represents unlisted investment funds. The Group has
interests in these investment funds and these are also
under the Group’s management or advisory and from
which it earns fees from investment management or
advisory activities and fund distribution activities.

It represents the wealth investment products issued by
banks with interests at floating rates ranging from 0.88%
to 4.35% (2019: 1.35% to 4.15%) per annum and will
mature within one year.

It represents investment in listed debt securities of
HK$278,463,000 as at 31 December 2020. The fair
value gain relating to the investments are included in
“other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income (Note 7).
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REBTTHARD MZEFETTT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISTED COST 20 iR AEARZESHEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$ 000
HBUETF T BIEF T
Non-current assets ERENEE
Bonds EH 93,671 =

(a) Fair values of financial assets at

() HEREREIANRZEHEE

amortised cost ZAREE
2020 2019
HKS$'000 HK$000
BT BT
Bonds (=E= 95,180 =

For the majority of the non-current receivables,
the fair values are also not significantly different
from their carrying amounts.

(b) Impairment and risk exposure

There was no exposure to price risk as the
investments would be held to maturity.

HRARZHEERBEBR HA
AEBEEAHKEEENRIER
EER-

(b) R{EFEEZ

EARBStZRERFEERN
EUE IR B B R -
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS, 21 FERERFKRKLFEMTIE-ZER
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES HnfEUFRE
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
EEFT BT T
Trade receivables FEWER I R Z i
— Third parties —%=h 70,096 36,501
— Related parties — A A L 122,801 65,416
Trade receivables E W BR =R 192,897 101,917
Less: Provision for impairment losses 8 : J{E A5 I & & (2,223) (2,623)
190,674 99,294
Prepayments, deposits and EARE-#ERk
other receivables H {th e Ug sk 18
Prepayments and deposits FENRIEREZE 376,925 136,730
Value added tax recoverable AR [ElE(E R 61,551 70,425
Other receivables Hih g zia 165,567 18,828
Amounts due from related companies &% REH AT 2 I8 26,257 6,689
Amounts due from associates Elnid k=N Q= - 78
630,300 232,750
Less: Non-current portion B IETRENES
Prepayments and deposits FENRIE KRGS (296,736) (129,671)
Current portion RENEL D 333,564 103,079

The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 30 to
90 days as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 30 to 90 days.
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables

net of provision for impairment losses based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period, which

were similar to the respective revenue recognition dates:

7R2020F 128318 EWERAZEE
H—Mx#30E90H (20194 : 30E90
H) o FEWERER (OFREEBEEE) 1
REPERFREBEZZHH REEMHM
S MR BEER) 20 2 RE D

T

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEFT BEFT

Within 60 days 60H A 117,818 54,584
61 — 90 days 61%F90H 34,599 20,201
91 — 180 days 91ZE180H 38,257 24,509
190,674 99,294
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
Movement in the provision for impairment losses for
trade receivables is as follow:

21

FEWARTR B e TR TR IE ~ 2 T
HithfEUWRIE (&)

ARBWERRBIREATE  HERA
ER{BEEAREERR-

AEEBAEBYBREERNFIRG
EHEtEBRMEERR RATEIE
WIRRERRETRMEREE B
ERRZRESRRERZEHFIWT

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

At 1 January B1B1H 2,623 13,577

Written-off it (1,471) (10,751)
Provision of/(reversal of provision) for JER{EE5IBE#

impairment losses (Note) (BEEE) (i) 1,071 (203)

At 31 December R12831H 2,223 2,623

The entire balance of the provision for impairment
losses for trade receivables with an aggregate amount
of HK$2,223,000 (2019: HK$2,623,000) are individually
impaired trade receivables.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period.
Note: It represents provision for impairment losses for trade
receivables of HK1,071,000 from continuing operations
(2019: HK$400,000), no reversal of provision for
impairment losses for trade receivables from discontinued
operation (2019: HK$603,000) as detailed in Note 24.

FEWRRZ B EREEE ZMAEAR
EHEEEABME2,223,0005T (2019
F : 182,623,0007T) A1E B R E 2 FE
WEBR RN o

HtMEWREBESAERIER RERE
KRB SHERFES —FREE-

Wit EhEEHRFECEERELERK
1,071,0007T B9 FE U BR RURL (B K5 18 2 fim
(20194 : #1£400,0007T) > BAR LA
2 RS A E A PR URBR FUR B R 1B
#5214 (20194 © ##603,0007T) (¥

BERHIEE24) ©
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22

23

282

ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RELATING TO
COMMODITY CONTRACTS

On 31 May 2019, the Group entered into an assignment
and novation agreement, pursuant to which the Group
has conditionally agreed to assign and novate all
the right and obligations under the First Commodity
Contracts to Newton Resources Ltd and one of its
subsidiaries at a consideration of HK$150,000,000.

The assignment and novation were completed on
7 August 2019 and the Group derecognised the
First Commodity Contracts. A loss of HK$193,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Second Commodity Contract expired during the year
ended 31 December 2019 and a loss of HK$3,425,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, restricted bank deposits
approximately HK$36,890,000 (2019: HK$22,763,000)
represented bank deposits restricted by certain banks
to secure the issuance of letters of credit. The restricted
bank deposits amounting as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 was to be released upon the settlement of the
letters of credit, which will be within twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and are therefore
classified as current assets. The restricted deposits as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 are denominated in RMB
and US$ respectively.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND 24 SRITHEFRREURK
TIME DEPOSITS AT BANKS IRITEHITER
As at 31 December
128318
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETFT BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFKRIBE 1,419,625 655,133
Time deposits at banks RITEHER 2,318,908 2,402,082
3,738,533 3,057,215
As at 31 December
®12H831H
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETFT HBIEFT
Bank balances and cash and RITHEFRRIREUR
time deposits at banks are RITEREHRUTI
denominated in the EI&5)(E :
following currencies:
RMB AR 1,018,145 528,154
HK$ BT 1,748,496 1,019,116
us$ ETT 971,888 1,509,941
Others Hh 4 4
3,738,533 3,057,215

The time deposits at banks carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.4% to 3.13% (2019: 1.95% to

3.53% per annum.

IRITEBHERRERE  #NF0.4%
Z3.13% (20194 : 1.95%%3.53%)

ZHBERRFE-
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284

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(a)

Issue and conversion of HK$1.2 billion
convertible bonds (November 2019)

On 29 November 2019, the Company has entered
into convertible bond subscription agreements
(“the CB Subscription Agreements”) with
ORIX Asia Capital Limited (“ORIX Asia”), Matrix
Partners China V, L.P. (“Matrix Partners V") and
Matrix Partners China V-A, L.P. (“Matrix Partners
V-A") (together as the “CB Subscribers”).
Pursuant to the CB Subscription Agreements, the
Company conditionally agreed to issue and the
CB Subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the zero-coupon convertible bonds (the
“Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount
of HK$1,231,685,000. On 17 January 2020, all
conditions of the CB Subscription Agreements
have been fulfilled and completion of the
issuance of the CB has taken place on the same
date.

Pursuant to the CB subscription agreement, the
Convertible Bonds are:

a. convertible at the option of the CB
Subscribers into ordinary shares of
the Company at HK$0.30 (subject to
adjustment and before the effect of Share
Consolidation) at any time on or after
the issuance date and up to the second
anniversary of the issuance date (the
“Maturity Date”);

b. mandatorily converted if the closing prices
of the ordinary shares of the Company as
quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
in at least 10 trading days out of any
20 consecutive trading days are higher
than or equity to 115% of the prevailing
conversion price; and

C. redeemed at their principal amount on the
Maturity Date, unless they were previously
redeemed, converted or cancelled.
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25 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(a)

Issue and conversion of HK$1.2 billion
convertible bonds (November 2019)
(continued)

The proceeds from the issuance of Convertible
Bonds of HK$1,231,685,000 have been split into
liability and equity components on the issuance
date. On the issuance date, the fair value of
the liability component of the Convertible
Bonds is estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using an equivalent market
interest rate for a similar convertible bonds
with consideration of the Group’s own non-
performance risk. Subsequently, it is measured
at amortised cost basis until it is extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds are allocated to the equity component
of the Convertible Bonds. Transaction cost of
HK$2,859,000 are apportioned between liability
and equity components of the Convertible Bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components on the issuance date.

The fair value of the liability and equity
components are determined based on the
valuations performed by Flagship Appraisals and
Consulting Limited, an independent external
professional valuer, using Black-Scholes model
with Binomial Tree method.

The liability and equity components recorded on
the issuance date were HK$1,106,657,000 and
HK$122,169,000 respectively.

During the year, interest of HK$2,070,000
was accrued in the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds.

25 TAERES (2

(a)

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K

BITNSRAERETTER
&% (2019F118) #)

BT ERESHAERIES
#1,231,685,0007c BN & 1T H
NHEBERERI D RET
B >a@#nEsa@monan
BEREATEAEEBSW
FEANEK > FARETEIR
BENEEMHBHEITRES
FRBERERHEW-BER
CRUNEENAAERET
2> BRI BRI MHEK -
HBEMBERESREEJEIR®E
SRR D XA EBE
2,859,000 T /L R#R Ol B E &5
RETHHEZzWmP2EEEE
BmEBomaEo

BERMEZBINAANEBER
1R 5 18 17 B9 S BR 3 4 B B
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25

286

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(a)

Issue and conversion of HK$1.2 billion
convertible bonds (November 2019)
(continued)

On 17 January 2020, the Company received
conversion notice from each of Matrix Partners
V, and Matrix Partners V-A, in respect of the
exercise of the conversion rights attached to
the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount
of HK$105,693,000 and HK$10,992,000,
respectively. As a result of the conversions, the
Company allotted and issued 352,310,000 and
36,640,000 conversion shares (before the effect
of share consolidation) to Matrix Partners V, and
Matrix Partners V-A, respectively on 20 January
2020.

On 4 February 2020, the Company issued a
mandatory conversion notice to Mountain Tai
Peak | Investment Limited (“Mountain Tai
Peak”) (being ORIX Asia’s designated person
under relevant CB Subscription Agreement)
to convert the CB in the principal amount
of HK$1,115,000,000 and as a result of the
conversion, the Company allotted and issued
3,716,666,666 conversion shares (before the
effect of share consolidation) to Mountain Tai
Peak on 5 February 2020.

As a result of the conversions completed on 20
January 2020 and 5 February 2020, liability and
equity components of HK$1,108,727,000 and
HK$122,169,000 were transferred to ordinary
shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

25 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020)

On 27 July 2020, the Company has entered
into convertible bond subscription agreements
(“Poly Plantinum Subscription Agreements”)
with Poly Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Poly
Platinum”). Pursuant to the Poly Plantinum
Subscription Agreements, the Company
conditionally agreed to issue and Poly
Platinum conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the convertible bonds with an interest
of 1% per annum (the “Poly Plantinum
Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount
of HK$300,000,000. On 10 August 2020, all
conditions of the Poly Plantinum Subscription
Agreements have been fulfilled and completion
of the issuance of the Poly Plantinum Convertible
Bonds has taken place on the same date.

Pursuant to the Poly Plantinum Subscription
Agreements, the Poly Plantinum Convertible
Bonds are:

o convertible at the option of Poly Platinum
into ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$1.93 (subject to adjustment) at any
time on or after the issuance date and up
to the third anniversary of the issuance
date (the “Maturity Date");

25 TAERES (2

(b)

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K

BITMSHABEETTER
{&%(20205F78)

1R2020F7827H KA H
Poly Platinum Enterprises Limited
(TPoly Platinum ) 5J1L
AEBRESDERZE (TPoly
Plantinumz2 &) - B
Poly PlantinumaB B tHa& > &
NEVERMEHME = EITMmPoly
Plantinum 1& £+ ith 5] = 52 fE =
& 48 &E 73 78 16300,000,0007T 2
FRE 1% EES ([Poly
Plantinuma] Ei#E%H ) - i®
2020588 10H » Poly Plantinum
REMRZMBRGECEEN
HPoly PlantinumB] 88 i (& % 8¢
TERBE—HER-

B#EPoly PlatinumzR BB 175 -
Poly PlatinumB] E (&5 25 ©

. Poly Platinum? # 2 7E
BITHRETHZERE
247 H = B R (E A1 R
(TRIHE)) B EEKRS
AABEER SRER
A ABH1.9375 (AE1TH
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25

288

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020)

mandatorily converted by at least 50%
of the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Poly Plantinum Convertible
Bonds if the closing prices of the ordinary
shares of the Company as quoted on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in at least 10 trading
days out of any 20 consecutive trading
days are higher than or equity to 115%
of the prevailing conversion price, and the
average trading volume of the underlying
shares during the corresponding are no
less than 10,000,000 shares; or

redeemed at an aggregate price of (i)
103% of the outstanding principal amount
on the Maturity Date; and (ii) all accrued
and unpaid interest thereon from the issue
date of the Poly Plantinum Convertible
Bonds up to the Maturity Date and any
unpaid default interests (if any) accrued.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

25 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020) (continued)

The proceeds from the issuance of Poly Plantinum
Convertible Bonds of HK$300,000,000 have
been split into liability and equity components
on the issuance date. On the issuance date,
the fair value of the liability component of the
Poly Plantinum Convertible Bonds is estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows
using an equivalent market interest rate for a
similar convertible bonds with consideration
of the Group’s own non-performance risk.
Subsequently, it is measured at amortised cost
basis until it is extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds are
allocated to the equity component of the Poly
Plantinum Convertible Bonds. Transaction cost of
HK$5,300,000 are apportioned between liability
and equity components of the Poly Plantinum
Convertible Bonds based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components
on the issuance date.

The fair value of the liability and equity
components are determined based on the
valuations performed by Flagship Appraisals and
Consulting Limited, an independent external
professional valuer, using Monte Carlo stimulation
method.

The liability and equity components recorded on
the issuance date were HK$291,590,000 and
HK$3,110,000 respectively.

25 TAERES (2

(b)
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(b)

Issue and conversion of HK$300 million
convertible bonds (July 2020) (continued)

During the year, interest of HK$422,000 was
accrued in the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds.

On 7 September 2020, the Company received
conversion notice from Poly Platinum in respect
of the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the Poly Plantinum Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$200,000,000. As a result
of the conversions, the Company allotted and
issued 103,627,000 Poly Plantinum conversion
shares to Poly Platinum on 9 September 2020.

On 5 October 2020, the Company received
conversion notice from Poly Platinum in respect
of the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to the Poly Plantinum Convertible Bonds in the
remaining principal amount of HK$100,000,000
and as a result of the conversion, the Company
allotted and issued 51,813,471 Poly Plantinum
conversion shares to Poly Platinum on 9 October
2020.

As a result of the conversions completed on 9
September 2020 and 9 October 2020, liability
and equity components of HK$291,961,000 and
HK$3,110,000 were transferred to ordinary shares
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

26 fg7s

Number of share Share capital

& E fg 7
‘000 HK$'000
Fig AT
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: B#{TREHSLER:
At 1 January 2019 1201951818 24,044,891 8,830,429
Issue of new shares on 9 April 2019 20194598 &1 K D
(Note (a)) (Hizta)) 3,384,043 846,011
Issue of new shares on 11 December 2019 7A2019F 128118 &7 KRB
(Note (b)) (Hta#b)) 1,500,000 450,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BTN B R B M A
new shares (Note (a) and (b)) (Wizt(a) R (b)) = (468)
At 31 December 2019 72019F12831H 28,928,934 10,125,972
Issue of new shares on 17 January 2020 1202051 8178 #1TH KR %
(Note (c)) (Hrat(c)) 93,333 28,000
Conversion of Convertible Bonds on 1202051 B20H R &R ES
20 January 2020 (Note 25(a)) (Hiz£25) 388,950 116,414
Conversion of Convertible Bonds on 1202052 A5 H R n] SR ES
5 February 2020 (Note 25(a)) (H75225) 3,716,667 1,114,482
Issue of new shares on 21 February 2020 12202052821 B #1738 H
(Note (d)) (&) 1,500,000 450,000
Share consolidation on 30 March 2020 12020838308 £ M2 KRB EH
(Note (&) (Hi5t(e) (27,702,307) =
Conversion of Convertible Bonds 12202059890 R o] B ES
on 9 September 2020 (Note 25(b)) (Hfz#25) 103,627 196,677
Conversion of Convertible Bonds on 12202051089 RiA A B ES
9 October 2020 (Note 25(b)) (H1525) 51,813 98,445
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BOMROERHRERESEMN
new shares and conversion of RBMA (HEE(T))
Convertible Bonds (Note (f)) = (2,443)
At 31 December 2020 120205 12H31H 7,081,017 12,127,547

Note (a): On 9 April 2019, the Company allotted and issued

2,715,464,456, 548,578,678 and 120,000,000 shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.250 per share to Soteria

Financial Investment Company Limited, Matrix Partners

China V Hong Kong Limited and Red Avenue Investment

Group Limited respectively. The total proceeds of

approximately HK$846,011,000 net of transaction cost

of approximately HK$272,000 has resulted an increase in

share capital of approximately HK$846,011,000.

Pt EE(a):

R2019F489B KA ABTIRER
BHE0.250c 2R EEMESoteria
Financial Investment Company
Limited REFEHERLEEBR
REIRFEREEBRERLAAD
B ED 8 K 88172,715,464,456 0% ~
548,578,678/ % 120,000,000
BRMD -PMERBRIEBLYOEIE
846,011,0007t (RINFRE 5 AL A4
A 6272,00070) BEER A MA
7B 1846,011,0007T °
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26

292

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note (b):

Note (c):

Note (d):

Note (e):

Note (f):

On 11 December 2019, the Company allotted and issued
1,500,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.30
per share to JD Fountain Technology (Hong Kong) Limited.
The total proceeds of approximately HK$449,804,000
net of transaction cost of approximately HK$196,000
has resulted an increase in share capital of approximately
HK$449,804,000

On 17 January 2020, the Company allotted and issued
93,333,333 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.30
per share to Shougang Holding. The total proceeds of
HK$28,000,000 has resulted an increase in share capital.

On 14 February 2020, the Company allotted and issued
1,500,000,000 shares at a subscription price of HK$0.3
per share to FTLife Insurance. The total proceeds of
HK$450,000,000 has resulted an increase in share capital.

On 26 March 2020, the shareholders of the Company
have approved a share consolidation on the basis of
every five shares into one consolidated share and become
effective on 30 March 2020.

Transaction cost incurred for insurance of new shares
and conversion of convertible bonds were HK$746,000
(2019:HK$468,000) and HK$1,697,000 (2019:Nil)
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
PROVISION AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

27

FEISARTR ~ Eth (I 7RIE ~ BB R
afiE

As at 31 December

128318
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEFT EET T
Trade payables FE (T BR R 204,622 22,324
Accruals FEst&E A 61,864 57,043
Other payables Hh eI 28 154,540 87,962
216,404 145,005
421,026 167,329

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period:

RREHMERE  REZZEEHZS
ZERARRRBREZREDRNOT -

As at 31 December

128318
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMEFT FEMEF T
Within 90 days 90H A 66,410 9,121
91 — 180 days 912 180H 29,947 3,004
181 — 365 days 181&E365H 36,856 3,603
Over 365 days 365H L & 71,409 6,596
204,622 22,324

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that most of the payables are within
the credit timeframe.

REEYMZFHEERRIOH K&
M 52 A B 75 B B B 38 BUR DB 1R KD
MEMRIERNEERRA-
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28

294

BORROWINGS 28 fBWX
Bank borrowings
RITEMN
2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
EIEFT BT T
Repayable within one year and BER—FERNEER
shown under current liabilities RREE&EE TR
Secured B g - =
Unsecured EEE 6,100 5,710
6,100 5,710
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Unsecured EEE 476,832 450,957
Total borrowings ER s 482,932 456,667

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's

RREMFR > AEFBZERERBU

borrowings were repayable as follows: T
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT EET T
Within 1 year or repayable on demand —F R o BIREREE 6,100 5,710
Between 1 and 2 years 15824 9,816 4,595
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 88,348 55,137
Over 5 years SEM E 378,668 391,225
482,932 456,667
Unsecured T 482,932 456,667

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's weighted

average interest rate per annum of bank borrowings was

4.39% (2019: 4.89%).

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximately their

fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in RMB approximately HK$482,932,000 as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$456,667,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

29

IEIEFR{STR
RRAMBRREZ2ATE & T
BERBEEEREBOEES - UT
RIBIER B8R 2 DI LUIER B8
SRR

As at 31 December

128318
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E (16) (3,076)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEBE 18,063 36,070
18,047 32,994

The following are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior year:

(i) Deferred tax assets

UTRAEERUFTFEEEDIZTE
FIEMREERBBREES

() IEERBEE

Leases

HE

HK$°000

ABEFT

At 1 January 2019 K2019%F181H -
Credited to consolidated statement of REE2EBERTTA

comprehensive income 3,128

Exchange differences PE 2 7= &8 (52)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 5320195 12831H&2020F181H 3,076
Charged to consolidated statement of RixéE 2w mRINEF

comprehensive income (3,060)

Exchange differences bE 5 = 28 =

At 31 December 2020 1L2020%12831H 16

BHRERABRAS 202065k 295
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 29 IREFRISRR (&)
(ii) Deferred tax liabilities (i) EREREBEEE
Fair value Fair value
adjustment Fairvalue  adjustment
and  adjustment  of financial Unrealised
revaluation of other assets at loss of
of  non-current FVPL - equity
properties assets  non-current  instruments Tax losses Leases Total
RAREEH
HitERE ABmNERE
MERXREE BEQAR BEAAEER RATE
BERER EEAE BE-ERY KERER RIEGE g st
HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
Vel S EBlEFr EEFr BEFr BEFT BEFT Vel S
At 1 January 2019 120191818 2,528 21,471 6,298 - (664) - 29,633
(Credited)/charged to REE2EREE GIA)
consolidated statement of /e
comprehensive income - (3,528) (3,158) - - 3,946 (2,740)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries R E AR
(Note 31) (Hi&t31) - - 199 - - 11,364 11,563
Exchange differences ERES (38) (1,272) (332) - - (744) (2,386)
At 31 December 2019 2019128318 2,490 16,671 3,007 - (664) 14,566 36,070
(Credited)/charged to REE2EREE GIA)
consolidated statement of /1
comprehensive income - (3,563) (1,109) - - (14,524) (19,196)
Exchange differences ERES 125 910 87 = = 67 1,189
At 31 December 2020 120206128318 2,615 14,018 1,985 - (664) 109 18,063

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$684,128,000 (2019:
HK$514,000,000), of which HK$110,000,000 (2019:
HK$110,000,000) is subject to IRD's confirmation.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$4,000,000 of such losses for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the HK$510,000,000 (2019: HK$510,000,000) tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Except for tax losses of HK$19,000,000 (2019:
HK$19,000,000) will be expired in 5 years, such tax
losses do not have expiry date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

Year ended 31 December

HENANMMBLEE
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEFT BT
Final dividend for the year ended 31 & ZE2019%12831H 1k
December 2019 of HK$7.22 cents FENXRBRESR
(2018: HK$2.55) per fully paid SRERERDT7 2281
share (20184 : 2.5531) 500,027 699,438
Interim dividend for the year ended & ZE2020%12831H 1k
31 December 2020 of HK$4.27 FENTHREES
cents (2019: HK$0.73) per fully SREERKRMDA27E
paid share (20194 : 0.73%1) 300,147 200,231
800,174 899,669

The Board has declared an interim dividend in the total
amount of HK$300 million (equivalent to HK4.27 cents
per share, based on the number of issued shares on 17
September 2020, i.e 7,029,203,723 shares) for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 (2019: HK$200 million).

The Board has recommended a final dividend in the
total amount of HK$400 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: HK$500 million) payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on
Thursday, 15 July 2021. Based on the 7,291,017,194
ordinary shares in issue, such a final dividend would
amount to HK$5.49 cents per share (2019: HK7.22
cents per ordinary share). The final dividend is subject
to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The final dividend proposed after 31
December 2020 has not been recognised as a liability as
at 31 December 2020.

BEEGETIREE2020F668308 1t
NEBEZHRHERESEHEBIIET
(HHERSR4. 278> &E52020
FORITHZBEZTRHOHEE A
7,029,203,7238%) (20194 : BiH&2(E
L) °

EEGREERIREHE20205F128
BTHIEFEZRBRESGHBIELMET
(20194 : BEESETT) FHR20214F78
150 (28N & ERFEER/FRIA
REAKRELEMAZRE-REAANFTE
BT 2 EEAR7,291,017,1948% » %K
R E R ASKREERS 4981 (2019
FERIZERT.2281) c ZRER
EERRIBETZREBEFAT L
IREREHE 20205128318 %
BORZ AR E 202051283181
FERBEE
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31 BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a)

Acquisition of 90% equity interest in 1t
FREAEREESEEFRAQT (Beijing
West Fund Management Co.,Ltd.,
"Beijing West”) in 2019

In 2019, the Group has undergone a series
of linked transactions as part of the Group
restructuring of the holding group of the
Company.

On 29 March 2019, the Group entered into an
equity transfer and capital increase agreement
with IERE#HEEHBR LS (Beijing Shougang
Fund Co., Ltd., “Shougang Fund”), a limited
liability company established in the PRC and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group,
to acquire 75% of the equity interest in Beijing
West, a limited liability company established
in the PRC, and to inject approximately
RMB89,859,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$104,757,000) in cash as capital contribution
into Beijing West, accordingly, the Group held
87.5% of equity interest in Beijing West. On 6
May 2019, the Group further acquired 2.5%
of the equity interest in Beijing West from an
independent third party. The principal activity
of Beijing West and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Beijing West Group”) is
provision of private fund management services in
the PRC.
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31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

Acquisition of 90% equity interest in 1t
FRAMEREESEEEMR AT (Beijing
West Fund Management Co.,Ltd.,
"Beijing West") in 2019 (continued)

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group
is regarded as having control over Beijing West
Group. As such, Beijing West Group is accounted
for as non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, and the financial results of Beijing
West Group are consolidated into the results
of the Group. A gain on bargain purchase of
approximately HK$86,155,000 was recorded in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, as a result of the difference between the
fair value of the consideration paid and payable,
and the fair value of the net assets acquired,
which are the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed to their values
with reference to the valuation report prepared
by Flagship Appraisals and Consulting Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired is determined on a provisional
basis and may be adjusted upon completion of
initial accounting year which shall not exceed one
year from the respective acquisition date.

31 ¥BEH &

(a)

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K

2020 F BB IE R R AR ¥
REESEEERAT (RA
BI%)) 290%/R 1 (42

RERBEEER  AEERER
AEBHTAAEEERZ TS
oA REAIEEB AR
ERRBZIEEEWB RS M
RABXEREZHMBEXERS
HAXRERXE - NEE2EW
mRBERERBE R @A EE
86,155,00070° JTh AR EfI K FE
TREZ AR EE ST EF
BEZAANBENELE MK
BEEZAANABETFTWER
HANBERMAEZEEBGZAD
BEAHRK2EZEREEE T
HEEEAR AR (B4 & i
FEs B ESEREEGE)
HANKEREMEHZEBE
BE%E

FrsBEr #pEEREBRBZA
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31

300

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31

(a)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

Acquisition of 90% equity interest in 1t
FREAEREESEEFRAQT (Beijing
West Fund Management Co.,Ltd.,
"Beijing West") in 2019 (continued)

Consideration transferred

Details of the purchase consideration, net assets
acquired and gain on bargain purchase are as
follows:

EBEH

(a)

122020 F W ABIE R R AR R
RERZEEARQE (RA
BIZ)) Z90%Re1E (&)

BEAE

WEAE FTREEEFERZ
BWRBWmAEFENT

HK$°000
EEFT

Cash consideration

RENEB

188,562

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition are as follows:

U B B R & E K e SB
aEmT :

HK$°000
BT
Property, plant and equipment ME~BERKE 74
Interests in associates REE AR 2w 156,785
Financial assets at fair value through BARBESFABGZZEMEE
profit or loss — non-current —3JEmE 18,369
Other non-current assets HIERBEE 153
Trade and bills receivables FE WL BR 7k A ZE 4% 12,427
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE1J®RIE ~ 3% & B H Ath fE U zk 18 108,017
Bank balances and cash RITHERRIRE 13,529
Trade and bills payables FETBR TR A ZE 4% (99)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HtENRIERESEE (2,204)
Tax payables eI 18 (1,611)
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEPTEIR EE (199)
Net identifiable assets acquired B B PT84 B EE H B 305,241
Less: non-controlling interests o JEEER S (30,524)
Less: gain on bargain purchase B ERBEWE R R (86,155)
Net assets acquired TN E E R E 188,562
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

31 EBaHE

Acquisition of 90% equity interest in 1t (@) H2020F BB IE R R AEAIE
FRAREKREESEEFR AR (Beijing KREESEERBRAR (THA
West Fund Management Co.,Ltd., Bl%)) Z290%MRHE (&
"Beijing West"”) in 2019 (continued)
Consideration transferred (continued) BEAE (B)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and Tz a#EEREERE Y
liabilities acquired is determined on a provisional ARABEDNREETEEEE I
basis and may be adjusted upon completion of AIRMEETEELARE TN
initial accounting year which shall not exceed one FE-PHEETFERSWEH
year from the respective acquisition date. R EEe—F-
The fair value of acquired trade receivables of BRI X EEFTUEEUR
Beijing West Group at the date of acquisition RWEHBRHZ AREBENARS
amounted to approximately HK$12,427,000 #512,427,00070 BB XA
which approximates to the gross contractual HE - REBENWHEHR &EMG
amounts. Based on the best estimate at 5 AT 2BKBS4RER
acquisition date, the contractual cash flows are o
expected to be fully collected.
The Group recognises non-controlling interests rEERANBESNEIFER
in an acquired entity either at fair value or at the Em BGPTSR > AR
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of EEFEWNLA  mRFNEE
the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. This BERIEER R o AR IRIR
decision is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition BRI EEEEL - RAAAIZE
basis. For the non-controlling interests in Beijing HFEERERM S > AEEEE
West, the Group elected to recognise the non- ¥ JE 1 IS HE 2 FE A P W BB BT 3L
controlling interests at its proportionate share of MEEFENLEAERIEER
the acquired net identifiable assets. HE o
Net cash outflow on the acquisition: WHESEEFZREMEFE !
HK$°000
BT
Cash consideration RBERE (188,562)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances BBz IRERIRE
acquired £ B4R 13,529
Net cash outflow IR m I RE (175,033)

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K
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302

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of 90% equity interest in 1t
FREAEREESEEFRAQT (Beijing
West Fund Management Co.,Ltd.,
"Beijing West") in 2019 (continued)

Consideration transferred (continued)

Beijing West Group contributed revenues of
approximately HK$8,374,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$3,956,000 to the Group for
the period from 29 March 2019 to 31 December
2020.

Step acquisition of IR EREEEER
fR 2 & (Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking
Company Limited, “Shouzhong Parking”)
in 2019 (“Step Acquisition™)

On 30 December 2018, the Group entered into
the Capital Increase Agreement with Shougang
Fund to inject RMB76,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$84,013,000) in cash as
capital contribution into Shouzhong Parking,
a limited liability company established in the
PRC. Upon the date of completion of the capital
contribution in March 2019 (“Step Acquisition
Date”), the Group’s aggregate indirect equity
interest in Shouzhong Parking was increased
from approximately 48.13% to approximately
66.05% and accordingly, the Group acquired
control over Shouzhong Parking and reclassified
the interest in Shouzhong Parking from interest
in a joint venture to investment in a subsidiary.
The 48.13% equity interest in Shouzhong Parking
held by the Group before the capital increase was
remeasured at fair value and a fair value gain
on step acquisition amounted to approximately
HK$4,802,000 was recognised at the Step
Acquisition Date.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

EBEH

(a)

(b)

122020 F W ABIE R R AR R
RERZEEARQE (RA
BIZ)) Z90%Re1E (&)

BRECE (D)

REEAIEEEN2020F3829
HZE2020F 12831 BB R A
EEEMEEEREEERS A
A #HBUES 374,0007T K 4 3 K
3,956,0007T ©

20195 T WEBIEEE
FHEERARAT (M=
H) (PP WESEE)

R2018F 128300 KEFEH
HIME ST UM ERE  LUEA
HE AR ¥76,000,0007t (FHE
&4 184,013,0007T) » A
BEFEE (—ERPERILZ
BREMTAR) ZFE 52019
FIRAEERBE (MDP K
BEf) B> AEEREPEES
HZEEZEREEHLN48.13%
AN ZE466.05% > At A&
EEESHEREE 2GR I
BREREEZ BN —E
BERNBZEREMOEAR
—ERBABRZEE AREEP
BERIFFERIEE248.13%
REZAAREEENSE > I
P U B B HRRE SR 0 P WK AR
EEHZAABERZOBE
4,802,0007 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31 EHBEHE
(b) Step acquisition of IR EHFEEEERE (b) P2019FEDHWEILEEH
FR 2 7 (Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking FEEERRAGE (MEHE
Company Limited, “Shouzhong Parking”) H) (25 WBEE) &
in 2019 (“Step Acquisition™) (continued)
Goodwill arose in the acquisition because the WEEEEE 2HE ARG
cost of the combination included a control HRABEEERE LI
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for B zENKBERGEAT
the combination effectively includes amounts FERHER - R RMIBERKR
in relation to the benefits of revenue growth, ANTEREBHEZEBRESRE - ZE
future market development and the assembled AN EEAEESRER > ThH
workforce of Shouzhong Parking. These benefits REELAFTEAHNBELE
are not recognised separately from goodwill ERNEIIEE.
because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets.
Consideration transferred EEAE
The following table summarises the consideration TREM EX DT INEBSEEN
paid for the above Step Acquisition, the fair value BERERD D W EE B HE T
of assets acquired, and liabilities assumed at the BEEMFTAEEENAALE
Step Acquisition Date. fEo
HK$°000
ABEFT
Cash consideration HEABE 88,845
Fair value of existing 48.13% equity interest 75 EIRBFFT1548.13% MR
held by the Group NAEE 87,488
176,333

BREERABRAT 2020FE%K
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31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(b)

Step acquisition of IR EHFEERER
PR 2 Bl (Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking
Company Limited, “Shouzhong Parking”)
in 2019 (“Step Acquisition™) (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the

EBEH

(b) 20195 KT WIBIEREH
FEERARAR (MTEHhE
BH) (MYSKRBERE) 4

RoOTZWEBHAMBENEE

Step Acquisition Date are as follows: RERNBENT !
HK$'000
BT
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERFE 70
Other non-current assets HtIERBEE 640,588
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{J 718« % & & H M FE UL =R I8 62,180
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIRE 49,053
Trade and bills payables FEAT AR AN e ZE A (130)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HmEMNDRBERESAER (2,927)
Borrowings EEN (477,450)
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEPRSIRER (11,364)
Net identifiable assets acquired P B m s RV & R E 260,020
Less: non-controlling interests o JEEERE R (88,290)
Add: goodwill m:Ee 4,603
176,333

The fair value of assets and liabilities have been
determined on a provisional basis as the fair
value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
may be adjusted upon the completion of initial
accounting year which shall not exceed one year
from the Step Acquisition Date. The fair value is
being valued by the internal valuation team of the
Group.

The Group recognises non-controlling interests
in an acquired entity either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. This decision is made on an acquisition—
by-acquisition basis. For the non-controlling
interests in Shouzhong Parking, the Group
elected to recognise the non-controlling interests
at its proportionate share of the acquired net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31 EBEH B
(b) Step acquisition of IR EHFEEEERE (b) P2019FEDHWEILEEH
FR 2 7 (Beijing Shouzhong Car Parking FEEERRAGE (MEHE
Company Limited, “Shouzhong Parking”) H) (25 WBEE) &
in 2019 (“Step Acquisition™) (continued)
Consideration transferred (continued) EErE B
Net cash outflow on the Step Acquisition: PTWEEBEES 2HREME
VRER
HK$'000
BT
Cash consideration paid BENRERXE (88,845)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances B PR e RIS E B
acquired 49,053
Net cash outflow IR &M A8 (39,792)
Shouzhong Parking contributed revenues of BHHREER2019438270E
approximately HK$20,683,000 and net loss of 20191283 1HEBEmAE
approximately HK$11,350,000 to the Group for EERmMEXBREFEED NS
the period from 27 March 2019 to 31 December #781520,683,0007T R &Y B HE
2019. 11,350,0007z °
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32

306

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Upon completion of the sales of the First Commodity
Contract, the management decided to cease the
operation of the trading business of the Group.
Consequently, the operating segment of trading business
is reported as a discontinued operation. Financial
information relating to the discontinued operation is set
out below.

The financial performance and cash flow information
presented are for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

32

BARIEREER
ERHES—HERENE B8
M?EM¢M§K$@ZE%¥$
Fit BEEHLEENHSR/ABER
IHE S BB EES Y
MBENBIMT o

TREJHZE2020FK2019F 12831
HIEFEZPBERRBRRIREREEN -

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31BLEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue WA - 137,075
Cost of sales THE B A - (129,083)
Gross profit EF - 7,992
Other losses, net HME 18258 - (3,275)
Reversal of provision of THREERERSE
impairment loss of financial assets B - 603
Administrative expenses THZH - (4,416)
Profit before income tax PREFIE M ANEF - 904
Income tax expense PSR W - S
Profit and total comprehensive RECHRIEREEE Y
income for the year from FERANAKZEKHELEE
discontinued operation - 904
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REFHRE ORH) RA
operating activities FRE (8,331) 56,710
Net cash inflow from KREFEZRERAFEE
investing activities = 2,185
Net cash outflow from MEEH RS ML T
financing activities - (126,839)
Net decrease in cash and RWERRSEEYRLFE
cash equivalents (8,331) (67,944)

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Step acquisition in subsidiary

(a) On 27 March 2020, the Group acquired an
additional 33.136% equity interest of Shouzhong
Parking for a consideration of RMB94,410,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$105,000,000).
Upon the completion of this acquisition, the
Company’s shareholding in Shouzhong Parking
increased from 66.046% to 99.182%. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interest
of approximately HK$71,818,000 and decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$33,182,000.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the non-controlling interests of certain non-
wholly owned subsidiaries and the Group have
completed several rounds of capital injections into
those subsidiaries without changing the equity
interests of the subsidiaries held by the non-
controlling interests and the Group. As a result
of the capital injections, the balance of non-
controlling interests increased by HK$85,210,000.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 November 2018, the Group entered into the
sale and purchase agreement with Shougang Holding,
the holding company of the Company, to purchase one
ordinary share of Fair Union Holdings Limited (”Fair
Union”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, at
a consideration of approximately HK$205,997,000.
Fair Union holds, directly and indirectly, approximately
35.71% in aggregate of the entire issued share capital
of Shougang Century, an associate of the Group at the

date of disposal.

33

34

B REREDEITZIRS

AHWE—REHE LS

(a)

2020538270 AEBE KB
IEREFRFENEEI33.136%
B REA ARTE94,410,000
7T (HHERA4105,000,000
70) cMRZWETHE  AA T
RERFEENEREE6.046%
W ZE99.182% o AN E H R IEIE
A #E /D B 16 4971,818,000
TTRAEABDER NEMGER
/L7 #£33,182,0007T ©

HE2020F12831H1E &
FEEFRBNAEBRETMA
HzET A ANEHIE M
BENEHERKIEERER
RBZETFTABINEZR  JFE
BG #E tm 45 R R B TG 0B
85,210,0007T ©

HE—FBAE
J22018F11B21H ZREEEKXAF
ERASIEMERITIIESE HE U
BEEAEBEENE QASFair Union
Holdings Limited (I Fair UnionJ) —
@i REBKAHB1205,997,000
JteoFair UnionB#EkEEHEAEE
REEBH HEATEREERY
BEITRAGHN35.71%-
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34 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The transaction was completed on 9 April 2019, and the
Group retained no interest in Shougang Century. This
transaction has resulted in the recognition of a loss of

3 HE—RMWBRE &
ZRFT2019FE4B9H B/ > MAE
BrEFREZEREENERZ ZXS
BHREE2019F12B31HILEEEZ

approximately HK$124,599,000 in profit or loss for the Bm P EEEIEAAEK124,599,000
year ended 31 December 2019. IS
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration received or receivable BN EBEIREE 205,997
Carrying amount of net asset disposed of FrHEEEFEZREE (427,159)
Loss on disposal before reclassication of BN EEREER 2
exchange reserve HERIE (221,162)
Reclassification of exchange reserve BN EERMEE 96,563
Loss on disposal HEEE (124,599)

The carrying amounts of assets of Fair Union and its

Fair Union & EM B AR N HE R

subsidiaries as at the date of disposal were: EEZREES
9 April 2019
20194
489H
HK$'000
BT T
Interest in an associate R—EBEAB 2 EE 427,123
Bank balances and cash RITERRIRE 36
Net assets BERE 427,159
Net cash inflow on the disposal: HESEELZRESEMAFE
HK$°000
BT T
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 205,997
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances B FHEZRERRESE
disposed of BYEEER (36)
Net cash inflow IBEMAFEE 205,961
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 HGREREMERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
a. Cash generated from operations a. REXBELEZRE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000
EEFT BT T
Cash flows from REZEMEEZ
operating activities RERE
Profit before income tax from REUTFTRIEZ
B P 1578 Bl i A1)
Continued operations FHEREER 672,035 311,956
Discontinued operation BARARIEKEER - 904
Profit before income tax BEERLEREERE
including discontinued PREFIGI AR F]
operation 672,035 312,860
Adjustments for: MTFNIEEEHAE .
Interest income S WA (93,422) (90,915)
Interest expenses FMEZH 77,168 27,538
Exchange differences bE 72 = & 6,091 (3,066)
Share of results of associates WS AE 2 EE (343,320) (295,502)
Share of results of joint ventures BhEaE N EE (344,069) (89)
Gain from changes in fair value of R EWEAABELEEFH
investment properties W - (100)
Depreciation of property, ME -BERREZINE
plant and equipment 6,031 2,697
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEESEZITE 152,857 70,926
Amortisation of HMIERE & =i
other non-current assets 14,811 18,276
Written-off of other non-current W EMIERBEE
assets - 976
Fair value change of financial assets ZAREEIAERZ
at fair value through profit or loss  &RIEEZ AANBE
BE (10,770) (7,543)
Changes in fair value of FmafNzAnNEE
commodity contracts =) - 3,618
Provision for/(reversal of) & AT B 0 B ELfith FE UK
impairment losses for trade IR B R EED
receivables 1,071 (203)
Fair value gain on step acquisition ~ ¥ UREEEE
RaBENRE - (4,802)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BEX
plant and equipment REZEE - 18
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBREZEE - 124,599
Gain on bargain purchase FEEWE K - (86,155)
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35 HRERERERME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
a. Cash generated from operations a. RKEEBELEZHS
(continued) (#)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
BIEFT BT
Operating cash flows before SEESEHREIZ
movements in working capital RERFHE 138,483 73,133
Trade receivables & U BR = (81,287) 23,846
Contract assets in respect of BRI AR E L
service concession arrangements BRENEGNEE (88,274) =
Prepayments, deposits and other EMRIE - REK
receivables H {th & W =R (136,543) 123,628
Trade payables FEFERI R 248 170,760 (38,897)
Amounts due from related BT A B 2 HIE
companies (26,257) -
Other payables, provision, H A TRIE B B
accrued liabilities and contract SFEEREHNEAR
liabilities 115,309 74,386
Cash generated from operations REEBEE RS 92,191 256,096
b. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b. ®RMEEHZEEHIER
financing activities
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities KEDMRAMEFNEEFERE
arising from financing activities and the EHEACZEEREEEDF
movements in liabilities arising from financing o
activities for each of the years presented.
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
EEN HEaRE i
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2019 1201951818 103,143 39,295 142,438
Financing cash flows MEBERERE (102,904) (18,971) (121,875)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR
(Note 31) (Hi5£31) 477,450 - 477,450
Acquisition — leases WiE—HE - 448,306 448,306
Interest expenses MNEER = 10,461 10,461
Exchange differences ERERR (21,022) (8,327) (29,349)
At 31 December 2019 K2019%12H318 456,667 470,764 927,431
At 1 January 2020 2020518 1H 456,667 470,764 927,431
Financing cash flows MERERE (19,300) (272,876) (292,176)
Acquisition — leases WiE—THE - 806,098 806,098
Interest expenses MNEER 45,565 31,376 76,941
Exchange differences ERERR - 99,050 99,050
At 31 December 2020 2020128318 482,932 1,134,412 1,617,344
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

C. Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
acquisition of right-of-use assets amounting to
HK$779,631 (Note 13(B)).

COMMITMENTS
Non-cancellable operating leases

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. For details
of the leasing arrangements, refer to Note 13(B).

The Group leases various office premises and car parking
assets under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within 1 to 20 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right—
of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term
and low-value leases, see Note 2.27 and Note 13(B) for
further information.

No minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of investment properties not recognised
in the financial statements as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Group is a subsidiary of Shougang Holding, which
is wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Shougang Corporation), a state—
owned enterprise under the supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Accordingly, the Company and the Group
are significantly influenced by Shougang Group.
Shougang Group is part of a larger group of companies
under the PRC government. Accordingly, the Group is a
government related entity in accordance with HKAS 24.
The transactions and balances with Shougang Group and
other PRC government related entities are disclosed in
Note (a) to (c).
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 37

(@) Transactions with related parties

FAEk A LIKEE (&
(@) HRBALTETZRS

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31BLEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Shougang Group BHiEE
— Sales by the Group —AEEHE
(Note (ii) and (ii)) (7 22 (ii) B (iii)) 226,235 207,612
— Other income by the Group —AREBBHEMUA
(Note (iii) (&2 (i) - 2,009
— Purchases by the Group —RNEFEKE
(Note (i) and (i) (B9 32 0) 2 (1)) 114,807 9,116
— Rental expenses (Note (i) — 2R B aE0) 5,046 4,852
— Rental income —MHEW/WA 132 =
— Advisory fee expenses (Note (iii) — BB B (A A Gi) 302 -
- Management fee expenses —BEER (W E£dGiI)
(Note (iii) 2,990 3,000
Associate of the Group TEBZHENT
— Sales provided by the Group —REERMBHEE
(Note (ii) and (iii) (T 52 (i) R (iii)) - 38
— Other income by the Group —REFEHEMUTA
(Note (iif)) (ft 22 (iii)) = 480
- Loan to associate —HATHERB ZBR 33,750 =

Note: The Controlling Shareholder of the Company

defined under the Listing Rules is Shougang

Holding which is a wholly-owned subsidiary

of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned

enterprise under the direct supervision of the State

Council of the PRC. Accordingly, the Company and

the Group are controlled by Shougang Group Co.,

Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as

“Shougang Group”).

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties
(continued)

Notes.: (i) Shougang Group provides materials,

leasing and management services to the
Group.

(i) The Group provides fund management
services to its associates.

(iii) The terms of the transactions are mutually
agreed between the Group and the counter
parties.

In addition, details of acquisition of subsidiaries
from Shougang Group and transaction with
non-controlling interest involved Shougang Group
are disclosed in Notes 31 and 33, respectively.

Balances with Shougang Group

Details of balances with the Group's related
companies are set out in Note 21.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel,
which represents the Directors of the Company
during the year was as follows:

37 FRERALTIREE (2

(a)

REABMALETZRS
(#)
Rzt () EHMEEEAEER
e EEREE
AR5 -

(if) FEERHBEQNT
RHESEERE -

(iif) RHZIERTBERE
EHFHEER

E o

o EEMEREENE QS UK

ShREMEREFEREZZRZZ

SEIED RIS HIEE31F033 ¢

(b) HEWMEBZLER
EMERNEBRBB AT &R
BN EAAR

() FTEEEBABEZHM
EEREMTEETERBMAEN
FERZMENT :

Year ended 31 December

H#E12A31ALEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
Short-term employee benefits RERBER 5,702 5,640
Post-employment benefits BIRTEF] = -
5,702 5,640
The remuneration of key management personnel FTEBEEBEABZMNEHESS
is determined by the Remuneration Committee BTziNEEgEE 2%
of the Board of Directors having regard to the BB FEIBHINZ TR
market practice, competitive market position and MR AR A TFRIER

individual performance.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

FABZMBRAERR

As at 31 December

128318
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIEFT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB REZKRE 284,924 2,084,330
Investment in an associate R—EBERAT 2 KE - 4,876
Financial assets at amortised cost BEBRRAAR L TRHEE 372,134 =
657,058 2,089,206
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and FEMMIE - ZER
other receivables HhpE g 197,157 13,189
Amounts due from subsidiaries BETHRB AT ZHIE 11,451,809 8,448,070
Financial assets at fair value through X AAEBEARZEMEE
profit or loss 379,887 -
Bank balances and cash RITHERRIRE 2,738,079 2,500,466
14,766,932 10,961,725
Total assets WEE 15,423,990 13,050,931
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REIBE
Other payables and accrued liabilities HEMENRIBRETEE 9,123 4,510
Other financial liabilities Hithemasd - 359
9,123 4,869
Capital and reserves B A B (et 4
Share capital [N 12,127,547 10,125,972
Reserves (Note) 1 () 3,287,320 2,920,090
15,414,867 13,046,062
Total liabilities and equity MEEkED 15,423,990 13,050,931

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021

and were signed on its behalf by:

Zhao Tianyang
[P N
Director

EBEF

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38 ZAARZEHBERIRE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Note:

()

Mt -

(EgizE=E

Retained
earnings
REBEA
HK$'000
BT T
Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 A1 H Z &8k 3,624,020
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income FERMKREZEWALLEE 195,739
Dividends BRE (899,669)
Balance at 31 December 2019 201951283318 2 &8k 2,920,090
Balance at 1 January 2020 20201818 2 48R 2,920,090
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income FEEHRFIKEEIIALELE 1,167,404
Dividends i35} (800,174)
Balance at 31 December 2020 120205128318 Z &6R 3,287,320
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(A)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of

the fourteen (2019: nineteen) directors were as

39

SEERAEADE BEBQTE
55622 553831% « £622GELR
7 AN EZENERIEE) RO
KREALEHRAERIKEE)

(A)

EFRITHHEEME

ENHEMN+TEZ (20194
+h$) ESEEAZHESOT

follows:
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefit
Fees benefits scheme Total 2020
ek RKER 20205
ik HetigF BEGEN a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BIEFT BT BIEFT
2020 20205
Executive directors of the ERFAUTES
Company
ZHAO Tianyang HXE - - - -
XU Liang e - - - -
LI Wei (Note (d)) =& (W) - = = -
LIANG Hengyi PAYEIES - 2,702 - 2,702
Zhang Meng (Note (d)) R (M) = = = -
Non-executive directors ERRFERTES
of the Company
Ll Yinhui FThE 410 - - 410
LIU Jingwei ARE 350 - - 350
HO Gilbert Chi Hang EERE 350 - - 350
Ll Hao B 250 - - 250
Independent Non-executive ~ AAREIFHNTES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin I& 430 - - 430
CHOI Fan Keung Vic RE®R 410 - - 410
DENG Yougao HES 370 - - 370
ZHANG Quanling KRRE 430 - - 430
QIAO Yongyuan (Note (c)) Bxiz W) - = = =
Total emoluments [ e 3,000 2,702 - 5,702

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR E M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39 EERAIEAGE (REAQTE
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 556225 553831% « 55622GE LR
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE 7 FARESENERIEE) 1RF
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF REBLTHRUNEKREE) @)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (continued)
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s (A) EFRTHERME @)
emoluments (continued)
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefit
Fees benefits scheme Total 2019
Hek RIKEF] 20198
we Hi @A SRR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT BIEF T BT
2019 20194
Executive directors ERRHTESE
of the Company
ZHAO Tianyang PN = = = =
XU Liang e = = = =
LIANG Hengyi 2EE - 2,640 - 2,640
LI Shaofeng (Note (b)) =D (Hratw)) - - - -
Non-executive directors ERBFHRTES
of the Company
Ll Yinhui FE1E 410 = = 410
LIU Jingwei =B 350 - - 350
HO Gilbert Chi Hang AEE 350 - - 350
LI Hao 2 250 - - 250
Independent Non-executive ZAATBIFHTES
directors of the Company
WANG Xin Tz 430 - - 430
CHOI Fan Keung Vic RE®R 410 - - 410
DENG Yougao HEE 370 - - 370
ZHANG Quanling KRRE 430 = S 430
QIAO Yongyuan (Note (c)) BKE (HiC) - - - -
Total emoluments B & 4% 3,000 2,640 = 5,640
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(A)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company or
its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Mr. Li Shaofeng, the Managing Director of the
Company, had overall chief executive responsibility
for the Group’s business development and day-
today management generally and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Managing Director. Mr. Li Shaofeng
has voluntarily waived his monthly salary of
HK$315,000 since 1 March 2014. He has resigned,
as director with effect from 1 November 2019.

Dr. Qiao Yongyuan was appointed as a director with
effect from 14 June 2019.

Mr Li Wei and Ms Zhang Meng were appointed as a
director with effect from 22 May 2020.

Shoucheng Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F12831HILEE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of Directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly,
to the Directors; nor are any payable (2019: Nil).

(C) Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

(D) Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2020, there are no loans,
quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the
Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2019: Nil).

39
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(E)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 37, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2020 or at any time during
the year (2019: Nil).

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Very substantial disposal

On 15 January 2021, Shoujing Yifei Holdings
Limited (the “Vendor”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Sales and
Purchase Agreement”) with King Rich Group
Limited (“King Rich”), a connected person of
the Company, pursuant to which the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, and King Rich
has conditionally agreed to purchase, the sale
shares (the “Sales Shares”), which represent
the entire issued share capital of each of Excel
Bond Investments Limited (“Excel Bond”), Fine
Power Group Limited and Fair Gain Investments
Limited (collectively the “Subject Companies”),
at a consideration of HK$3,513,509,976.
The Subject Companies indirectly and directly
held 1,463,962,490 shares of the Shougang
Resources which represents 28.98% of all issued
shares of Shougang Resources and all interests
of Shougang Resources and all interests of
Shougang Resources held by the Group.
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FEEARLE

2202118158, KRB Z
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40 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(a)

Very substantial disposal (continued)

On 18 February 2021, the Company announced
in a supplemental announcement that, on the
same date, the Vendor and King Rich entered into
a supplemental agreement to amend and restate
the Sales and Purchase Agreement to the effect
that:

i) The Sales Shares was amended to one ordinary
share in the issued capital of Excel Bond, which
representing the entire issued share capital
of Excel Bond (the “Revised Sale Share”).
At completion, Excel Bond will indirectly hold
approximately 11.88% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources; and

ii) Consideration for the Revised Sale Share is
HK$1,440,000,000, which reflects an indirect
transfer of 600,000,000 Shougang Resources
Shares at a consideration of HK$2.40 per
Shougang Resources Share, being the same price
per Shougang Resources Share as disclosed in
the announcement dated 15 January 2021. As
Excel Bond will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company following Completion, the Company
will only have indirect aggregate interest in
approximately 17.10% of all issued shares of
Shougang Resources upon completion of its
disposal of the Revised Sale Share pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the amended and
restated Sales and Purchase Agreement.

For further details of the aforesaid disposal,
please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 15 January 2021 and 18 February
2021.
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EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(b)

Placing of existing shares

On 27 January 2021, the Company entered into
the placing agreement with Huatai Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited and BOCI Asia
Limited (as “placing agents”) to procure placees
to purchase the total number of the placing
shares, being 210,000,000 shares, at a placing
price of HK$2.03 per placing share.

On 3 February 2021, the Company completed
the placing and the subscription of 210,000,000
placing shares to not less than six placees
(“Placing and Subscription”) with net proceeds
of approximately HK$419 million.

For further details of the aforesaid placing, please
refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 27 January 2021 and 3 February 2021.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

=]
IEMBEHEE
RESULTS E 45|
Year ended 31 December
BENAMALEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$000
BT T BT BETT BT BEFT
Revenue A = = 176,504 396,091 705,854
Profit for the year FEREE
from continuing operations FEERM - = 312,501 441,161 635,470
(Loss)/profit for the year from BARIEEEER
discontinued operations FE (BH) /87 (1,954,220) 57,286 44,270 904 =
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (58 /57 (1,954,220 57,286 356,771 442,065 635,470
Attributable to: R AL
Owners of the Company P (1,621,162) 57,286 353,097 443,003 658,613
Non-controlling interests FERER (333,058) = 3,674 (938) (23,143)
(1,954,220) 57,286 356,771 442,065 635,470
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHAH
At 31 December
®12A318
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT BETFT BETFT BEFT BEFT
Total assets BEE 5,847,436 8,186,309 9,430,385 10,997,024 14,125,632
Total liabilities maE (1,142,226) (942,657) (434,929)  (1,174,400)  (2,206,334)
4,705,210 7,243,652 8,995,456 9,822,624 11,919,298
Equity attributable to owners REEGER
of the Company 4,705,210 7,024,789 8,966,257 9,684,305 11,772,290
Non-controlling interests RS = 218,863 29,199 138,319 147,008
4,705,210 7,243,652 8,995,456 9,822,624 11,919,298
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REMERE

Particulars of major investment properties held by the Group as

REENR2020FE12A31BFEZTEREY

at 31 December 2020 are as follows: EFBWT
Group Category of

Property Use interest  the lease

&EEFH
EY/E S A& ZHm L8R
Flat A2 on 8th Floor, 55 Residential 100% Long-term lease
Pearl City Mansion, Fik T RHAMEA
Nos. 22-36 Paterson Street B 1B#722-365%
Causeway Bay, BRI K E8IBA2E
Hong Kong
L1-L3 Floor, PUPIIES) Operation of car 100%  Self-owned property
222 Jirui Five Road, RS T parking lot BEE®E
Chengdu High-tech Zone, ks FBEHKE

Sichuan Province
China
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